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Honorable Joel Robideaux
Mayor-President

Lafayette Consolidated Government
705 West University Avenue
Lafayette, LA 70502

Ms. Danielle Breaux

Development and Planning Director
220 West Willow, Building B
Lafayette, LA 70501

Re: Buchanan Redevelopment Site Proposal Delivered By Hand to LCG Development and Planning
Dear Mayor Robideaux & Ms. Breaux:

The Buchanan Redevelopment Proposal accompanying this cover letter is submitted by Co-Sponsors Community
Directions, Inc. (CDI) and Le Centre Evangeline Corporation (LCE). Both Co-Sponsors have long experience
developing projects in Lafayette, as do their Team Members: Lemoine Companies (Contractor), ULL Professor
Cory Saft and Brodie Ardoin (architects) and Eric LaFleur of Mahtook & LaFleur, attorney.

The Proposal responds to LCG’s March 13 RFP. It envisions rehabilitating the Buchanan Parking Garage (Phase
I), plus creating Downtown Workforce Housing on Convent Street (Phase II) and on Jefferson Street (Phase III)
with residential rents ranging from $556 to $1,021 per month. Phase III also envisions ground floor Retail Rental
and second floor Office Rental Space.

Phase [ envisions completely rehabilitating the existing LCG 340 space Parking Garage, and does so in advance
of Phases II and III to allow for staging and crane access. Phase | envisions reserving 265 parking spaces for LCG
employees as required by the RFP, plus 75 parking spaces for Phase II and Phase III tenants, employees, and
customers, to help defray Garage operating expenses.

Phase II proposes fifty eight (58) units of Downtown Housing in a newly constructed seven (7) floor building’
fronting on Buchanan and Convent Streets. Phase III will be constructed in a separate seven (7) story building
fronting on Jefferson Street and proposes to provide an additional forty (40) Downtown Apartments in the 5 floors
above the ground floor Retail and second floor Office Rental Space noted above. Residential rents in the two
Towers will range from $564 to $1,091 per month, commercial space $12 to $14 per square foot.

The overall Project will have a unified concept but be divided into Phases so that Phase I's Parking Garage can
proceed at once and not be delayed by Phases II and III. Those Phases will probably take longer to close due to
the nature of the work and financing involved with their housing and mixed use features.



While this nonprofit organization has rental offices in Lafayette in addition to its administrative offices just up the
road in Opelousas, but rather than wait, if you have any questions, please call me or our Team members by cell
numbers listed below:

Mark Tolson, Le Centre Evangeline Corporation, Co-Sponsor, (337) 351-3763
Charles Tate, Jasmine Consulting, LLC, Development Consultant (225) 939-1566

Sincerely yours, s

OX /]
David LaHaye

CEO, Community Directions, Inc.
Co-Sponsor

(337) 459-6801 (cell)

cc: John Lamke
President, ADF
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Buchanan Redevelopment Site Proposal

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Redevelopment Project Proposal envisions five (5) major components:

(1) Parking Garage (Phase I);

(i1) Downtown Workforce Housing on Convent Street (Phase I1);
(111)) Downtown Workforce Housing on Jefferson Street (Phase III);
(iv) Office Space; and

(v) Ground Floor Retail Space.

These Components are divided into three (3) conceptual Phases:

Phase I, concerns the Parking Garage and envisions LCG Priority Number 1 by
completely rehabilitating the existing LCG 340 space Parking Facility in advance of
Phases II and III to allow for staging and crane access. Concerning Phase 1, LCG would
enter into a long-term lease agreement with ADF-PC for its reserved 265 parking spaces
for an amount adequate to support operations and debt service on a pro rata basis with the
other 75 parking spaces. The remaining 75 parking spaces will be available to Phase II
and Phase III tenants, employees, and customers, and the general public and likewise
contribute their pro rata share of required revenue.

Phase II includes Townhomes and Affordable Downtown Workforce Housing comprised
of fifty eight (58) Affordable Workforce Residences including five (5) new 4 bedroom
Townhomes and to be newly constructed in seven (7) floors on the open land fronting
Buchanan and Convent Streets.

Phase III is to be constructed in a separate seven (7) story building. It will include Retail
Rental, Business Offices and 40 Downtown Workforce Apartments to be constructed on
the open land fronting on Jefferson Street, with Retail Rental Space on the Ground Floor,
Office Space on the second, and forty (40) Market Rate Apartments in the 5 floors above.

There are at least two reasons to divide the work into the 3 conceptual Phases, even
though the Project proposes to have an overall unified concept.

First, some or all Components and Phases will require specialized sources of financing
applicable to each, but not available to all. For example, New Markets Tax Credit
grant equivalent equity is available to address a portion of the costs associated with the
Phase I Parking Garage and Phase Il commercial rental space, but none of the capital
requirements associated with Phase II's purely Affordable Workforce Housing capital
requirements.

Second, timing issues are likely to result from disparate closing and construction
schedules, with some but not all having to wait for future funding availability. By way of
example, there is no reason that the seemingly urgent need to return the Buchanan Street
Garage to services should have to wait for the release of RFP's or NOFA's that award
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resources for affordable housing but that cannot be used to cover the costs of the
Garage.

Sponsor intends to vigorously pursue funding for each of the Components, but hopes this
approach will permit it to restore downtown Parking Garage service to LCG staff as soon
as possible.

Regardless of Component or Phase, Development Team will employ every means and
convention available to meet or exceed performance expectations, on schedule, and
within budget, and yel respond to the challenges certain to arise, and has the experience
to do so.

Total Development Costs for all 3 Phases of this Project exceed $28,000,000. Sources of
Capital include $11,183,342 in Permanent Loan or Bond Financing, $15,283, 800 in Low
Income Housing Tax Credit Equity, $882,000 AHP Grant from the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Dallas, and $792,858 in New Market Tax Credit Equity. The least costly Phase
is the Phase I Parking Garage, with a Total Development Cost of $4,000,000. Contingent
upon details to be formed following discussions with LCG, Phase 11 has a projected Total
Development Cost of some $13,000,000 and Phase III a projected Total Development
Cost of some $12,000,000.

The Phase I Parking Garage constitutes rehabilitation. Phases 11 and III require far more
costly new construction. The capital required to perform work on each of the Phases can
come in the form of Loans or Grants or grant-equivalent. Loans require repayment of
principal and interest. and are more expensive to serve on a monthly basis. As a result,
rents associated with borrowed capital are more expensive, as they must be high enough
to not only cover operating expenses such as utilities, staff and security, but principal and
interest repayments required to service the loan. (By way of example, each parking space
will cost $48 per month to service its share of the debt, and this is so even after taking
into account the estimated 25% grant-equivalent New Markets Tax Credit equity
invested in the parking space.)

Grants and grant-equivalent Tax Credit Equity is required to reduce rents, whether for
parking spaces, apartment or commercial rentals. New Market Tax Credits (NMTC) have
already been allocated to U.S. Treasury approved Community Development Entities
(CDE’s) and Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFI's) who are looking
for projects, which means there is some hope such grant-equivalent equity might be
available in the relatively near-term to partially fund the Parking Garage.

Unlike those resources, the resources required to construct the Affordable Housing are
allocated to specific projects, such as Phases Il and Phase 111, and are let but once a year.
Such resources are very competitively sought, and there can be no assurance that they
will become available no matter how strong the application for same might be, as their
scoring criteria vary dramatically from year to year.



Buchanan Redevelopment Site Proposal

SUBMISSION PART A. OFFEROR TEAM, KEY PERSONNEL,
EXPERIENCE, PERFORMANCE

1. Offeror Proposed Team
a. Offeror Identification

Proposal Sponsor: Community Directions, Inc., 130-A West South Street,
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570. David LaHaye, CEO.
Tax Identification Number (TIN): 72-1479351

Proposal Co-Sponsor, Le Centre Evangeline Corporation (LCE)., 130-B West
South Street, Opelousas, Louisiana 70570. Mark W. Tolson, CEO, 337-351-3763.
Tax Identification Number (TIN): 72-08 18737

Single Primary Point of Contact as Required by RFP: Mark W. Tolson,
Development Consultant, 337-351-3763

Affiliations/Relationships: Other than Development Team

Members identified in Section (d.) below, CDI intends to sponsor the

formation of at least one nonprofit corporation, “ADF Properties Corporation,” to
act as a general partner to develop, own and manage the five (5) major
components envisioned by this Redevelopment Project: its Parking Garage;
Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments; Downtown Apartments;

Office Space; and ground floor Retail Space.

For purposes of this Offer, we shall call the Developer, proposed Owner and
operating entity *ADF Properties Corporation™ (or *ADF-PC").

b. Offeror’s Organizational Structure

CDI and LCE are this Project’s Sponsors, and ADF-PC will be the vehicle
established to fulfill CDI's, LCE's and LCG’s Mission. As stated above, additional
LLC or LP entities shall be formed to develop, own and manage the various Phases
proposed in conjunction with the Buchanan Redevelopment Site.

c. Offeror’s Legal Structure

See above. The “ADF Properties Corporation” per se will be a Louisiana
nonprofit corporation, but Ownership entities financed in party with Low Income
Housing Tax Credit or New Market Tax Credit equity, as required, will likely
take the form of an LLC or LP.

d. Offeror’s (3) References:



Bishop Al Gatlin. Church of God in Christ, 701 East Pinhook Road,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70501. 337-232-6958

Kathy Laborde, Gulf Coast Housing Partnership, 1610 Oretha Castle
Haley Blvd., New Orleans, Louisiana

Reverend Willie Maynard, Seventh District Pavilion, Inc. and President
Emeritus, Greater Louisiana Baptist Convention, 225 North Avenue C,
Crowley, Louisiana 70526. 337-788-3103.

(Referring to page 17 of the RFP, ADF-PC will not only execute the definitive
agreement, but will control or have financial liability for the project.)

e. Identification of the Offeror Team (members)

l.
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Sponsor: Community Directions, Inc., 130-A West South Street,
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570. Phillip G. Bourgeois, President. David
LaHaye, CEO, 337-459-6801. (Owner for Current Purposes: ADF-PC)

Co-Sponsor: Le Centre Evangeline Corporation, attn.: Mark
Tolson, CEO and Development Consultant, 337-351-3763

Developer, Owner: ADF Properties Corporation (ADF-PC), 225 Jesse
Street, Opelousas, Louisiana 70570, John Lamke, President, 337- Mark
Tolson, Development Consultant, 337-351-3763

General Contractor: Lemoine Companies, 214 Jefferson St #200,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70501. Mike Rice, Vice President, 337-896-7720

Legal: Mahtook & LaFleur, 1000 Chase Tower, 600 Jefferson Street,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70501. Eric LaFleur, 337-266-2189

Architects:  Cory Saft, Project Architect, 202 Whittington Drive,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70503. 337-849-5422. Ardoin Architecture, 130
West South Street, Opelousas, 70570, Brodie Ardoin, 337-948-  1202.
Financial: Evangeline Bank and Trust Company, 497 West Main Street,
Ville Platte, Louisiana 70586. Nick LaHaye, Vice President. 337-363-
5541. (Potential LIHTC, NMTC, Opportunity Zone Investor Supple,
LLC; also other Investors/Syndicators TBD)

Organization Chart (attached as an Exhibit)

Qualifications of Offeror’s Primary Team Members (attached as Exhibit)

Roles of Team Members and Prior Relationships with the Offeror.
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See Submission Part B: Redevelopment Proposal.

CDI's Team Members have worked together on projects for more than 50
years. In fact, Lemoine Construction was a small contractor until it and Jack
Tolson worked together. As the organizational chart shows, CDI's practice is
to supply the vision for projects it chooses to participate in. It recruits
architects, development consultants, contractors and others who have the
capacity to perform.  This is no exception. It recruited its Development
Consultant as a Co-Sponsor and with it considered a number of choices before
deciding to work with Lemoine Construction, given its considerable capacity
and wide range of experience, including constructing parking garages,
multifamily housing, office and retail spaces. Sponsors have seen nothing to
reduce their confidence in Lemoine, whose submission as part of this Proposal
is truly impressive. CDI has also previously worked with the other team
members, including Co-Sponsor Le Centre Evangeline Corporation, which
has been instrumental in facilitating projects consisting of more than $100
Million in Total Development Costs, and with both architects, Ardoin
Architecture and Professor Cory Saft.

2. Offeror's Experience and Past Performance

Sponsor Community Directions, Inc.(CDI) is well known to

the Lafayette Consolidated Government (LCG), having worked with its
Community Development Office to develop affordable workforce apartments. It
has also done similar work elsewhere in Acadiana.

Development Consultant Le Centre Evangeline Corporation is also well known to
LCG for its work in connection with numerous nonprofits, including CDI,
Acadiana Development Foundation, Seventh District Pavilion, Inc., and the
Diocese of Lafayette to name several of its clients.

The RFP at page 18 requests specifics concerning details on at least three (3)
projects completed over the past 10 years each with similar development cost and
scale of the proposed redevelopment project. Those specifics, starting with the
CDI but also including its General Contractor, Architect, and Development
Consultant are incorporated as exhibits to this Proposal.

See Exhibits submitted with this Proposal.



SUBMISSION PART B. REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL
Preface:

Page 16 of the RFP specifies certain requirements that must be satisfied in order for this or any
Proposal to be considered for selection:

s Roles and Responsibilities of the Partics

Internal Development Team Roles and Responsibilities are clear. If this Proposal
meets with favor, Sponsor CDI will immediately establish “ADF Properties
Corporation” (ADF-PC). ADF-PC will in turn sign Contracts with other Team
Members: a Development Services Agreement with Le Centre Evangeline
Corporation; an Architectural Services Contract; a General Construction
Contract; and an MOU or Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with LCG.

LCG Role. This Proposal assumes that if selected, the Development Team will be
invited to commence to dialogue with LCG counterparts that will refine the
project scope and yield detailed drawings, after which the Development Team
will be able to commence its work with maximum LCG support and minimum
delay.

e Performance Criteria

Once LCG and the Development Team have arrived at a consensus with respect
to scope, the Development Team will employ Best Practices whose intent will be
to complete the Project on time and on budget. The Architectural Team including
Project Architect, ULL Architecture Professor Cory Saft and Architect of Record
Brodie Ardoin will provide drawings, plans and specs for preliminary approval by
ADF-PC (with input throughout from the General Contractor, in order to hasten
closing, construction start, and completion). Once tentatively approved, the
Development Team shall brief LCG leadership with their thoughts and to solicit
feedback.

e Issues such as limitations of assignability
If selected, Sponsor envisions no need to change its project Principals or reassign
roles, other than to incorporate ADF-PC and the LP and LLC entities likely to be
required for the proposed financial undertaking.

e Dedicated Parking Spaces for LCG use
The discussion concerning “Phase I'” of this Proposal contains specifics regarding
the dedication of Parking Spaces for LCG use in the manner required by the RFP,

and articulates a Plan to move at once to fulfill this LCG Priority.

e Dafford Mural



This Proposal articulates a Plan to preserve the Dafford Mural by relocating same.
Sponsors have set aside resources in its Phase I Parking Garage budget to do so, and
are willing to consider any reasonable alternatives LCG might propose, such as to
enhance visibility at another location.

LCG Consent for Changes to Key Personnel, Site Plan, Design Concept,
Development Schedule, and Changes to the financial offer proposed here as required
to maintain feasibility and viability.

In accordance with RFP requirements, Sponsors are amenable to having LCG
Consent to any such Changes.

1. Redevelopment Approach

One Proposal: Five Components

This Redevelopment Project Proposal envisions five (5) major components:

(i) the Parking Garage;

(i) Downtown Workforce Housing on Convent Sreet;
(iii) Downtown Workforce Housing on Jefferson Street;
(1v) Office Space; and

(v) Ground Floor Retail Space.

One Proposal: Three Phases

L.
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Phase I: Parking Garage. ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number [ by
completely rehabilitating the existing LCG 340 space Parking Facility in advance of
Phases 1l and III. This allows for staging and crane access.

LCG would enter into a long-term lease agreement with ADF-PC for its reserved 265
parking spaces for an amount adequate to support operations and debt service on a
pro rata basis with the other 75 parking spaces. (Please see Phase 1 Parking Facility
Financial Sources and Uses and Pro Forma.) The remaining 75 parking spaces will be
available to Phase Il and Phase 1II tenants, employees, and customers, and the general
public and likewise contribute their pro rata share of required revenue.

Phase Il: Townhomes, and Affordable Downtown Workforce Housing. ADF-PC
proposes to address LCG Priority Number 2 by developing the land for Highest and
Best Use (to the extent permissible, given LCG’s expressed interest of providing
Affordable Workforce Housing downtown. Phase II will involve the open land
fronting Buchanan and Convent Streets and the construction of five (5) new 4
bedroom Townhomes plus fifty eight (58) Affordable Workforce Residences, whether
concurrently or not with other Phases).



LCG will enter into a long-term surface leasehold agreement with ADF-PC for the
Workforce housing, but following discussions with LCG it will be more practical for
the five (5) new 4 bedroom Townhomes to be structured differently, to facilitate their
sale to third parties when desirable.

3. Phase IlI: Retail Rental, Business Offices and 40 Downtown Workforce Apartments.
ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number 3 by developing the land for the
Highest and Best Use by utilizing the open land fronting on Jefferson Street to
develop Retail Rental Space on the Ground Floor, Office Space on the second floor,
and forty (40) Market Rate Apartments, utilizing the Plan described elsewhere for
Phase III (whether concurrent or not with other Phases). LCG will enter into a long-
term surface lease agreement with ADF-PC for this Phase.

Why Three Phases?

While ADF-PC envisions a unified and ratified concept design at the outset, some or all
Components and Phases might have to stand on independent legal and financial footings due to
the various Sources of Financing applicable in each Phase.

For example, whereas the Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments Component will be
funded in part with Federal resources such as HOME and CDBG funds and the equity proceeds
derived from the sale of Low Income Housing Tax Credits, those resources are unlikely to
contribute toward the construction of the proposed Office Space and ground floor Retail Space.

Likewise while New Markets Tax Credit equity coupled with other financing is likely the most
efficient means possible to finance a portion of the costs associated with restoring the Parking
Garage, this financing mechanism is unlikely to play a role in the other aspects of this ambitious
undertaking. (Such equity cannot be used, for example, to finance rental housing. Only the retail
storefronts, business offices and parking components of this development are eligible New
Markets Tax Credit activities.

Timing issues resulting from disparate closing and construction schedules are additional reasons
for such flexibility. For example, hopefully the apparently urgent need to replace the suddenly
eliminated downtown parking need not be slowed by lengthier timelines required by other
Components, such as Affordable Workforce Apartments, for which resources will not be
available for at least another year.

While ADF-PC intends to vigorously pursue each of the Components, it hopes to be able to
restore the downtown Parking Garage to service in shortest order as Phase 1.

Project Performance

Regardless of Component or Sources of Financing available that matches to each, ADF-PC and
its Development Team will employ every means and convention available to manage each
Component to meet or exceed performance expectation, on schedule, and within budget, and yet
be able to promptly respond to the inevitable challenges that will ~arise during the process.



m ADF-PC and its development team understand that whoever is chosen pursuant to this RFP will
be expected to carry out all phases of planning and/or construction necessary to successfully
implement and complete the Project conceived in its Proposal, including but not limited to:

o Preparing architect drafted, detailed scope and work specifications;

o Implementing the project or program activity as proposed in the application, using
reputable, locally experienced, and insured architects and contractors, and in the case of
the general contractor, one with adequate performance bonding capacity to guarantee the
construction completion;

o Ensuring compliance with reporting requirements of all funders;

o Managing fund disbursement and accounting, utilizing third parties to certify percentages
of completion, construction cost retainages;

o Ensuring that all Local, State and Federal requirements are met for the entire
affordability period applicable to the Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments
Component.

2. Redevelopment Design Concept

Development Proposal: TOTAL Parking: 358

Total Land area: 41 acres

Total Project: 126,445 sf conditioned Required LCG Parking: 265 daytime spots
M 163,601 sf total

Tenant/Use mix: Commercial/Office/Residential Provided: 265 LCG spots + 93 additional spots

Project Total Units: Retail: 2,600 sf
Office: 7,2000 sf
Multi-Family: (67) 2-beds; (21) 1-beds; (5) studios; (5) townhouses

Our proposal for the redevelopment of the Buchanan Parking Garage and
adjoining sites is a mixed-use, mixed-income concept broken into three phases.
Downtown will be more successful as it becomes more diverse in terms of
income ranges, amenities and services. Each phase corresponds to a
different primary funding mechanism and so can proceed simultaneously or
in sequence.

Market Rate
Funding

PHASE I: Existing Parking Garage rehabilitation

N, We will relocate the Dafford mural, remove the exterior panels of the
g ~._ , garage, completely refurbish the structural steel and cast-in-place
e -~ _~~ concrete building and re-clad the exterior with a more breathable
) e, ."“". f:_‘.(-"—, VéJ‘ S i i o 1 -v "
m,,,%?s? S o skinning alternative
T <K PHASE I1: Convent Street Building (including lobby space)
¢ "% Phase II will be an independent building at Convent and Buchanan
]
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Streets with five townhouse at ground level and 53 affordable units above for a total project of
approximately 90,000 sf total.

PHASE III: J
-2 - Phase III will share the lobby of the Convent building but otherwise
TRy be an independent building on Jefferson Street with a first-class retail
) space at ground level, offices on the second level and 40 affordable

o /’;; ;éx units above for a total project of approximately 60,000 sf total.

efferson Street Building

Program Distribution

Office

PHASE I
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PHASE II ¥
Affordable Units o PHASE III:
b ol ~ Market Rate Units
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Cross Laminated Timber advantages fas funding allows):
* Large, prefabricated ‘chunks’
-Quick, efficient installation
-Effective in tight site conditions
*» Design Flexibility & ‘finished’ interior surfaces
» Superior Acoustic, Fire and Environmentally Performance
* Reduced Waste

3. Project Risks (and Mitigation Approaches)

Each Component and Phase of a Project of this nature comes accompanied by a number
of Risks.

Major Risks include the ability to:

(i) Finalize firm funding commitments of adequate (and eligible) funding for each
Phase;

(i1) Complete the work;

(i)  Operate feasibly and viably once completed.

Funding. With respect to firm funding commitments, it is unlikely any Offeror will be
able to offer LCG truly firm financial commitments at this juncture, before the proposed
scopes of work are received with favor by LCG, plans are finalized, and Market Studies
and Appraisals confirm the financial assumptions contained in financial pro formas.
Hard financing commitments must conform to the capital financial needs and operating
revenues that can be reasonably anticipated to flow from the Redevelopment Project, and
those cannot be known until the scope of work is known and Market Studies are received.

Completion. Getting all the financing is one thing. Completing the project is another.
The bonded building contract will guarantee completion.

The ability of any Sponsor to complete work that is proposed and accepted by the LCG
starts with the Development Team itself.

Sponsors CDI and LCE believe they have assembled a fully capable Team that LCG is
familiar from long experience working with them. This Team includes Sponsors CDI
and LCE, Lemoine Companies, Ardoin Architecture LLC, acclaimed local ULL
Professor Cory Saft, Eric LaFleur with Mahtook & LaFleur bonding and title attorneys,
each of whom will contribute its long experience, individually and collectively, and
operate under the exacting standards called for by this ambitious undertaking.
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Plans and specifications will be finalized. Construction estimates and plans and (only
then) binding Financial Commitments will conform to them, with or without
improvements suggested by CDI or LCG. The work will be adequately sourced, with
conservative occupancy and revenue estimates and committed funds set aside for
contingencies certain to arise. The contractor is insurable and bondable up 10 $150
Million, and will be insured and bonded. Once construction starts, monthly construction
draws will be submitted and paid on a percentage completion basis as certified by the
architect, less a suitable retainage (possibly 10%) that will be withheld until project
completion by Phase. Construction Audits will be performed as each Phase is completed.

Operations. With respect to long-term feasibility and viability, it is imperative that each
Phase of the undertaking be predicated upon realistic income and expense projections.
The ADF-PC Team endeavors to do so. Its residential pro formas will conservatively
underwrite to requirements actually adhered to by funders. These include, to name a few
examples, a 7% vacancy assumption; 2% revenue and 3% expense inflation adjusters; the
provision for some $375 per unit per month or more per residence operating expenses,
plus $25 per month Replacement Reserves set aside for future maintenance requirements
such as eventual HVAC system replacements.

CDI and LCE believe they have assembled the right team to manage Project Risks, and
further believes its Team’s selection by LCG will permit City-Parish leaders to mitigate
its own risk of error by working with the ADF-PC Team to accomplish its goals, if only
because its General Contractor and larger Team like LCG will live with the long-term
consequences of the decision and cannot escape from them.

It will ill serve current and future generations of Lafayette were the current generation’s
leadership to not select a local Development Team most likely to succeed judged nor by
its promises but by its actual long experience of performance, ties to the community, and
adherence to industry norms and practicality of approach.

LCG has stated its goals: re-establishing lost parking spaces in close proximity to its own
workforce and encouraging the production downtown of diverse residential, retail, and
commercial office space. Let the very experienced CDI Team partner with LCG to get
this job done.

Project Schedule

While efforts will be undertaken to simultaneously finalize the designs, bids and
financing on each proposed Phase, it is likely that some of the Phases might neither
start nor finish simultaneously.

The Phase | Parking Garage is relatively straightforward, so it should be able to proceed
most quickly, especially if the funds required for that activity can remain separate from
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the funding required for the apartments and commercial space envisioned for Phases Il
and III. ADF-PC hopes to be able to secure firm commitments for financing, finalized
design plans, and close on Phase 1 within 8 months of selection if permitted to
proceed at once with Phase I upon selection pursuant to the RFP, and complete Phase |
work within 8 months of building contract award.

As detailed below, however, Phases 11 and 111 will likely be more protracted, as they will
require complex and detailed coordination among various funding sources, and no less
than approximately 12 to 18 months to secure firm commitments for Tax  Credit
financing, much of it dependent on State and National funding availability and timelines
(e.g. affordable workforce apartments Grant and grant-equivalent Low Income Housing
Tax Credits), plus time to finalize plans, secure LCG permits, and close.

Phase I Parking Garage (See Proposed Project Schedule submitted as an Exhibit):

CDI Team Selected by LCG - October 1, 2019?

ADF-PC Preliminary Scope and Plan Approved by LCG — November |
Plans Finalized — 5 Months After Team Selection

Committed Financing Secured based upon approved Scope and Plan
LCG Permits Secured

Closing and Construction Start

Completion and Occupancy — 5 Months After Construction Start

Phase 11 and I1I: Downtown Workforce Apartments, Retail and Office Rentals:

CDI Team Selected by LCG  October 1, 20197

ADF-PC Preliminary Scope and Plan Approved by LCG

2020 LIHTC QAP Adopted by LHC June 2020

2020 LIHTC Application Submitted to LHC September 2020
LIHTC Allocation Committed to LCG Project December 2020
Plans Finalized — 5 Months After LIHTC Project Allocation

LCG Permits Secured

Closing and Construction Start - 9 Months After LIHTC Allocation
Completion and Occupancy - 15 Months After Construction Start

14



SUBMISSION PART C.

Financial Offer

Given the nature of the proposed undertaking and the urgency of the Phase 1 proposed
Parking Garage, the financial aspects of ADF-PC’s Proposal should be viewed both
separately and as a whole with Phases Il and IIl, which include Housing components
whose proposed rents are believed to fall squarely within a Downtown Market Study by
Zimmerman/Volk Associates dated October 2017 and submitted as an Exhibit to this
Proposal for LCG’s convenience.

Phase | Parking Garage.

Financing Plan. ADF-PC proposes to lease the existing Parking Garage land and
improvements for @ nominal amount in order to reduce annual operating expense and
debt service requirements. LCG will benefit in two respects, longer term on the
realization that the renovated Parking Facility will be its own following the maturity of
the lease, and shorter term through the realization that once restored the Parking Garage
will be a long-term Downtown Anchor for residential, commercial, and business office
purposes in addition to its own needs.

Offer 1:

There is a projected total redevelopment cost lor the parking garage of $4,000,000. The construction bid
does not include the redesign of the outside walls and other costs. The offer includes all 340 parking spaces
or 811,765 per space. It was determined that o renovare the exisung parking garage building rather than o
tear it down and build a new parking garage at a cost of $8.000,000 will be the most economical approach
for LCG.

Sponsor will apply for New Market Tax Credits which should yield $1,000,000 10 cover the cost 1o
renovate the 75 remaining parking spaces in the garage at no cost to the LCG, thus, prorating the leased 265
LCG parking spaces and remaining 75 parking spaces to be leased to occupants of the two apartment
buildings to be built and for commercial and business parking.

Pro Forma. See attached but highlights include $158 per month rent, a realistic operating
expenses, and loan pay off in 30 years, with possibilities of reduced rent and/or earlier
pay-off if LCG believes it could operate the Parking Garage for less expense.

The projected Phase 1 Parking Garage operating cost was determined to be $449,000 per year. This is 1o
maintain and operate the garage building based upon the following costs:

Elevator maintenance $ 10,000
Electrical power 20,000
Water and Sewerage 9500
Dumpster 3,600
Repairs 17,000
Payroll-mainienance, security, etc. 249.000
Exterminating 120
Insurance 43,040

15



Ground expenses 5,200

Reserves for repair, replacement 13,725
Payroll Taxes 44915
Mapagement Fee and accounting 25,400
Other costs 16,100

$449.,000

On the Revenue side, the Pro Forma assumes $1,320 per parking space per year or $110 per month plus debt service
of $48 per parking space, and $3,000,000 financed at 5% for 30-year amortization (85.37/1,000 borrowed payable
monthly into a sinking fund), including LCG's share for 265 spaces @ $110 plus $48 debt service = $158 per month
per space times 265 spaces = $4 1,870 per month or $502,440 per year.

Offer 2:

ADF-PC proposes 1o lcase the land and existing garage for $1,200 per year payable in advance. The LCG will
continue to own the land and parking garage subordinated to financing. At completion of the two apartment
buildings, the ADF-PC will pay LCG $250,000 for use of the other two lots.

Optional: ADF-PC and its Sponsor will also cooperate with the LCG to call for a millage
property tax election for the relevant downtown Census Tract to support the annual
operation of the garage and/or provide security for any revenue bond or other debt
services arising from the rehabilitation of the Garage. This will prevent any operating
budget impact on the present LCG budget.

Other Parking Garage Financing Options include Opportunity Zone funding, New Market
Tax Credit financing, and conventional mortgage financing, Tax Free Mortgage Revenue
Bonds (MRB’s).

Phase 11: Offices, 4 Bedroom Townhomes, and Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments:

Financing Plan. ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number 2 by developing the
land for Highest and Best Use (to the extent permissible, given LCG’s expressed interest
of providing Affordable Workforce Housing downtown. Phase II will involve the
construction of fifty eight (58) new Affordable Workforce Residences on the open
land fronting Buchanan and Convent Street and will include five (5) new 4
bedroom Townhomes, whether concurrently or not with the other Phases.

LCG will enter into a long-term surface leasehold agreement with ADF-PC for the
Workforce housing, but following discussions with LCG it will be more practical for the
five (5) new 4 bedroom Townhomes to be structured differently, to facilitate their sale to
third parties when desirable.

Pro Forma, see attached but highlights include the following proposed Rents:

Studio/Efficiency Units (5): $564
1 Bedroom Units (6): $794

2 Bedroom Units (42): $865

4 Bedroom Units (5): $1,021
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Phase 11I: Retail Rental, Business Offices and 40 Downtown Workforce Apartments. Phase 1I1I:
Retail Office Rental and Market Rate Downtown Apartments:

Financing Plan: ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number 3 by developing the
land for the Highest and Best Use by utilizing the open land fronting on Jefferson Street
to develop Retail Rental Space on the Ground Floor, Office Space on the second floor,
and forty (40) Market Rate Apartments, utilizing the Plan described elsewhere for Phase
[l (whether concurrent or not with other Phases). LCG will enter into a long-term surface
lease agreement with ADF-PC for this Phase.

Pro Forma attached, but highlights include the following proposed Rents:

| Bedroom Units (6): $751

2 Bedroom Units (25): $865

Office Rental: 7,203 square feet at $14/sq. ft. per month

Commercial: 2,600 square feet at $12/sq.ft. per month

53 Parking Spaces (13 Surface, 40 in Phase I Parking Garage) @ $158/month

: 4



Submission Part C: Financial Offer

2. Completion Guarantee

ADF-PC will accept the liability and responsibility for the Redevelopment and
Operations of the properties being developed, whether as Phase I, Phase II, or Phase II1.

CDI notes that its Architect has Errors and Omissions Liability Coverage (evidence
available on request) and the Contractor will be fully insured and bonded, and LCG can
be listed as Additional Insureds should the proposed Project proceed. These
safeguards and others (e.g., monthly draws, consiruction retainages, and oversight by
other public and private funders) should be adequate to ensure completion. However,

Sponsor would be willing to discuss further should it be selected in response to this
RFP.
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SUBMISSION PART D. FINANCING CAPACITY AND
CAPABILITY DOCUMENTATION

|. Offeror’s Real Estate Portfolio

See Exhibits listing CDI projects (excluding St. Landry Homes, described below),
including CDI Audit and Team Bios.

2. Recent History

Co-Sponsors CDI and LCE (especially LCE) and Contractor Lemoine Companies have
experience with projects exceeding $5,000,000, including in Lafayette. Details follow.

CDI - Sponsor

Sponsor CDI has a more than ten year history developing and redeveloping infill sites and other
properties, including in Lafayette.

In Lafayette, it has produced with other nonprofit organizations in a series of 7 Phases multifamily
housing developments of comparable size known collectively as Maison de la Paix situated on Hogan
Drive, not far from Madeline Avenue and the intersection of University and West Willow Avenues. It is
believe that in toto the Total Development Cost of all Phases approaches $5,000,000.

In Opelousas, CDI is the nonprofit General Partner of a 32 unit LIHTC project with Total Development
Costs of some $3,200,000.

Elsewhere it has developed or co-developed, or is in the course of developing or co-developing more than
25 single family housing units in diverse areas with Total Development Costs approaching $5,000,000. )

Le Centre Evangeline Corporation — Co-Sponsor

Co-Sponsor LCE also has a more than ten year history developing and redeveloping infill sites and other
properties, including in Lafayette. The focus below is on some of the multifamily workforce housing and
senior projects it played a role in developing in Lafayette and throughout Acadiana exceeding $5,000,000
in Total Development Costs and using funds like those contemplated for Phases I and III:

*Village du Lac/Rue Du Lac, 200 Unit Preservation Rehab, Lafayette, $5.091,154, Completion 2016
* Holy Family Apartments, 160 Unit Preservation Rehab, Lafayette, $20,141.245, Completion 2016
*Village Duchesne, 78 Unit Preservation Rehab, Sunset, $4,584,199, Completion 2015

*Cypress Gardens, 100 unit Preservation Rehab, St. Martinville, $9,458,188, Current (Awaiting Closing)
*Beau Sejour Estates, 105 Unit Preservation Rehab, Carencro, $7,929.074, Completion 2018

*Gabriel Villa, 64 Unit Preservation Rehab, Ville Platte, $7,315.998, Completion 2017

Lemoine Companies
PARKING GARAGES

19



Lewis Street Garage at ULL, Lafayette, $17.858.613, Completion 2014
WW II Museum Parking Garage, New Orleans, $8.669,259, Completion 2016
NGD Garage, Baton Rouge, $3,135,206, Completion 2018

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE SPACE
The Advocate Office Building, Baton Rouge, $11,730,071, Completion 2015
Partners Property Office Building, Lafayette, $3,979,705, Completion 2017
Century Tower, Monroe, $18.566,558, Completion 2017

MULTIFAMILY/TOWNHOMES
Baton Rouge Townhomes, Baton Rouge, $4,101,580, Completion 2017

(S ]

Bank References

Evangeline Bank & Trust Company

497 West Main Street
Ville Platte, Louisiana 70586

Nick Veillon, Vice President and Loan Officer

337-363-5541

MidSouth Bank

930 South Union Street
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570
Ashley Burleigh
337-942-1980

Washington State Bank

1810 South Union Street
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570
Latasha Aggison, Branch Manager
337-948-4544

Statements

See accompanying.
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Buchanan Redevelopment Site Proposal

SUBMISSION PART A. OFFEROR TEAM, KEY PERSONNEL,
EXPERIENCE, PERFORMANCE

1. Offeror Proposed Team
a. Offeror Identification

Proposal Sponsor: Community Directions, Inc., 130-A West South Street,
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570. David LaHaye, CEO.
Tax Identification Number (TIN): 72-1479351

Proposal Co-Sponsor, Le Centre Evangeline Corporation (LCE)., 130-B West
South Street, Opelousas, Louisiana 70570. Mark W. Tolson, CEO, 337-351-3763.
Tax Identification Number (TIN): 72-0818737

Single Primary Point of Contact as Required by RFP: Mark W. Tolson,
Development Consultant, 337-351-3763

Affiliations/Relationships: Other than Development Team

Members identified in Section (d.) below, CDI intends to sponsor the

formation of at least one nonprofit corporation, “ADF Properties Corporation,” to
act as a general partner to develop, own and manage the five (5) major
components envisioned by this Redevelopment Project: its Parking Garage;
Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments; Downtown Apartments;

Office Space; and ground floor Retail Space.

For purposes of this Offer, we shall call the Developer, proposed Owner and
operating entity *ADF Properties Corporation™ (or “ADF-PC").

b. Offeror’s Organizational Structure

CDI and LCE are this Project’s Sponsors, and ADF-PC will be the vehicle
established to fulfill CDI's, LCE’s and LCG's Mission. As stated above, additional
LLC or LP entities shall be formed to develop, own and manage the various Phases
proposed in conjunction with the Buchanan Redevelopment Site.

c. Offeror’s Legal Structure
See above. The “ADF Properties Corporation” per se will be a Louisiana
nonprofit corporation, but Ownership entities financed in party with Low Income

Housing Tax Credit or New Market Tax Credit equity, as required, will likely
take the form of an LLC or LP.

d. Offeror’s (3) References:



(=]

Bishop Al Gatlin. Church of God in Christ, 701 East Pinhook Road,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70501. 337-232-6958

Kathy Laborde, Gulf Coast Housing Partnership, 1610 Oretha Castle
Haley Blvd., New Orleans, Louisiana

Reverend Willie Maynard, Seventh District Pavilion, Inc. and President
Emeritus, Greater Louisiana Baptist Convention, 225 North Avenue C,
Crowley, Louisiana 70526. 337-788-3103.

(Referring to page 17 of the RFP, ADF-PC will not only execute the definitive
agreement, but will control or have financial liability for the project.)

e. Identification of the Offeror Team (members)

(08 ]

10.

Sponsor: Community Directions, Inc., 130-A West South Street,
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570. Phillip G. Bourgeois, President. David
LaHaye, CEO, 337-459-6801. (Owner for Current Purposes: ADF-PC)

Co-Sponsor:  Le Centre Evangeline Corporation, attn.: Mark
Tolson, CEO and Development Consultant, 337-351-3763

Developer, Owner: ADF Properties Corporation (ADF-PC), 225 Jesse
Street, Opelousas, Louisiana 70570, John Lamke, President, 337- Mark
Tolson, Development Consultant, 337-351-3763

General Contractor: Lemoine Companies, 214 Jefferson St #200,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70501. Mike Rice, Vice President, 337-896-7720

Legal: Mahtook & LaFleur, 1000 Chase Tower, 600 Jefferson Street,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70501. Eric LaFleur, 337-266-2189

Architects:  Cory Saft, Project Architect, 202 Whittington Drive,
Lafayette, Louisiana 70503. 337-849-5422. Ardoin Architecture, 130
West South Street, Opelousas, 70570, Brodie Ardoin, 337-948-  1202.
Financial: Evangeline Bank and Trust Company, 497 West Main Street,
Ville Platte, Louisiana 70586. Nick LaHaye, Vice President. 337-363-
5541. (Potential LIHTC, NMTC, Opportunity Zone Investor Supple,
LLC; also other Investors/Syndicators TBD)

Organization Chart (attached as an Exhibit)

Qualifications of Offeror’s Primary Team Members (attached as Exhibit)

Roles of Team Members and Prior Relationships with the Offeror.
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See Submission Part B: Redevelopment Proposal.

CDI's Team Members have worked together on projects for more than 50
years. In fact, Lemoine Construction was a small contractor until it and Jack
Tolson worked together. As the organizational chart shows, CDI's practice is
to supply the vision for projects it chooses to participate in. It recruits
architects, development consultants, contractors and others who have the
capacity to perform.  This is no exception. It recruited its Development
Consultant as a Co-Sponsor and with it considered a number of choices before
deciding to work with Lemoine Construction, given its considerable capacity
and wide range of experience, including constructing parking garages,
multifamily housing, office and retail spaces. Sponsors have seen nothing to
reduce their confidence in Lemoine, whose submission as part of this Proposal
is truly impressive. CDI has also previously worked with the other team
members, including Co-Sponsor Le Centre Evangeline Corporation, which
has been instrumental in facilitating projects consisting of more than $100
Million in Total Development Costs, and with both architects, Ardoin
Architecture and Professor Cory Saft.

Offeror’s Experience and Past Performance

Sponsor Community Directions, Inc.(CDI) is well known to

the Lafayette Consolidated Government (LCG), having worked with its
Community Development Office to develop affordable workforce apartments. It
has also done similar work elsewhere in Acadiana.

Development Consultant Le Centre Evangeline Corporation is also well known to
LCG for its work in connection with numerous nonprofits, including CDI,
Acadiana Development Foundation, Seventh District Pavilion, Inc., and the
Diocese of Lafayette to name several of its clients.

The RFP at page 18 requests specifics concerning details on at least three (3)
projects completed over the past 10 years each with similar development cost and
scale of the proposed redevelopment project. Those specifics, starting with the
CDI but also including its General Contractor, Architect, and Development
Consultant are incorporated as exhibits to this Proposal.

See Exhibits submitted with this Proposal.



Offeror Proposed Team
a. Offeror Identification
b. Offeror’s Organizational Structure
c. Offeror’s Legal Structure
d. Offeror’s References

e. Identification of the Offeror Team (members)



Community Directions, Inc.
(A Louisiana IRS 501 (c)(3) Nonprofit Corporation and CHDO)

BOARD MEMBERS

PHILLIP G. BOURGEOQIS, PRESIDENT
LINDA JEFFERSON, SECRETARY
GARY BEHRINGER. VICE PRESIDENT
MARK DUCOTE, PARLIAMENTARIAN

Primary Point of Contact:
David LaHaye
Ville Platte, LA 70586

(337)459-6801
David.lahave/w email.com

Tax Identification Number:

72-1479351

Affiliations:

Post Office Box 172

Opelousas, LA 70571-0172

(337) 948-1294 fax 942-2768

None pertaining to this project except as described in the narrative.

DOROTHY HOLLOWAY, TREAS
BILL THOMPSON
MARILYN THOMPSON



(Q\ LeCentre Evangeline Corporation

130 West South Street
Opelousas, LA 70570
Phone (337)948-6301
Fax (337) 942-2768

Primary Point of Contact:
Mark Tolson

See above address
mwtolson@yahoo.com

Tax Identification Number:
72-0818737

Affiliations:

None pertaining to this project except as described in the narrative.






Community Directions, Inc.
(A Louisiana IRS 501 (¢)}(3) Nonprofit Corporation and CHDO)

Post Office Box 172

Opelousas, LA 70571-0172
(337) 948-1294 fax 942-2768

ROARD MEMBERS

PHILLIP G BOURGEQIS, PRESIDENT DOROTHY HOLLOWAY, TREAS.
L.INDA JEFFERSON, SECRETARY BILL THOMPSON

GARY BEHRINGER, VICE PRESIDENT MARILYN THOMPSON

MARK DUCOTE. PARLIAMENTARIAN

Names of and contact information for principals:
Please see attached Board of Directors
Number of Employees:

2 employees plus 3 Development Team members, 2 Design team members and 4 Property Team
members on an as needed basis.

Annual business revenues:

$218,279. Varies. Please see attached audit.



Community Directions, Inc. ~ Board of Directors

Phillip G. Bourgeois, President (12/14/2017 — 12/31/2020)
2115 N. University Ave.

Lafayette, LA 70507 (Lafayette Parish)

337-261-1949 —cell 212-9151

Gary Behringer, Vice President (1/24/17 to 1/23/20)

158 Richard Kolder Lane

Opelousas, LA 70570 (St. Landry Parish)

337-948-1809 cell 305-4324 Behrs2_gnb@charter.net

Linda Jefferson, Sec. (1/24/17 to 1/23/20)
422 S. Court St.

Opelousas, LA 70570 (St. Landry Parish)
cell 504-460-8992

Jan. 2019

Dorothy Holloway, Treasurer/Asst. Sec. (12/14/2017 - 12/31/2020)

906 Eddins Ave.
Opelousas, LA 70570 (St. Landry Parish)
337-942-9618

Marilyn Thompson, Director (1/1/19 to 12/31/21)
200 Oak Path Dr.

Carencro, LA 70520 (Lafayette Parish)
337-945-4937  MYoung6510@aol.com

Mark Ducote (1/1/19 to 12/31/21)

407 Timber Creek Drive

Lafayette, LA 70506 (Lafayette Parish)
337-984-5653 cell 344-2462

Bill Thompson (12/14/2017 - 12/31/2020)
200 Oak Path Drive

Carencro, LA 70520 (Lafayette Parish)
337-945-1844  Watiii8283@gmail.com

Danny Saucier (7/16/18 to 12/31/21)
2227 W. Landry St.
Opelousas, LA 70570

337-351-4025 (c) 942-4279 (h)

David LaHaye, CEO
1577 W. Main St.
Ville Platte. LA 70586
337-459-6801  david.lahaye@gmail.com



COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
FINANCIAL REPORT

DECEMBER 31, 2017
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VIGE, TUJAGUE &% NOEL

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
151 N 2= STREET

P O BOX 1006
EUNICE. LOUISIANA 70535
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR ,CPA, TELEPHONE
FRANK G. TUJAGUE, C.PA 337-457-9324
DOMINIQUE M NOEL,CP.A

FAX
337-457-8743

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Community Directions, Inc.
Opclousas, Louisiana

Report of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Directions, Inc. (a
nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31.
2017, and the related statement of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and mainienance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements arc free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures io obtain audit cvidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss
of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statcments.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Directions, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation), as of December
31, 2017, and the changes in its net asscts and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary information referred to in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived {rom and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accouniing and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. [n our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated August
6, 2018 on our consideration of Community Dircctions, Inc.’s internal control over [inancial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with centain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Community Directions, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Vige, Tujague & Noél, CPA’s
Eunice, Louisiana
August 6, 2018
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

1000 ASSETS
1100 CURRENT ASSETS
1120 Cash - Community Directions, Inc. $ 44,678
1121 Cash - Maison De La Paix, Phase 1 156
1122 Cash - Park Ridge Apartments, Phasc 3 1,278
1123 Cash - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 2478
1124 Cash - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 5 916
1125 Cash - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 6 813
1121 Construction cash account 8,746
1130 Tenant accounts receivable 1,145
1140 Accounts and notes receivable — operations 401,351
1145 Accounts and notes receivable — entity 22913
1200 Prepaid expenses 3,074
11007 Total current assets 487,548
1191 TENANT DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST
1191  Tenant security deposits - Maison De La Paix, Phase | 1,531
1192 Tenant security deposits - Park Ridge Apartments, Phasc 3 2,994
1193 Tenant security deposits - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 - 970
1191T Total security deposits 5,495
1300 FUNDED RESERVES
1310 Escrow deposits - Park Ridge Apartments. Phase 3 4518
1320 Replacement reserves - Maison De La Paix, Phase | 9,428
1321  Replacement reserves - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 3 5,400
1322 Replacement reserves - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 100
1300T Total deposits 19,446
1400 FIXED ASSETS
1410 Land (Nondepreciable) 156,000
1420 Buildings 3,297,652
1421 Rent houses 173,572
1440  Building equipment (portable) 15,850
1490 Misc. fixed assets 3,800
1400T Total fixed assects 3,646,874
1495  Accumulated depreciation (182,831)
1400N Net fixed assets 3,464,043
1000T Total assets § 3,976,532

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

2000 LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
2100 CURRENT LIABILITIES

2111  Accounts payable — Maison De La Paix. Phase | $ 500
2112 Accounts payable - CHDO 52,415
2111  Accounts payablk - construction 249,845
2123  Accrued management fecs payable - Maison De La Paix, Phase | 204
2170 Mortgage payable - first mortgage 4,425
2172 Other mortgages payable 293,752
2210  Prepaid revenue 9

2122T Total current liabilities 601,157

2191 TENANT DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST (contra)

2191 Tenant security deposits - Maison De La Paix, Phase 1 1,500
2192 Tenant security deposits - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 3 2,603
2193 Tenant security deposits - Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 870

2191T Total security deposits 4,973

2300 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

2320 Mortgage payable - HOML 2,195,886
2322 Other mortgages payable 97,487
2323 Other loans and notes payabk 6,414
23007 Total long-term liabilities 2,299,787
2000T Total labilities 2,905,917

3130 NET ASSETS

3131 Unrestricted Net Assels 320.615
3132 Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 750,000
3130 Total net assets 1,070,615
20337 Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,976,532

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

REVENUES

5120 Rent revenue - apartments gross potential § 78,280
5130 Rent houses and deposits 13,804

5100T Total rent revenue 92,084
5220 Vacancies — apartments (2,617)
5250 Rental concesstons (3)

52007 Total vacancies (2,620)

5152N Net rental revenue 89,464
5410 Financial revenue - project operations 3
5480 Revenue from interest - notes receivable 2,163

5400T Total financial revenue 2,166
5920 Tenant charges 998
5970  HUD operating grant 55,076
5980 CHDO grant 50,000
5990 Miscellaneous revenue 20,570

5900T Total other revenue 126,644

5000T Total revenue 218,274

EXPENSES

6203 Conventions and meetings 415
6300 Administrative expenses 44,795
6311  Office expenses 1,845
6312  Office rent 800
6320 Management fee 5,066
6330 Manager salaries 3,100
6340 Legal expense - project 70
6341  Development expenses 6.467
6351 Bookkeeping and accounting fees 4,448
6390 Miscellancous administrative services 1,067

6263 T Total administrative expenses 68,073

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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6450

6510
6515
6520
6525
6543
6546
6570
6580
6590

6711
6720
6721
6722
6790

6820

6920

6600

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Utilities
64007 Total utilities expense

Payroll

Supplies

Contracts

Garbage and trash removal

Rent house repats

Heatimg/coolng repairs and mamtenance

Vehicle operation/travel

Leasc payments

Miscellaneous repairs and maintenance expenses
6500T Total operating and mainienance cxpenses

Payroll taxes

Property and liability msurance

Fidelity bond insurance

Workmen's compensation

Miscellancous taxes, licenses and permils
67001 Total taxes and msurance

Interest on mortgage payable
680071 Total fimancial expenses

Supportive services
6900T Total program expenses
60001 Total cost of operations before depreciation

5060T Change in unrestricted ret assets
before depreciation and amortization

Depreciation expense

3250 Change in unrestricted net assets

366
1,447
5,482
1,500
3,222
1,412
1,278

40,450
2,248
57,605

176
11,610
257
560
10

12,613

9,706
9,706

12,440
12,440
165,812

52,091
3 371

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

S1100-060 Previous year unrestricted net assets $ 265,812

§1100-065 Other changes in unrestricted net asscls -

prior period adjustment 54,432
$1100-060 Previous year unrestricted net assets - restated 320,244
3250 Change in unrestricted net assels 371
3131 Unrestricted net assets, end of year $ 320,615

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating receipts:
S1200-010 Rental receipts
S1200-020 Interest receipts
S1200-030  Other operating receipts
S1200-040 Total receipts
Operating disbursements:
S$1200-050 Administrative
$1200-070 Management fees
§1200-090  Utilties
S1200-100 Salaries and wages
S1200-110  Operating and mamtenance
S1200-150  Miscellancous taxes and insurance
$1200-160  Tenant security deposits
S1200-170  Other operating expenses
$1200-180  Interest on mortgage
S1200-225  Construction disbursements

S1200-230 Total disbursements
S1200-240 Net cash provided (uscd) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

S1200-245
S51200-245
$1200-250
51200250
S1200-330

Deposits to the escrow account
Withdrawals from the escrow account
Deposits to replacement reserves
Withdrawals from the replacement reserves
Purchases of fixed assets

S1200-350 Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

$1200-360
$1200-365
S1200-430
S1200-430
§1200-450

Mortgage principal payments

Proceeds from mortgages. boans or notes payable
Other fmancing activities - accounts receivable
Other financing activities - accounts payable
Other financing activities - prior period adjustment

S1200-460 Nect cash provided (used) in financing activities
S1200-470 Net increase (decrease) m cash
S1200-480 Cash, beginning of year

$1200T Cash, end of year

$ 90318
2,166

126,644
219,128

(42,582)
(5373)
(5,073)
(3,666)

(57,039)

(12,802)

(177

(12,440)

(9,706)

245,845

100,985

320,113

(6)

2,500
(3,702)
610
(1,496,163)

(1,496,763)

(52,750)
1,538,574
(327,755)

{21,518)

54,432
1,190,983
14,333

44,732

$ 59,065

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

Reconciliation of net loss to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

3250 Change in net assets $ 37l
Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
6600 Depreciation expense 52,091
Decrease (increase) in -
$1200-490  Accounts receivable - tenants 1.060
$1200-520 Prepaid expenses 2,694
$1200-530 Cash restricted for tenant security deposils 43
Increase (decrease) in -
§1200-540  Accounts payable 14,933
S1200-560 Accrued liabilities (498)
S$1200-580 Tenant security deposits held in trust (220)
S$1200-590  Prepaid revenue (2006)
S1200-605 Entity/Construction liability accounts 249,845
$1200-610 Net cash provided (used) by operating activities § 320,113
Beginning Cash, January 1, 2017
Community Directions, Inc. 3 41,053
Maison De La Paix, Phase | 586
Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 3 2,891
Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 100
Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 5 160

Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 6 -
Construction Cash Account

Total Beginning Cash, January [, 2017 44,732
Ending Cash, December 31, 2017
Community Directions, Inc. 44.678
Maison De La Paix, Phase | 156
Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 3 1,278
Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 2,478
Park Ridge Apartments. Phase 3 916
Park Ridge Apariments, Phase 6 813
Construction Cash Account 8,746
Total Ending Cash, December 31, 2017 59,065
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $ 14,333

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Note 1.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and presentation:

Community Directions, Inc. is a nonprofit corporation organized under Louisiana
law to provide housing facilities and services to the elderly, handicapped, and
substance-dependent persons of Opelousas, St. Landry Parish, Louisiana. The
programs of the organization are designed to meet the physical, social, and
psychological needs as well as promote the health, security, happiness and
uscfulness of those individuals qualifying for assistance.

The Organization is administered by a seven-member board of directors. Members
of the board serve three year terms.

Under the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has direct responsibility for administering
low-rent and supportive housing programs in the United States. Accordingly, HUD
has entered into two supportive housing grants with the organization for the purpose
of assisting the organization in the leasing of housing units as well as the providing
of supportive services and the payment of administrative costs associated with the
programs. These grants are the Organizations nonmajor programs.

The Organization's major program is its HOML Investment Partnership Program,
which it has entered into with the Louisiana Housing Corporation for the purpose of
developing a low income housing complex.

Accounting policies and practices:

The accounting and reporting policics of Community Directions, Inc. (a nonprofit
corporation), conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and the requirements of the United States Department of Housing
and Urban Development. The following is a description of certain significant
accounting policies and practices:

Method of accounting:

The accrual method of accounting is used for financial statement purposes.

Cash and cash equivalents:

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash

10
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Note 1.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

equivalents. The Organization has no cash equivalents at December 31, 2017. All
cash is adequately insured by FDIC.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of credit risk:

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to significant
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, investments and tenant
receivables.

The Organization places its cash and investments with high quality financial
institutions. At times such amounts may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits. The
Organization does not have a policy of requiring collateral to support the accounts
subject 1o credit risk. Credit risk with respect 1o tenant receivables is gencrally
diversified duc to a large number of tenants; however, the Organization’s tenant
basc is limited to Opelousas, Louisiana and the surrounding area.

Property and depreciation:

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Additions or improvements are
capitalized. Repairs and maintenance that do not materially increase values or
extend useful lives are expended. Cost and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts when assets are sold or retired. The resulting pains or losses are
included in income.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note I.  Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method
of depreciation primarily over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Land Non depreciable
Buildings 40
Rent houses 25
Building equipment (portable) 7-10
Miscellancous fixed assets 5-20

The Organization’s capitalization policy is to capitalize purchases of property and
equipment whose cost exceeds $500.

Income taxes:

Community Directions, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation) has been granted an
exemption from income taxes as a nonprofil corporation under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Intemal Revenue Code.

Distributions:

The Organization’s regulatory agreement with HUD stipulates, among other things,
that the Organization will not make distributions of assets or income to any of its
officers or directors.

Rental income:

Rental income and receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting
bascd on 100% occupancy. Payments made by tenants in advance of the months for
which such payments are due are recorded as deferred liabilities until such time as
the advance payments are applied against offsetting receivables for rent.

No allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded as management believes tenant
security deposits should cover any amount duc to the Organization. Any bad debts
are charged off as they become worthless.

Advertising:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was 30 for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

12



Note 1.

Note 2.

Note 3.

Note 4.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Restricted deposits:

Under the regulatory agreement, the Organization is required to set aside amounts
for the replacement of property and other Organization expenditures in restricted
depository accounts. Disbursements from these accounts require approval from the
regulatory agency. These restricted accounts, which approximate $14,928 at
December 31, 2017, are held in separate accounts and generally are not available
for operating purposes. The Reserve for Replacement account was short from the
required deposit in the amount of $600. This was deposited in the 2018.

Compensation of Board Members
All board members serve without compensation.
Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses include items paid in advance that will benefit or are associated
with another period.

Unrestricted Net Assets

Except for thosc reserved for capital assets, none of the Organization’s net assets
are subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, all net assets are accounted
for as unrestricted net assets.

Federal Financial Assistance

At December 31, 2017, the Organization had programs which qualified as federal
financial assistance. During the fiscal year, the Organization received $55,076 in
the form of HUD Supportive Housing Grants and $50,000 in Community Housing
Development Organization (CHDO) grants.

Management Fees

Community Directions, Inc. owns and operates Maison De La Paix, Part | and Park
Ridge Apartments, Phase 3. Both projects are managed by an independent
management company. Monthly management fees for Maison De La Paix, Part |
are equal to $34 per unit per month. Monthly management fees for Park Ridge
Apartments, Phase 3 were equal to $40 per unit per month until July 2016 when
they became $34 per unit per month. Management fees for the year ended
December 31, 2017 totaled $5,066.

13



q‘c‘

Note §.

Note 6.

Note 7.

Note 8.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Concentrations

Community Directions, Inc. owns and operates Maison De La Paix, Part [, 2 6-unit
apartment complex located in Lafayette, Louisiana, Park Ridge Apartments, Phase
3 and 4, two 6-unit apartment complexes located in Opelousas, Louisiana, Park
Ridge Apartments, Phases 5 and 6, and Ville Platte Housing Units, which are
currently under construction. The Project’s operations are concentrated in the
multifamily real estate market. In addition, the Project operates in a heavily
regulated environment. The operations of the Project are subject to the
administrative directives, rules, and regulations of federal, state, and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, The Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). Such administrative directives, rules, and regulations
are subject to change by an act of congress or an administrative change mandated
by HUD. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay
for related costs, including any additional administrative burden, to comply with a
change.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenditures incurred in connection with the organizations operations and
expenditures made for corporate purposes have been summarized on functional
basis in the statement of activities.

Evaluation of Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through August 6, 2018, the date
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

Accounts Receivable - Account 1140

Community Directions, Inc. sold one of its rehabilitated homes to Ramona Vidrine
on June 14, 2012 for $45,000. Community Directions, Inc. holds the mortgage note
on the property. The home needed some major repairs that were funded by
Community Directions, Inc. during the year ending December 31, 2016. Afier these
repairs were made the home was refinanced to include the cost of the repairs
($9,164) and set a lower interest rate. The new terms of the financing arrangement
are for payments of $370 per month, including interest at 4.25% per annum and 386
per month for insurance escrow, for 300 months with the first payment beginning
January 1, 2016. The balance of this note is included in account 1140.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 9. Related Party Transactions - Account 1145 and 2323

Community Directions, Inc. has amounts in accounts 1145 and 2323 that are due
to/from other entities under its control. A summary of the transactions in the
accounts are as follows:

Account 1145 Accounts Receivablke - Related Partics

Beginning Balance (01/01/2017) S 43934
Payments from related parties (21,905)
Payments to related parties 884
Ending Balance (12/31/2017) $ 22913
Account 2323 Loans Payabl - Related Parties
Beginning Balance (01/01/2017) $ 27,934
Proceeds from related parties 385
Payments to related parties (21,505)
Endmng Balance (12/31/2017) $ 6414

Note 10. Mortgage Payable - Banks

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a morigage from Bancorp South in the
amount of $150,000, dated February 17, 2014, to help fund the construction of
Maison De La Paix, Part 1. The mortgage is payable monthly in the amount of 3810
with an interest of 5% per annum and is secured by the apartment complex
Maturities of the mortgage note arc as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Total Principal Interest
2018 § 9,724 § 2756 § 6,968
2019 98,299 97,487 812

$ 108,023  § 100,243 § 7,780

Activity on the mortgage for the current year is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
$ 104,760 3 - $ (4,517) 3 100,243
Total $ 100,243
Less Short-term (2,756)
Long-term Debt $ 97487

15



COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 11.  Mortgage Payable - HOME
Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 3

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a HOME loan in the amount of $750,000 to
help fund the construction of Park Ridge Apartments, Part 3. The loan bears an
interest rate of 0% and is payable annually in the amount of $4,000 for 30 years at
which time the loan will balloon at the existing principle balance. The annual
payment is subject to the availability of surplus cash. Maturities of the loan are as

follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Total Principal Interest
2018 $ 1669 § 1669 § -
2019 4,000 4,000 -
2020 4,000 4,000 -
2021 4,000 4,000 -

2022 - 2026 20,000 20,000 -

2027 - 2031 20,000 20,000 -

2032 - 2036 20,000 20,000 -

2037 - 2041 20,000 20,000

2042 - 2046 20,000 20,000
2047 633,105 633,105 -

$ 746,774 $ 746,774 S -

Activity on the mortgage for the current year is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
§ 750,000 $ - $ (3,226) $746,774
Total $ 746,774
Less Short-term (1,669)
Long-term Debt $ 745,105

Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 4

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a HOME loan in the amount of $623,000,
dated November 18, 2016, for a term of 20 years, secured by a mortgage on Park

Ridge Apartments, Phase 4.
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Note 11.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Mortgage Payable - HOME (continued)

Simple interest under this IOME Note shall be computed at 2.75% per annum on
the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year consisting of twelve (12) thirty
(30) day months.

Payments of interest and principal under this HOME Note shall be made in annual
installments to be paid to LHC on or before April | of each calendar year of the
HOME Loan Term commencing November 18, 2017 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Payment Date”). Each Annual Installment shall equal seventy five percent (75%)
of Surplus Cash to be paid solely from Surplus Cash to the extent Surplus Cash is
generated from the operation of the Project. Notwithstanding the foregoing to the
contrary, all outstanding Indebtedness under this HOME Note is due on the
Maturity Date.

In any year in which there is no Surplus Cash to pay accrued interest on this HOME
Note, any accrued but unpaid interest on this HOME Note shall not be added to or
become part of the unpaid principal balance of this HOME Note but shall be paid
first in any subsequent year from available Surplus Cash prior to any distribution of
Surplus Cash to the Borrower in such year, until the accrued but unpaid interest on
this HOME Note is paid. The total amount drawn on this loan was $518,913 as of
December 31, 2017, which includes accrued construction costs in the amount of
$60,354.

Park Ridge Apaniments, Phase 5

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a HOME loan in the amount of $625,000,
dated November 18, 2016, for a term of 20 years, secured by a mortgage on Park
Ridge Apartments, Phase 5.

Simple interest under this HOME Note shall be computed at 2.73% per annum on
the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) day year consisting of twelve (12) thinty
(30) day months.

Payments of interest and principal under this HOME Note shall be made in annual
instaliments to be paid to LHC on or before April 1 of each calendar year of the
HOME Loan Term commencing November 18, 2017 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Payment Date™). Each Annual Installment shall equal seventy five percent (75%)
of Surplus Cash to be paid solely from Surplus Cash to the extent Surplus Cash is
generated from the operation of the Project. Notwithstanding the foregoing to the

contrary, all outstanding Indebtedness under this HOME Note is due on the
Maturity Date.



Note 11.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Mortgage Payable - HOMLE (continued)

In any year in which there is no Surplus Cash to pay accrued interest on this HOME
Note, any accrued but unpaid interest on this HOME Note shall not be added to or
become part of the unpaid principal balance of this HOME Note but shall be paid
first in any subsequent year from available Surplus Cash prior to any distribution of
Surplus Cash (o the Borrower in such year. Until the acerued but unpaid interest on
this HOME Note is paid. The total amount drawn on this loan was $320,630 as of
December 31, 2017, which includes an accrued construction costs in the amount of
$34,976.

Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 6

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a HOME loan in the amount of §1,335,688,
dated August 25, 2017, for a term of 30 years, secured by a mortgage of the real
eslate.

The principal amount of the HOME Loan is $1,335,688, bearing interest at the rate
of zero percent (0.0%), computed on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of
twelve 30-day months, and shall be repaid in annual installments on or before April
1 of each calendar year of the Term equal to fifty percent (50%) of Surplus Cash.

I Surplus Cash is ncgative in any year during the Term of the HOME Loan, no
annual payment shall be duc for that year, but simple interest shall continue to
accrue at the interest rate on the principal balance of the IOME Note.

The total amount drawn on this loan was $433,608, which included accrued
construction costs in the amount of $162,553.

VPTA

Community Directions, Inc. acquired 2 HOME loan in the amount of $473,406,
dated August 23, 2017, for a term of 30 years, secured by a mortgage of the real
estate.

The principal amount of the HOME Loan is $473,406, bearing interest at the rate of
zero percent (0.0%), computed on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve
30-day months, and shall be repaid in annual installments on or before April 1 of
each calendar year of the Term equal to fifty percent (50%) of Surplus Cash.

If Surplus Cash is negative in any year during the Term of the HOME Loan, no

annual payment shall be due for that year, but simple interest shall continue 10
accrue at the interest rate on the principal balance of the [IOME Note.
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Note 11.

Note 12.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Morigage Payable - HOME (continued)

The total amount drawn on this lean was $177,630, which included accrued
construction costs in the amount of $52,315.

Activity on the HOME loans for the current year is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Park Ridge 3 $ 750,000 b - § (3226) $ 746,774
Park Ridge 4 - 518,913 - 518,913
Park Ridge 5 - 320,630 - 320,630
Park Ridge 6 - 433,608 - 433,608
VPTA - 177,630 - 177,630
$ 750,000 $ 1,450,781 $§ (3,226) § 2,197,555
Total $ 2,197,555
Less Short-term (1,669)
Long-term Debt $ 2,195,886

Other Mortgages Payable — short term

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a line of credit from Mid South Bank, in the
amount of $195,000, to help fund the construction of Park Ridge Apartments, Phase
3. The line of credit bears a variable interest rate that is 1.75% over the index. As of
December 31, 2017, the interest rate is 5.0% and the balance on the line of credit is
$55,074.

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a line of credit from Lvangeline Bank, in the
amount of $140,000, to help fund the construction of Park Ridge Apartments, Phase
4. As of December 31, 2017, the interest rate is 5.0% and the balance on the line of
credit is $95,815.

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a line of credit from Evangeline Bank, in the
amount of $140,000, to help fund the construction of Park Ridge Apartments, Phase
5. As of December 31, 2017, the interest rate is 3.0% and the balance on the line of
credit is $62,641.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 12.  Other Mortgages Payable - short term (continued)

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a line of credit from Evangeline Bank, in the
amount of $75,000, to help fund the construction of VPTA. As of December 31,
2017, the interest rate is 5.0% and the balance on the line of credit is $9,829.

Community Directions, Inc. acquired a line of credit from Evangeline Bank, in the
amount of $75,000, to help fund the construction of Park Ridge Apartments, Phase
6. As of December 31, 2017, the interest rate is 5.0% and the balance on the line of
credit is $70,393.

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
$ 250,966 $ 87,793 § (45,007) $ 293,752

Note 13.  Grants

Prior to 2017, the Corporation received a HOME grant, in the amount of $600,000,
for the construction of Maison De La Paix 1. The terms and conditions shall apply
for a period of up to two hundred forty (240) months from the effective date of this
Agreement, March 1, 2011, in accordance with the minimum periods of
affordability outlined in the Grant Agreement. The period is based upon a total of
Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000) in HOME funds having been invested in
the Property (HOME Investment). This period of affordability will continue for the
stated number of years regardless of any resale, transfer or vacancy of the Property,
provided that no additional HOME funds are invested in the Property during this
period. In the event that additional HOME funds are invested in the Property
during this period, this covenant shall be amended to substitute a new period of
affordability based on the additional HOME investment.

Maison De La Paix [ also received a CDBG in May 2012, in the amount of
$1350,000, through the City of Lafayette, as a subrecipient of HUD. The entity must
maintain records documenting compliance with the national objective of low and
moderate income benefits as required by 24CFR 570.208(a)(2).
These grants are recorded as temporarily restricted net assets.

Note 4. Prior Period Adjustment
Beginning net position has been restated by $54,432 to record @ Community

Housing Development Organization operating expense grant that was not accrued
in the prior year.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Attachment |.  Schedule of Changes in Fixed Assets

Description

l.and (Non depreciable)
Building

Rent houses

Building equipment - portable

Miscellaneous fixed assets

Assels

Balance Balance
12/31/2016 Additions Deductions 12/31/2017
A 112,000 $ 44,000 $ $ 156,000
1,852,202 1,445,450 - 3,297,652
173,572 - 173,572
9,135 6,715 15,850
3,800 - - 3,800
$ 2,150,709 § 1,496,165 § $ 3,646,874

1~
(9]



Accumulated Depreciation

Book

Balince Balance Value
12/3172016 Additions Deductions  12/312017  12/3122017
$ - h) - $ A § 156,000
107,905 44.330 - 152,235 3,145,417
20,549 7,041 27,590 145,982
1,605 530 2,135 13,715
681 190 . 871 2939
$ 130,740 § 52,091 S - $ 182,831 §3,464,043
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Attachment 2.

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Replacement Reserves

In accordance with the provisions of the regulatory agreement for both Maison
De La Paix, Phase | and Park Ridge Apartments, Phase 3, deposits in the
amount of $150 are to be made monthly into a separate reserve for replacement
fund for the replacement of property. All withdrawals are subject to the
approval.

A summary of transactions in the reserve for replacement account for Maison
De L.a Paix, Phase 1 is as follows:

1320P Balance, January 01, 2017 3 8,236
1320DT Total monthly deposits 1,200
1320INT Interest deposits 2
13200WT Other Withdrawals (10)
1320 Balance, December 31,2017 § 9,428

A summary of transactions in the reserve for replacement account for Park
Ridge Apartments, Phase 3 is as foliows:

1320P Balance, January 01, 2017 5 3,600
1320DT Total monthly deposits 1,800
1320 Balance, December 31,2017 $ 5,400

A summary of transactions in the reserve for replacement account for Park
Ridge Apartments, Phase 4 is as follows:

1320P Balance, January 01, 2017 $ -
13200DT Other deposits 100
1320 Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 100
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
COMPUTATION OF SURPLUS CASH FOR
PARK RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 3
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

$1300-010 Cash $ 4272
S1300-040 Total cash 4,272
S1300-075 Accounts Payable - 30 days -
2191 Tenant security deposits lability 2,603
S1300-140 Total current obligations 2,603
S1300-150 Surplus cash (deficiency) $ 1,669
Amount due Home Funds $ (1,669)
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA

COMPUTATION OF SURPLUS CASH FOR
PARK RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 4

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

S1300-010 Cash
S1300-040 Total cash

S1300-075 Accounts Payable - 30 days
2191 Tenant security deposits liability

S1300-140 Total current obligations

§1300-150 Surplus cash (deficiency)

Amount due Home Funds (75%)
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$

2,716

2,716

870

870

1,846

1,385



COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
FOR PARK RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 3
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

REVENUES

5120 Rent revenue ~ apartments gross polential
5100T Total rent revenue

5220 Vacarcies - apartments
5200T Total vacancies

5152N Net rental revenue

3000T Total revenue

EXPENSES
6320 Management fce
6351 Bookkeeping and accounting fees
6263 T Total administrative expenscs

6450  Utilnies
6400T Total utilities expense

6590 Miscellineous repairs and maintenance expenses
65007 Total operating and mamtenance expenses

6720  Property ard liability nsurance
6700T Tou! taxes and insurance
6000T Total cost of operations before depreciation

5060T Change i unrestricted net assets
before depreciation and amertization

6600  Depreciation expense

3250 Change in unrestricted nel assels

e 3

$

37,857

37,857

37,857
37,857

2,448
3,800

6,248

1,747

o

2,248

2,248

4,874

4,874

15,117

22,740
20.940

1,800



REVENUES
5120 Rent revenue - apartments gross potential
5100T Total rent revenue

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
FOR MAISON DE LA PAIX, PHASE |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

5220 Vacancies - apartments
5200T Total vacancics
5152N Net rental revenue
5410 Financial revenue — project operations
5400T Total financial revenue
5920 Tenant charges
5990 Other revenue
5900T Total other revenue
5000T Total revenue
EXPENSES
6203 Conventions and meetings
6320 Management fee
6330 Manager salaries
6351 Bookkecping and accounting fees
6390 Miscellancous administrative services
6263T Total administrative expenses
6450  Uhilities
6400T Total utilities expense
6510 Payroll
6515  Supplies
6520 Contracts
6525 Garbage and trash removal
6546  Heating/cooling repairs and maintenance
6570  Vehicle operation/travel

6500T Total operating and maintenance expenses
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38,290

38,290

(2,617)
2,617)

35,673

3

3
1,352
213

1,565
37,241

415
2,448
3,100

468

206

6,637

3,628

3,628

366
1,447
5,482
1,500
1,412

10,414



6711
6720
6722

6600

COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY (continued)
FOR MAISON DE LA PAIX, PHASE 1
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Payroll taxes
Property and liability msurance
Workmen's compensation

6700T Total taxes and msurance

Interest on mortgage payable
6800T Total financial expenses

6000T Total cost of operations before depreciation
5060T Change in unrestricted net assets
before depreciation and amortization
Depreciation expense

3250 Change i unrestricted net assets
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$ 176
4,996
560

5,732
5,208

5,208

5,622

22,813
$ (17,191)



COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
FOR PARK RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 4
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

REVENUES
5120 Rent revenue - apartments gross potential § 2,133
5100T Total rent revenue 2,133
5220 Vacancies — apartments
5200T Total vacancies
5152N Net rental revenue 2,133
5000T Total revenue 2,133
EXPENSES
6320 Management fee 170
6341  Deveclopment expenses 380
6390 Miscellancous admunistrative services 48
6263 T Total administrative expenses 398
6790 Miscellaneous taxes, licenses and permits 20
6700T Total taxes and insurance 20
6000T Total cost of operations before depreciation 618
5060T Change in unrestricted net assets
before depreciation and amortization 1,515
6600  Depreciation expense 1,298
3250 Change in unrestricted net assets $ 217
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VIGE, TUJAGUE &% NOEL

o [ A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1S1 N 2% STREET
P O BOX 1006

EUNICE, LOUISIANA 70535
SHIRLEY VIGE. JR., C PA

TELEPHONE
FRANK G TUJAGUE.CPA 337-457-9324
DOMINIQUE M NOEL CPA FAX

337.457-8743

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Dircctors
Community Directions, Inc
Laflayette, Louisiana

2 We have audited, in accordance with the audiling standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Directions, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation), which comprise the
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the related statements of activities,
and cash flows for the year then ended. and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issucd our repori thereon dated August 6, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Directions, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Directions, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Community Directions, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a limely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency. or combination of deficiencies. in internal control, such that there is a reasonahle

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
n# or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
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combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration ol internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Directions, Inc.’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulalions, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s intcmal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ass £ V16C

V1gg Tujagu Noél, CPA's
Eunice, l.ouisiana
Augus! 6, 2018
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VIGE, TUJAGUE &% NOEL

A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

151 N 2n STREET
P O BOX 1006

EUNICE LOUISIANA 7€535
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR .C PA TELEPHONE

FRANK G TUJAGUE.CPA 337-457-9324
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL. CPA FAX

337-457.8743

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY
THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Community Directions, Inc.
Lafayette, Louisiana

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Directions, Inc.’s (a nonprofit corporation) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on cach of Community Directions, Inc.’s (a nonprofit corporation)
major federal programs lor the year ended December 31, 2017. Community Directions, Inc.’s (a
nonprofit corporation) major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for comphance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for cach of Community Directions,
Inc.’s (a nonprofit corporation) major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiiing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
& Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
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whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Directions, Inc.’s (a nonprofit
corporation) compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a rcasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community
Directions, Inc.’s (a nonprofit corporation) compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Fedcral Program

In our opinion, Community Directions, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation) complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Community Directions, Inc. (a nonprofit corporation) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance,
we considered Community Directions, Inc.’s (a nonprofit corporation) intemal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each
major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and rcport on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Community Directions, Inc.'s (a nonprofit corporation) internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirements of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
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not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report in internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

(,345 e 8\l

Vige, Tujague & Noél, CPA’s
Eunice, Louisiana
August 6, 2018
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures
Indirect Grant: Louisiana Housing Council
(Pass-Through Entity ID: 86-02-05-0-1-604)
U.S. Dept. of Housing and Urban Development:
Home Investment Partnership Program- Loans 14.239 $ 2,200,781
Home Investment Partnership Program- Grants 14.239 650,000
2,850,781
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 150,000
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 55,076
Total $ 3,055,857

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity
of Community Directions, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requiremenis for Federal Awards. Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of Community Dircctions, Inc., it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Community Directions, Inc.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Community Directions, Inc. has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE C - FEDERALLY FUNDED AND INSURED MORTGAGES
The mortgage balance at the beginning of the year and loans made during the year are included

in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. The balance of the outstanding federally
insured mortgages at December 31, 2017 is $2,197,555.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued:  Unmodified.

Internal control over financial reporting:

B Material weakness identified? Uyes [XNo
. Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? [(JYes [XINone
Reported
. Noncompliance material to
financial statements noted? [Cyes [XNo

Financial Statements

[nternal control over major programs:

. Material weakness identificd? [CIyes [XINo
. Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be
material weaknesses? [(Jyes XiNone
Reported

Type of auditor’s report issucd in compliance for major programs:
Unmodified

Identification of a major program:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
14.239 ITome Investment Partnership Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
$750,000

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? Clyes [XNo
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Section L. Financial Statement Finding

None.

Section [I1.  Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
Our audit disclosed no findings that are required to be reported.
Section III.  Management Letter

A scparale management letter was issued.

38



COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
Section I. Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements
No matters reported.
Section II. Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards
None.

Section [Il.  Management Letter

There was no management letier issued in the prior year.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

No findings noted.
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
CERTIFICATION OF ORGANIZATION OWNER
DECEMBER 31,2017

We hereby certify that we have examined the accompanying financial stalements and
supplemental data of Community Directions, Inc. and to the best of our knowledge and belief:
the same are accurate and complete.

@/Eﬁ@ \/;aa'/fc;sfageﬂ/'
Si gnature@/ /

Signa‘urg IEI?[E ? k

August 6, 2018
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COMMUNITY DIRECTIONS, INC.
CERTIFICATION OF MANAGEMENT AGENT
DECEMBER 31, 2017

We hereby certify that we have examined the accompanying financial statements and
supplemental data of Community Directions, Inc. and to the best of our knowledge and belief;
the same are accurate and complete.

(i Kun

Joa‘/Kirsch, Managing Agent

JOK Enterprises, LLC.
47-4230229
337-856-6061






REDEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATIONAL DIAGRAM

Revised 6/12/19

Lafayette Consolidated Sponsor

Government (LCG): Community Directions, Inc. (CDI) and

. Le Centre Evangeline Corporation (LCE):
LCG provides long-term lease for . —
land and garage to ADF-PC for Sponsors financial applications for several

nominal amount funding sources

Cooperative Endeavor Agreement
to develop and address highest and
best use of property for LCG with
ADF-PC implementing the
development activities

|

ADF-Properties Corp. (ADF-PC): a new non-profit corporation to be established
pursuant to Louisiana law, becomes the redevelopment entity for all contracting
activity, owning lease hold improvements, co-owner entity for redeveloping,
operating, managing and facilitating debt service for parking garage, apartments
and townhomes, commercial and business office space.

ADF-PC will be the co-general Cost, Services and Contracts
managing partner for a new Tax -Accountant-CPA Audits
Credit Limited Liability Partnership -Auditor/Comptroller
Entity or Limited Liability Company -Appraiser
Owner to own lease hold -Architect & Engineer-Ardoin Architecture, LLC
improvements for 15-year & Corey Saft
-Market Analyst
-Cost Analyst
y -Attorneys, Bond Counsel
Retains Professional Real Estate -Mortgage Broker/Lender
Management Company for commercial andy -Bank
residential rental units -Development Consultant-Le Centre Evangeline
l Corporation
-Contractor-Construction-The Lemoine Company
Leases to qualified work force
tenants who meet LIHTC -Lessor/Seller/Fixed Amount Option
standards & regulations - Estate Broker
-Acquisition Land & Buildings
-Capital Needs Assessment,
Physical Condition Needs
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Cost, Services and Contracts

-Professional Land Surveyor, Topo
-Interim Construction Lender
Bank/other fees
-Closing Cost/fees 2%HUD/FHA
-Tax assessment during development
-Permanent Financing:
Bond Insurance Fees 2%
Lender Permanent Loan Fee
Lender Financing Fee
-HUD/FHA(MIP, EXAM,INSP) 1.3% of loan

-Title Attorney — Eric Lefleur
-Insurance & Recording
-Environment Consultant Fee
-Environment Remediation Cost
-Attorney-Organization
-Tax Credit Fee-Agency Fee
-Accounting & Cost Cert. Fees
-Relocation Cost if Occupied
-Syndication Cost & Fees Tax Credits
-Geotechnical Evaluation & Report
-Developer Fees
-Negative Arbitrage (allowance L.S.)
-Initial Operation Deficit Reserve
-Replacement Reserve Account
-Operation Reserve Account
(6 months)

-Working Capital Reserve (2%)
-Contingency Reserves Depaosit
-Construction Contingency (10%)
-Interest Rate Adjustment

Contingency
-Green Building Consultant & Fees
-Property Management Fees
-Initial Rent Up
-Real Estate Tax & Insurance

Reserves- year one
-Clerical Allowance, Copy, Mailing, Bookkeeping, -
Printing, Etc.
-Other Tax Credit Fees
-Project Guarantor
-Sponsor Fees
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Community Directions, Inc.
(A Louisiana IRS 501 (c)(3) Nonprofit Corporation and CHDO)
Post Office Box 172
Opelousas, LA 70571-0172

(337) 948-1294 fax 942-2768
BOARD MEMBERS

PHILLIP G BOURGEOIS, PRESIDENT DOROTHY HOLLOWAY, TREAS
LINDA JEFFERSON, SECRETARY BILL THOMPSON
GARY BEHRINGER, VICE PRESIDENT MARILYN THOMPSON

MARK DUCOTE, PARLIAMENTARIAN

The following firms or persons are known members of the Offeror’s team listed with their role on the
team:

Architects: Ardoin Architecture, LLC - Brodie Ardoin
SaftArchitecture — Corey Saft
Co-Sponsor: Le Centre Evangeline Corporation - Mark Tolson, President
Construction Contractor: The Lemoine Company — Mike Rice, Vice President
Title Attorney: Mahtook and Lefleur - Eric Lafleur

Names, addresses, phone numbers and qualifications are provided in the resumes following.



130 West South Street, Opelousas, LA 70570337-948-6301emtolson2002@yaheo,com

Mark Tolson

Experience

1998 to present MWT Property Company, LLC Orange, TX

President

*  Oversee all operations of this Real Estate Development and Management Corporation which
includes all financial, acquisitions and management.

2005 to present Le Centre Evangeline Corporation Opelousas, LA

Development Consultant

*  Assist clients in the processing of loan and grant application packages to obtain funding through
various state, federal and commercial agencies. See attached for more detail.

2001 to 2008 US Liquids of Louisiana Galveston, TX

Site Manager

= Manage an oil field disposal transfer facility in the Port of Galveston overseeing the day to day
operations of receiving shipments from offshore or land oil and gas facilities.

1996 to 2000 Schlumberger Maurice, LA

Service Supervisor Trainee

* Training to become a supervisor for offshore skids performing sand control operations on
offshore facilities for various oil and gas companies.

Education

1991 to 1995 University of Southwestern Louisiana Lafayette, LA
Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration

Activities

1983 to 1993 Volunteer for the Salvation Army in Opelousas bringing food to the needy families
and Christmas packages to the local jail facilities during the Christmas season. Program started
again in 2015 with local support from area businesses. No affiliation with any organizations.



Corey Saft, AIA

LA Housing Lab | President GPADICIsgRG B
Lafayette, LA 70503

SaftArchitecture | Principal 337-849-5422

Professor of Architecture | UL Lafayette saft.corey@saftarchitecture

Professional

2001-present Saft Architecture, Principal

https://saftarchitecture.com

» Specializing in Energy Efficient and High Performance Design

* Residential & Commercial Architecture & Master Planning

» Licensed Architect, State of Louisiana (RA), No. 7038

» National Council of Architectural Registration Boards (NCARB), No. 67,039
[2009-2018]

» American Institute of Architects (AlA), Member No. 30531605

» LEED Accredited Professional (LEED-AP)

» NGBS Green Certification Program, Green Verifier
1CC 700 National Green Building Standard (NGBS)

2003-present Professor of Architecture, University of Louisiana at Lafayette
Contractors Educational Trust Fund Endowed Professor in Art & Architecture
https://soad.louisiana.edu/about-us/faculty-staff/directory/corey-l-saft
Sustainable Development Lab, Director, http://ulsdiab.org/
* Tenured, 2013 / Full Professor 2014

2018-present Louisiana Housing Lab, President
https://lahousinglab.org/
* A 501(c)3 non-profit housing development corporation with the dual
mission of affordable housing and research in collabaration with UL
Lafayette Department of Architecture
» Specializing in Federal and State funded for Affordable Housing

2009-present 204 Development, President
* For-profit real estate development corporation
* Property Management and Acquisition

Academic

2014 Real Estate Development Certificate, Urban Land Institute, Washington DC
2004 Fulbright-Hays Team member, Group Project in China

1999 Master of Architecture, University of Oregon, Eugene, OR

1991 Bachelor of Arts in Religion; Certificate in Asian Studies, University of

Rochester, Rochester, NY
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ARCHITECTURE

a limited lability company

§.BRODIE ARDOIN, NCARB 130w
Registerad Architeci, LA, AR.TX, MS AL Ty

Brodie Ardoin
Cell (337) 789-4078
brodie@ardoinarchitecture.com

EDUCATION

High School:
Westminster Christian Academy 1989

Undergraduate:
University of Louisiana at Lafayette
BACH of industrial Design 1996

Graduate:
Louisiana State University

Masters of Architecture 2003

EMPLOYMENT

May 2003 — December 2004
H. Curtis Vincent — Steven D. Shows, Architects
Intern Architect

December 2004 — February 2010
Gaudet & Tolson, Ltd.
Project Architect

February 2010 — December 2010
Ardoin, Gaudet & Tolson, Ltd,
Project Architect

January 2011 to present

Ardoin Architecture, LLC — Owner
Project Architect

Licensed Architect in States of Louisiana, Arkansas, Texas, Mississippi, Alabama



Member Construction Specifications Institute
National Council of Architectural Registration Board Certificate Holder

Current experience in apartment design:

Ardoin Architecture, LLC:

New Dorm for Acadian Baptist Center, Eunice, LA
Renovations to Holy Family Apartments, Lafayette
Maison de la Paix, Phases I, Il and [1l, Lafayette, LA
Renovations to Village du Lac (20 units), Lafayette, LA
Renovations to Village du Lac Phase 1l (140 units), Lafayette, LA
Renovations to Village du Lac Phase Il1, Lafayette, LA
Renovations to Starks Place, Sulphur, LA

Renovations to Floral Acres |, Waggaman, LA
Renovations to Floral Acres [1, Waggaman, LA
Logansport Seniors Rehab, Logansport, LA

Lakeway Rehab, Zwolle, LA

Starks Place Rehab, Sulphur, LA

Ashley Manor Apartments, Hamburg, AR

Ashley Place Apartments, Hamburg, AR

Desha Elderly Apartments, McGehee, AR
Renovations to Village Duchesne, Sunset, LA

Park Ridge Apartments, Phases 10 VI, Opelousas, LA
Renovations to Ludbar Apts., Hamburg, AR

Park Place Renovations, DeQuincy, LA

Renovations to Cottonwood Apts., Cottonport, LA
Stroud Manor, Sulphur, LA

Blanco Seniors Rehab, Blanco, TX

Lone Star Seniors Rehab, Lone Star, TX

Edgewood Estates Rehab, Edgewood, TX
Meadowbrook Square rehab, Godley, TX

Pecan Tree Square Rehab, Grandview, TX

Junction Seniors Rehab, Junction, TX

Hughes Springs Seniors Rehab, Hughes Springs, TX
Pleasanton Seniors Rehab, Pleasanton, TX

Gabriel Villa Apartments Rehab, Ville Platte, LA
Renovations to Beau SeJour Apartments, Carencro, LA

Experience in apartment design thru Ardoin, Gaudet & Tolson, Ltd.:

Cane Pointe Phase [I, New Iberia, LA

James Herod Apartments Phase 11, Abbeville, LA
Daigle House Apartments, Lafayette, LA

Bunkie Seniors Rehab, Bunkie, LA

Tarpon Heights Rehab, Cut Off, LA

Cane Pointe Phase 1, New Iberia, LA

Desoto Plaza Rehab, Mansfield

Oakhill Apts. Rehab, Mansfield
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Gibsland Seniors Rehab, Mansfield

Our Lady of Assumption Apts., Abbeville, LA
St. Marguerite Marie Alacoque Apts. Kaplan, LA
Village Parc Apts, Lafayette, LA

Evangeline Estates, Ville Platte, LA



Corey Saft, AIA

LA Housing Lab | President 202 Whittington Dr

; o Lafayette, LA 70503
SaftArchitecture | Principal 337-849-5422
Professor of Architecture | UL Lafayette saft.corey@saftarchitecture

In addition to founding Saft Architecture, a research and design practice, to focus on equitable,
environmental and economical design, Corey Saft is the Contractors Educational Trust Fund Endowed
Professor in Art & Architecture at the University of Louisiana at Lafayette and the Undergraduate
Coordinator in the School of Architecture and Design. He is a licensed, LEED Accredited Professional
(LEED-AP), an award winning architect, and the founder and current President of the Louisiana
Housing Lab (LA Housing Lab), a Lafayette based 501(c)3 affordable housing development
corporation. His work has been covered in a large range of publications including Scientific American,
USAToday and Architectural Record, as well as featured in a number of books including the recently
published Passive House Details: Solutions for High Performance Design from Routledge Press.

Saft is the Director of the University of Louisiana’s Sustainable Development Lab (SDLab), which isa
research and practice laboratory focused on housing, civic space and cultural resource development,
The Lab sees design entrepreneurship and fabrication innovation as a form of value creation and an
opportunity for students to be visionary leaders in their communities. The Lab works to evolve models
of development that use housing and civic space to facilitate community revitalization through
environmentally and economically sustainable processes.

In 2017 Saft was honored with UL's Distinguished Professor Award and in 2016 he was awarded the
University's Research Excellence Award for his efforts to bring together the work of his non-profit, LA
Housing Lab, and his research agenda at the University. He has overseen or been a team member on
projects totaling many millions of dollars including being a design and energy consultant on the
Uptown Lofts, a mixed-use, multifamily Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Developmentin
downtown Lafayette for which the team received Honorable Mention in the Green Housing category
for the Charles L. Edson Tax Credit Excellence Awards.

Saft is a board member and was recently treasurer of the Global Passive Building Council

(GPBC), an international organization to facilitate ‘global carbon reduction, human comfort and habitat
resilience in all climates through passive design.' He was also recently on the board of the Association
of Collegiate Schools of Architecture, the discipline’s primary governing board, as well as a member of
its Executive Committee.

Professor Saft holds a Master of Architecture from the University of Oregon, a Bachelor of Arts in
Religion from the University of Rochester and a Certificate in Real Estate Development from the Urban
Land Institute.

For further information please see: SaftArchitecture.com
LAHousingLab.org
ULSDLab.org



Charles Tate
Education

B.A., Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, Louisiana
JD, Tulane Law School, New Orleans, Louisiana
MBA, Southeastern Louisiana University, Hammond, Louisiana

Past Non Housing Professional Experience (Partial

Attorney

City Attorney

City Prosecutor

Staff Member, Louisiana Governors Office

Law Clerk, Chief Justice, Louisiana Supreme Court
Congressional Staff Assistant

Nonprofit and For-Profit Housing Experience

Tate Nonprofit Housing Experience

Charles Tate served as part-time Chief Executive Officer for Community
Directions, Inc., a 501 (c) organization that is a Louisiana Community
Housing Development Organization (CHDO), a United States Treasury
certified Community Development Entity (CDE) and a provider of housing
services across much of the recognized spectrum of housing from 2008
through May 2016.

CDI sponsored and cosponsored numerous affordable housing developments
since it was incorporated in 2000. Those developments have been funded
with HUD administered 202 and 811 funds, State and local government
administered CDBG and HOME Funds, Louisiana Housing Trust Funds,
Bank loans, Low Income Housing Tax Credits, USDA 515 financing, and
Federal Home Loan Bank AHP grants.

Altogether, CDI sponsored and owned developments have Total Development
Costs exceeding $15 Million. Before his hiring, CDI in 2007 had Total Assets
of $3,424 and no recurring income. By 2015, CDI in its own right had Total
Assets of $2,251,779 and reliable recurring income to cover its operating
expenses.



CDI Nonprofit Projects bv Location and Completion (or anticipated

completion) date

McGehee, AR (NM) 15 New Rental 2007
Jonesboro, LA (Haven) —Co-Sponsor 16 New Rental 2008
New Iberia, LA Cane Pointe | 12 New Rental 2010
New Iberia, LA Cane Manor 15 New Rental 2010
Ville Platte, LA (VPTA) 4 Rehab Rent/Own 2010-2013
Opelousas, LA (SLH) — 9% LIHTC, Co- | 32 New Rental 2009
Developer
New Iberia, LA Cane Pointe (1) 4 New Rental 2013
Ville Platte, LA (VPTA) 1 New Rent/Own 2013
Lafayette, LA (FH Il - Maison de la Paix 1) | 6 New Rental 2013
Hamburg, AR (HUD 202 and 811) 20 New Rental 2011
McGehee, AR 2 New Rental 2010
New Iberia, LA {Cane Pointe II) L New Rental 2013
Hambure, AR — (USDA 515 Elderly, HAC) | 30 Acg/Rehab | Rental 2014
Opelousas, LA (Park Ridge 1) 6 New Rental 2015
Opelousas, LA (Park Ridge IVand V) 10 New Rental (2017)
Opelousas, LA (Park Ridge V1) 10 New Rental (2017-18)
Ville Platte, LA (VP Scattered Site Rental) 4 Acg/Rehab | Rental (2017-18)
Ville Platte, LA (Same; New Construction) | 10 New Rental 2018

Some of CDI's projects have involved Davis-Bacon Prevailing Wage Laws and
some have not.

Tate For-Profit Development Experience

Given CDI's limited financial capacity, its Board also authorized Mr. Charles
Tate to act as a developer and consultant on projects not involving CDL

Those projects include funding sources similar to those specified above for
CDIL.

In that independent capacity, Mr. Tate has provided development related
services for numerous nonprofit organizations such as the Diocese of
Lafayette, the Lafayette Council on Aging, Affiliated Blind of Acadiana, Faith
House, and other nonprofit organizations in connection with the following
developments, sometimes individually, but in recent years as Principal of
Jasmine Consulting, LLC:



Non-CDI Projects by Location and Completion (or anticipated completion)
date

Opelousas, LA (PR) 12 New Rental 2009
Ville Platte, LA (EP) 12 New Rental 2010
Abbeville, LA (Herod 1} 9 New Rental 2012
Eunice, LA (Unity) 9 New Rental 2012
Lafayetie , LA (Daigle) 32 New Rental 2013
Lafayette, LA (VDL/Rue du Lac) — 9% | 200 Rehab Rental 2012
GO Zone LIHTC
Baton Rouge, LA (Gardens) 55 New Rental 2013
Lafayette , LA (Daigle) 32 New Rental 2013
Abbeville, LA (Herod II) 12 New Rental 2013
Lafayette, LA (VDL 1 and Ill; carved from | 60 Rehab Rental 20134
the 200 unit VDL/Rue du Lac )
Sunset, LA (VD) 70 Rehab Rental 20134
Lafayette, LA (HF) — 4% LIHTC/MRB 160 Rehab Rental 2014-5
Lafayette, LA (MDLP Il & 1V) 6 New Rental 2016-7
Vilie Platte, LA = (GV)- 64 Rehab Remal (2016-2017)
4% LIHTC/MRB/HOME
Carencro, LA - (BSE)} - 4% | 105 Rehab Rental (2017-2018)
LIHTC/MRB/HOME
St. Martinville, LA (CGA Phase 1) —| 100 Rehab; 24 Rental (2017-2018)
Replacement Reserves, HOME unit Phase |




Monica Tolson, BA

d/b/a Housing Development Consultants, LLC
130 West South Street
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570
Tel: (337)948-1254
Cell: (337)351-6587
Tolson.monica@yahoo.com

OBJECTIVE

To use my education in business and past experiences in an office position that wiil benefit both
employer and consumer.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Housing Development Consultants, LLC, Opelousas, Louisiana 08/2016 - Present
St. Landry

Housing Consultant, using contracts with other Housing Development

Service Providers, HUD Section 3 Certified, WBE

The Tolson Family, Opelousas, Louisiana 2002 - Present
Home Engineer

Keep track of schedules, homework,and laundry for a family of five. Also, drive children to
appointments and activities and complete housework.

Westminster Christian Academy, Opelousas, Louisiana 08/2009 - 06/2010
Teacher

Planned and taught all subjects to 2nd grade class of 16. This position also allowed me to
guide some students through some difficult times in their lives throughout the year.

St. Landry Parish School Board, Opelousas, Louisiana 08/1996 - 06/2002
Teacher, Grolee Elementary

Planned and taught lessons in all subjects to 4 special needs children. This required a plan for
each student as they were all on different learning levels. After 2 years I transferred to a 3rd
grade position where I continued to plan and teach the curriculum and provide some stability to
my students.

Tobacco Mart, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 02/1993 - 12/1594
Store Manager, Opelousas Store

Ordered inventory, managed cashiers, performed office duties such as payroll, making deposits
and paying vendors

T. L. James Construction Company, Ruston, Louisiana 08/1988 - 08/1992
Scheduling Assistant

Assisted in scheduling road construction jobs-this consisted of talking or meeting with job
foremen about the progress of the construction job, inputting information into computer and
printing plots of the progress.



EDUCATION

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Lafayette, Louisiana 1994 - 1999
Bachelor of Arts in Elementary Education

Louisiana Tech University Ruston, Louisiana 1988 - 1992
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration

SKILLS

-Communication Skills
-Computer Skills

ADMINISTRATION OF DEVELOPMENT PROCESS, SERVICES, AND/OR
PROJECT COORDINATOR FOR THE FOLLOWING:

Park Ridge Phase IV — New Construction, Opelousas, LA

Park Ridge V — New Construction, Opelousas, LA

Park Ridge VI — New Construction, Opelousas, LA

Gabriel Villa — Rehab Project, Ville Platte, LA

Maison de la Paix IV — New Construction, Lafayette, LA

Maison de la Paix V — New Construction, Lafayette, LA

4 Scattered Sites Houses — Rehab, Ville Platte, LA

Cypress Garden Apartments, Phase I — Major Rehab, St. Martinville, LA (HOME Program)
Cypress Garden Apartments, Phase I — Major Rehab, St. Martinville, LA (AHP Program, FHLB-D)
NOAH Park Ridge Apartments, Phase I Addition I — New Construction, Opelousas, LA
Voohries Multifamily Rentals — New Construction, Lafayette LA

Opelousas Place Scattered Sites — Rehab, Opelousas, LA

Community Outreach Rentals — Rehab and New Construction, Ville Platte, LA

Note:
Work with other development service providers as required to further the supply of affordable
housing:

1. LeCentre Evangeline Corporation — Mark Tolson, BA
2. IDIC - Jack K Tolson, AIA, Developer
3. Jasmine Consulting, Inc. — Charles Tate, LLD



JACK K. TOLSON, PRESIDENT d/b/a
INTERNATIONAL DIRECTOR INDUSTRIES CORPORATION
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS
RESUME"’

Jack K. Tolson is a resident of Opelousas, Louisiana. He graduated from Lafayette High
School in Lafayette, LA in 1954, for three years he attended the University of Southwest
Louisiana (SLI) in Lafayette studying and receiving a certificate of pre-architecture and
graduated from Tulane University with a Bachelor of Architecture degree in 1959.
Subsequently, he now holds a Masters degree in architecture from Tulane University. His
thesis was a new city plan for 25,000 people. He was vice president of the architectural senior
class at Tulane. From November 1953 to November 1961 he served his country honorably
with the United States Marine Corps Reserve. He received two meritorious promotions and
was honorably discharged in 196].

Mr. Tolson is or was an active member of professional, fratemal, civic and church
organizations such as: the American Institute of Architects, National Council of
Architectural Registration Boards (NCARB). Humble Cottage #19 F&AM, Gordy Chapter
No. 32 R.A.M., formerly for 30 years he was a member of the Kiwanis Club of Opelousas
(past president), Jaycees (E. Vice Pres, R.R.), First Baptist Church of Opelousas where he is
an active member and has served as trustee, chairman of deacons, deacon, discipleship
training director, choir member, former adult and youth department director and teacher. He
has also served on the committee on committees, personnel committee, nominating
committee, trustee, finance committee and the committee to sell old church property. He has
served as a member of the Board of Directors of the Acadian Baptist Center near the Richard
Community in Acadia Parish since it was established in 1975 through 2009. He was
Chairman of the Opelousas Salvation Army Service Center Advisory Board for 28 years.

Mr. Tolson was elected to the St. Landry Parish Democratic Committee and has in the past
served the Democratic Party in the capacity as a conservative member-at-large for 16 years.

Professionally, Jack Tolson received his license, no. 762, to practice architecture from the
State of Louisiana on July 24, 1959. He was also admitted to practice in Arkansas, Texas and
Mississippi. He spent one year drafting in Albuquerque, New Mexico, then returned to the
city of Opelousas, LA to establish his private practice. He has practiced architecture since
July 20, 1960 in Opelousas where he has been responsible for in excess of five hundred
million dollars in construction value prior to retirement December 2012, Jack Tolson and
Jerome Gaudet practice architecture as Ardoin, Gaudet & Tolson, Ltd., Architects.

December 31, 2012, he retired from Architecture. He is now doing volunteer work with
Community Directors, Inc. and Le Centre’ Evangeline to help provide affordable housing by
helping to arrange financing and project administration.

Since he began his private practice of architecture he has performed architectural work for
local municipalities, police juries, school boards, the State of Louisiana and provided
architectural services for projects funded by the following U.S. government agencies:
G.S.A,, U.S.P.S., U.S. Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration,
H.U.D., V.A, and Federal Housing Administration. In addition, he specializes in USDA 515
RA, FHLB AHP, and HUD Section 202, 811, 232, 221(d) type programs. He has also done



multifamily housing programs under the LHC/HUD/HOME and IRS Low Income Housing
Tax Credit programs. Additionally, Mr. Tolson has had a large selection of repeat private
clieniele. For one client he has performed over 25 projects. Approximately 90% of the
business income is from clients for whom he has performed previous projects.

Mr. Tolson’s experience as a commercial developer and architect includes the Vista Village
Shopping Center, Opelousas, LA; Parkview Shopping Center, Ville Plate, LA; 1333 Moss
Street Commercial Center, Lafayette, LA; and Hancock Shopping Center, New Iberia, LA.
He also managed his own real properties under the name of IDIC Properties for over 30
years. He also owned and managed 10 rental units in Opelousas serving low income
households.

Mr. Tolson has vast experience as a multifamily apartment developer and/or architect. He has
designed over 3,000 apartment units for various clients over the years. He specializes in
apartment developments for affordable housing to serve special need populations, supportive
housing, single family residential and nursing home living facilities for the elderly.

He has designed many churches and educational facilities.

Community Services: Previously, at various times, Mr. Tolson has served as a community
resource planning advisor for governmental funding to the following cities and towns:
Basile, Church Point, Eunice, Opelousas, Melville, Port Barre, Washington, Grand Coteau,
Leonville, Palmetto and Cankton. He has served on the Board of Directors of Tri-Parish
Progress and the St. Landry Community Action Agency. For 16 years he served on the
Opelousas City Planning Commission and Opelousas Building Code Board of Appeals and
has served as past president of the St. Landry Economic Inducement District. He also served
on the Board of Directors for the Acadiana Development Foundation, a nonprofit economic
advisory and housing consulting development corporation. He was a member of the
Opelousas Chamber of Commerce. He has provided housing development strategies for
project developments for such nonprofit organizations as the Lafayette Council on Aging,
Acadia Council on Aging, Calcesieu Council on Aging, Inc., Cameron Council on Aging,
Inc., Evangeline Council on Aging, Rapides Council on Aging, the Diocese of Lafayette,
Mamou Health Resources, Gabriel Villa, Seventh District Baptist Association and Holy
Trinity Villa, Inc and private for profit developers. He designed the Master Campus
Development Plan for LSU-Eunice Campus and designed the Campus Monument and four
buildings. He has provided strategic resource planning for the National Council of Senior
Citizens in conjunction with several of the councils on aging for housing programs serving
the elderly.

Jack K. Tolson is owner and President of International Director Industries Corporation which
is a real estate development advisory organization, formerly owner and management
company for commercial and residential properties, formerly real estate broker and licensed
general contractor.

For further information contact:
Jack K. Tolson, Sr.

1640 Jasmine Drive

Opelousas, LA 70570

(337) 948-1202

Fax 942.2768



CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES

GENERAL CONTRACTING | CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
DESIGN-BUILD | DESIGN-ASSIST | CMaR

Driven by our Purpose: To achieve excellence in construction while
enhancing the lives of all invoived, The Lemoine Company performs
over $2 billion in preconstruction exercises annually and has delivered

over 930 individual projects across the Gulf Central Region.

www.lemoinecompany.com
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iRIFF, SEIBELS & WILLIAMS OF TEXAS, INC.

:

818 Town & Country Blvd., Suite 500 * Houston, Texas 77024-4549 « TEL — (713) 877-8975 * Fax - (713) 877-8974

June 3, 2019

Lafayette Consolidated Government
Development & Planning

Attn: Danielle Breaux

PO Box 4017-C

Lafayette, Louisiana 70502

Re: Request for Proposals for Buchanan Redevelopment Site, Downtown Lafayette

We consider The Lemoine Company, LLC to be a valued client of McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. and
Federal Insurance Company for over twenty years. We have the highest regard for their professionalism,
integrity and commitment to customer service.

In our opinion, The Lemoine Company, LLC remains properly financed, well equipped, and capably
managed. They have consistently handled each of their projects in a professional manner and all projects have
been satisfactorily completed. The Lemoine Company, LLC enjoys an excellent relationship with their
surety, Federal Insurance Company.

Federal Insurance Company is authorized and licensed to do business in all 50 states with an A.M. Best Rating
of A++ (Superior) and Financial Size Category of XV. Federal Insurance Company has a Federal Treasury
Listing of $393,705,000.

Federal Insurance Company have established a surety program for The Lemoine Company, LLC of
$150,000,000 with an aggregate bonding capacity of $350,000,000. These figures should not be construed as
maximum amounts Federal Insurance Company would consider.

We would certainly entertain any bond requests subject to review of the contract and normal underwriting
information satisfactory to The Lemoine Company, LLC and their surety. Our consideration and issuance of
final bonds is a matter between The Lemoine Company, LLC and ourselves and we assume no liability to
third parties or to you, if due to any unforeseen circumstances, we do not execute such bonds.

We are pleased to highly recommend The Lemoine Company, LLC to you. Please feel free to contact us
should additional information be required.

Very truly yours,

L// )/ /&ég
Maria D. Zuniga
Assistant Vice President
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the community where we live.

WE ARE THE LEMOINE COMPANY.

Founded in Louisiana in 1975, The Lemoine
Company (Lemeine) has steadily grown from a
small construction company to one of the most
respected, full-service general contracting and
construction management firms in the United
States. The Lemoine Company reorganized into
its current L.L.C. designation in 2001 and is
authorized to do business in Louisiana, Texas,
Mississippi, Florida, South Carolina, North
Carolina, Tennessee and Alabama. Lemoaine is
privately owned by members of The Lemoine
Company management team and since May
2019, its private equity partner, Bemhard Capital
Partners. Lenny Lemoine and key management
are responsible for firm strategy and day-to-day
business operations.

Lemaine constructs and manages projects ranging
from minar interior renovations to some of the
most complex healthcare facilities, commercial
public and industnial landmarks in the Southeast
region. Throughout our 40+ years, our purpose
has remained the same: To achieve excelience
in construction while enhancing the lives of all
involved. Lemoine employees stand behind this
mission and ensure we achieve our purpose
each day by delivering unparalleled customer
service and building quality products, people, and
relationships.

We are a designated Associated Builders and
Contractors (ABC) Accredited Quality Contractor
for our commitments to safety, training, employee
benefits and community relations. We are also the
recipient of multiple ABC Awards of Excellence in
Construction for both our region and nationally.
Lemoine is consistently ranked in Engineering
News Record’s (ENR) “Top Contractors” List
and was recently recognized by ENR with the
prestigious Excellence in Safety Award of Merit.

OUR COMMITMENT IS UNWAVERING.

it is our goal, our mission, that every worker leave
the job site at the end of each day as safe and as
sound as when he or she started work that day.
LIFES, Lemoine's Injury Free Environment, requires
a greater involvement in project-site safety, from
the boardroom, through the President’s office
and Leadership Team, to the field. Lemoine
is committed to a strong safety culture where
measurable progress is made towards an injury-
free environment for everyone. We accomplish
this by creating a greater awareness of the
importance of safety through safety planning;
orientation and on-going training; establishing and
adhering to employee hiring qualifiers; providing a
safe environment, equipment and protective gear;
maintaining a culture of personal accountability;
identifying appropriate performance metrics; and
ensuring ongoing evaluation against benchmarks.
We continuously educate and train our people in
all aspects of safety, pledge to never compromise
safety for the sake of schedule or cost, and know
that nothing is mare important than ensuring
the well-being of your students and faculty,
our employees, clients, subcontractors and the
general public.

RISK ANTICIPATION AND MITIGATION.

Anticipating risk and having strategies and
resources in place to mitigate that risk is one of
the top differentiators of The Lemoine Company.
Our respective $300MM aggregate bonding
capacity is a clear reflection of our financial
stability and unblemished performance record. In
addition to our own stability, we offer a vigorous
and proven approach to subcontractor and
supplier risk management. In today's uncertain
economic climate, due diligence requires more
than reviewing bank statements and reputation. It
is our responsibility to understand all contractual
obligations of a subcontractor or supplier and

$1.7 biltion+

Educational,
Commercial &
Government Projects

$4 million-

(and counting) in
Cost Savings returned
to our Clients.

$967 million-
in CMaR

projects.



complete an analysis of financial, safety and
surety; utilizing information such as credit line
and history, cash flow, liquidity, EMR, OSHA
citation history, legal claims and insurance
coverage.

Beyond the pregualification process, Lemaine
utilizes  comprehensive  monitoring  and
contingency planning programs, vigilantly
looking for wamning signs that a sub/supplier may
be in trouble, such as a change in its progress
status on your project, expended labor hours
not commensurate with completed scope, or a
change in financial standing.

QUR TEAM IS EXCEPTIONAL.

For every project - na matter the type, complexity
ar client - one fact remains constant: people do
the work. Peaple devise innovations, they resalve
issues, and they inspire each other to meet
project challenges, among many other important
things.

With 200+ Full Time employees, our team has
been built to ensure vast experience through
all phases of construction. From Real Estate
Development, Integrated Project Delivery, Pre-
Construction and Estimating services to Project
Management and Field Supervision, Lemoine is
poised to offer industry leading professionals
with a vast depth of resources.

TURNKEY DELIVERED.

We know that what our Owners remember most
is how we leave them, We define our success by
the quality of developed relationships—built on
trust and underscored by outstanding project
execution. We understand that final delivery
with zero defects is the key to successful project
execution—every detail, every day.

PROJECT SUCCESS PLANNING™

Each Lemoine project begins with a Project
Success Planning™ (PSP} meeting where rales
and responsibilities are defined for each party
involved. Qur PSP model crafts appropriate
expectations, manages process outcomes and
creates an environment of open and continuous
communication, which is critical to success.
Lemoine's Project Success Planning™ ensures:

1.) Conservation and enriched investing of our
clients' two most important resources: time and
money

2.) Creation of partnerships between
architectural and engineering disciplines,
customers  and  suppliers,  employees,

subcontractors and specialized consultants and
3.) Defined and agreed upon mission for the
project including all stakeholders’ needs, wants
and expeclations.

The resuit of the planning session is the delivery

Project Success Planning™

of successful projects on time, within budget,
and aligned with our clients’ original vision.
Lemoine's PSP includes scheduled monthly
feedback that fosters immediate correction
of ofi-track behaviors or events, ensuring
continuous feedback and open communication.

QUR REPUTATION
THING WE'VE BUILT,
Lemoine beleves that an open book policy
is the best policy. Our employees exercise
prudent judgment and common sense. They
are upstanding members of the community
and fundamentally believe in the values of The
Lemoine Company. Our employees exercise the
highest ethical business standards and will be
the mode! for our subcantractors.

IS THE GREATEST




|

e
it

|
|
|

I
|
-

=20l

TAB 3

Proposed Construction Team Members



Our team of construction
® experts are ready to

YOUR STORY.

Lenny Lemoine Mike Rice Van Champagne
Chief Executive Officer* Vice President” VP of Preconstruction®
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o Jonathan Moore Jared Graffagnino
Corporate Scheduler” Virtual Construction Manager*



As President and Chief Executive Officer, Lenny is the flag bearer for the
company's focus on excellence, innovation arnd advanced delivery models
to meet the dynamically shifting needs of today's construction consumers.
As one of the founders of The Lemoine Company more than 35 years ago,
he has led the company since inception. Lenny brings to the top pesition
direct project management skills ranging from small renovations to highly
complex and challenging projects.

Lenny's insistence on solving all of a customer’s concerns, delivering value
added service and great outcomes has pushed The Lemoine Company to

the forefront of the construction industry.

e  Customer Satisfaction ¢  Employee Development

*  Strict Attention to Detail *  Relationships
®  Excellent Leadership Skills ®  Process Controls
*  Excellent Communication Skills ® 44 Years Industry Experience

Lafayette Central Park, Board of Directors, 2013 - Present

Louisiana Association Board of Industry, Board of Directors, 2013 - Present

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Foundation, Beard of Directors, 2012 - Present

Our Lady of Lourdes Foundation, Board of Directors, 2009 - Present

iberia Bank, Board of Directors, 2008 - Present

Oakbourne Country Club, Board of Directors, 2008 - 2012

Community Foundation of Acadiana, Board of Directors, 2007 - 2013

Acadiana Marine Institute, Executive Committee Chairman, 2007 - 2012

State of Louisiana Licensing Board for General Contractors Board of Directors, 2001 - 2003
Associated Builders and Contractors, Pelican Chapter President, 2000

Associated Builders & Contractors, National Beam Club Member of the Year, 2000
Associated Builders and Contractors, National Board of Directors, 1999 - 2000
Associated Builders and Contractors, Pelican Chapter Board of Directors, 1995 - 1999
St. Thomas Mare High School Foundation, Board of Directors, 1994 - 1556

Acadiana Metro-Code, Variance Board, 1993

St. Mary's Catholic Church, Finance Committee, 1992 - 1997

State of Louisiana Board of Commerce and Industry, 1987 - 1988

Associated Builders and Cantractors, Pelican Chapter Board of Directors, 1986 - 1990
St. Mary's Catholic Church, Finance Committee, 1985 - 1990

St. Thamas Mare High School, Board of Trustees, 1980 - 1985

Years in Industry: 44
Years at Lemoine: 44

President and Chief Executive Officer
The Lemoine Company, LLC
Lafayette, Lovisiana

2001 - present

Executive Vice-President and Chief
Operating Officer

The Lemoine Company, Inc.
Lafayette, Louisiana

1983 -2001

. Administrative and Financial Manager

The Cottonport Company, Inc.
Cottonport, Louisiana
1975-1983

- Bachelor of Science in Agriculture

Business, 1975, Louisiana State

University

Fails Management Leadership Institute
Leadership Development, 2001
Commercial Real Estate Development
Course Louisiana State University, 1981

Dr. Joseph Savoie

University of LA at Lafayette
337.482.6203
president@louisiana.edu

Mr. Mike Wampold
Wampold Companies
225.215.1800
mwampold@wampald.com

Ms. Carolyn Martin

Commercial Praperties Realty Trust
225.709.1715

cmartin@cprt.com

Mr. F. King Alexander
Louisiana State University
225.578.2111
alexander@isu.edu
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Rs Vice President of Commercial Construction, Mike provides overall
guidance of the Operations Manager, Project Manager, and Superintendent.
His responsibilities include the management, operations and profitability
of alt construction projects within their assigned geography or sector.
This pasition ensures that projects are delivered safely, on schedule and
to the satisfaction of our customers. The Vice President of Commercial
Construction is also responsible for preconstruction services and business
development including locating, developing, defining, negotiating, closing
and adequate backlog to achieve annual revenue plan,

Mike has over sixteen years experience which began in Preconstruction
Services from 2003 to 2005 as an Estimator. From there, he was promoted

to manager of 2 small projects division which doubled in size from 2005 to 2008. After a successful experience
of leading small projects, Mike was again promoted to Preconstruction Manager in 2008. In 2013 Mike was
promoted to his current role of Vice President of Commercial Construction.

®  Excellent Management & Leadership Skills

*  Fosters Teamwork Among Stakeholders
®  Conceptual Estimating

Nicholson Gateway Development,$184 million
24 Acre Student Housing Development
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

LSU Patrick F. Taylor Halt,$100 million
432,000SF Education Building Renovation and
Addition, CMaR

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

The Water Institute of the Gulf, $19 million
32,000, 3 Story Elevated Building on Dock
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Lafayette Regional Airport New Terminal, $100
million, CMaR

114,000 SF New Terminal

Lafayette, Louisiana

Lafayette Regional Airport Terminal Enabling
Demolition, $1.5 million

Demolition & Infrastructure

Lafayette, Louisiana

CPRA - The Water Campus, $10 million
52,000+ SF Office Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

* 16 Years Industry Experience
*  Contract Review
®  Schedule Management

Thrive Academy Dormitery, $7 million
43,000 Student Housing Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Comeaux High School Performing Arts Theater
$5.9 million

21,000+ SF High School Performing Arts Theater
Addition, CMaR

Lafayette, Louisiana

LSU Tiger Stadium South End Zone Expansion,
$71 million

Stadium Addition/ Expansion

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Baton Rouge Mixed Use / [BM Building, $59 million
New Riverfront Mixed Use Development
Baten Rouge, Louisiana

LSU Business Education Complex, $42 million
156,000+ SF State-of-the-Art Educational Facility
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

The Advocate Office Building, $11 million
48,000+ SF Office Buitding
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Years in Industry: 16
Years at Lemoine: 16

Vice President, Preconstruction
Manager, Small Projects Division
Manager, Estimator

The Lemoine Company, LLC
Baton Rouge, Louisiana
2003-Present

Bachelor of Science in Building
Construction, 2003
University of Florida

Associates Degree in Business
Administration, 19993
Delgado Community Callege

OSHA 30
Uncommon Leadership Academy, 2006
Leadership Louisiana, 2018

Mr. Roger Husser
Louisiana State University
225.578.0803
rhussel@lsu.edu

Mr. Mike Wampold
Wampold Companies
225.215.1800
mwampold@wampold.com

Mr. Dan Shea

The Advocate
225.388.0730
dshea@theadvocate.com



As Vice President of Preconstruction and Integrated Project Delivery,
Van has overall responsibility for the day to day operational and financial
success of Pre-Construction and 1.P.D. Services. His respensibilities include
oversight of Pre-Construction, Estimating, Business Development, Project
Staffing, Resource Alignment, Customer and Subcontractor/Supplier
Relationships. With over 40 years of varied experience in the construction
industry, as a long time owner of one of Louisiana's largest specialty
subcontractors and architectural Millwork/Casework manufacturing firms
specializing in Healthcare and now as Vice President of The Lemoine
Company, he has acquired a diverse and in-depth background in the
construction industry.

His attention to detail and vast experience in a variety of construction projects enhance his ability to manage
project teams by effectively communicating with and motivating his teams to ensure the highest level of
client satisfaction and quality. Van has successfully managed a craft workforce of over 300 employees on
both conventional and fast track construction projects in the states of Texas, Mississippi, Oklahoma, South
Carolina, North Carolina, Alabama, Georgia, Florida, and Louisiana.

e  Strict Attention to Detail

®  Customer Satisfaction

s Excellent Communication Skifls
& Contract Review

Nicholson Gateway Development,$184 million
24 Acre Student Housing Development
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Chitdren’s Hospital New Orleans, $165 million
465,000SF Expansion, Renavation & Parking
Structure

New Orleans, Louisiana

LSU Patrick F. Taylor Hall,$100 million
432,000SF Education Building Renovation and
* Addition, CMaR

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Ochsner Medical Complex - High Grove, $76 million
260,000+ SF Design Build MOB and Ancillary
Surgical Center

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

LSU Tiger Stadium South End Zone Expansion, $71 milion
Stadium Addition/Expansion
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

®  Preconstruction Value Analysis

®  Design Build Delivery Method

® Integrated Project Delivery Approaches
® 44 Years Industry Experience

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Campus
Housing and Parking Deck, $68 million

Reno & Add to Campus Housing, Parking Garage
Lafayette, Louisiana

Baton Rouge Mixed Use / 1BM Building, $59 million
New Riverfront Mixed Use Development
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Student Union
Renovations &Additions, $40 million

Renovation & Additions to Approx. 200,000 SF
Campus Student Union Center

Lafayette, Louisiana

The Water Institute of the Gulf, $19 million
32,000, 3 Story Elevated Building on Dock
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Thrive Academy Dormitory, $7 million
43,000 Student Housing Building
Batcn Rouge, Louisiana

Years in Industry: 44

Years at Lemoine: 23
EXPERIENCE

VP of Preconstruction & I.P.D., Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Estimator
The Lemoine Company, LLC

Lafayette, Louisiana
1997-Present

Bachelor of Biological, Mathematics,
and Physical Science, 1976
University of Louisiana at Lafayette

State of Louisiana Real Estate Course,
1976

Uncommon Leadership Academy,
2006, Human Dynamics, Inc,
FMI Leadership Academy, 2007

Al

Mr. Mark J. Ripple
Eskew+Dumez+Ripple

504.561.8686
mripple@studioeskew.com

Mr, David C. Brown

Navigant Consulting

312.583.6994
dave.brown@navigantconsulting.com



and quality.

*  Excellent Management & Leadership Skifls
* Conceptual Estimating
®  Cost and Scope Verification

Nicholson Gateway Development,$184 million
24 Acre Student Housing Development
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Lafayette Regional Airport New Terminal, $100
million, CMaR

114,000 SF New Terminal

Lafayette, Louisiana

Lafayette Regional Airport Terminal Enabling
Demelition, $1.5 million

Demolition & Infrastructure

Lafayette, Lovisiana

LSU Patrick F. Taylor Hall, $100 million
432,000SF Education Building Renovation and
Addition, CMaR

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Ochsner Medical Complex - High Grove, $76 million
260,000+ SF Design Build MOB and Ancillary
Surgical Center

Baton Rouge, Louisiana

LSU Tiger Stadium South End Zone Expansion, $71 miffion
Stadium Addition/Expansion
Baton Rouge, Louvisiana

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Campus
Housing and Parking Deck, $68 million

Reno & Add to Campus Housing, Parking Garage
Lafayette, Louisiana

As Chief Estimator, Barrett offers hands on, comprehensive, conceptual
and hard dollar preconstruction experience. He is accountable for defining
scope, quantity, pricing, effective vendor solicitation, buyout and value
cost analysis. Barett applies his estimating knowledge to achieve timely
delivery of profitable, complex and challenging construction projects.

With nearly 20 years of vast experience in a variety of construction
projects, paired with attention to detail, Barrett has the ability to effectively
communicate with his team to ensure the highest level of client satisfaction

*  Management and Communication Skills
®  Design, Procurement and Field Processes
*  Various Delivery Methods

Southside High School, $62 million
258,000+ SF CMaR High School ,100 Acre Site
Youngsville, Louisiana

Baton Rouge Mixed Use / IBM Building, $59 million
New Riverfrant Mixed Use Development
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

LSU Business Education Complex, $42 million
156,000+ SF State-of-the-Art Educational Facility
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Student Union
Renovations &Additions, $40 million

Renovation & Additions to Approx. 200,000 SF
Campus Student Union Center

Lafayette, Louisiana

University of Louisiana at Lafayette Athletics Tier 1,
$24 million

CMaR, Athletic Facilities Improvements and Add
Lafayette, Louisiana

The Water Institute of the Guif, $19 million
32,000, 3 Story Elevated Building on Dock
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

UL Lewis Street Parking Garage, $18 million
6-Levels; 1,161 Parking Spaces
Lafayette, Louisiana

Years in Industry: 19
Years at Lemoine: 16

Chief Estimator/Senior Estimator
The Lemoine Company, LLC
Lafayette, Louisiana

2003 - Present

Estimator

Satterfield & Pontikes Construction, Inc.
Lafayette, Louisiana

2001 - 2003

Operations Management Specialist
United Parcel Service

Lafayette, Louisiana

1994-2000

Bachelor of Science, Construction
Management, 2000
Louisiana State University

Uncommon Leadership Academy, 2006
Human Dynamics, Inc.

Mr. Rick Lipscomb

WHLC Architecture
225.767.1530
rick@whlcarchitecture.com

Mr. Mark Landry

Centurion Partners Limited
214.369.4603
miandry@centurionpartners.com



As Project Manager, Michael provides leadership and support to the
Superintendent in achieving all profit, time, quality and customer
satisfaction objectives. His responsibilities include buyout and purchasing,
cost management, submittal process, close-out documents and managing
and coordination of subcontractors.

As ayoung, energetic Project Manager, Michael brings a focus to teamwork
and cost management. His ability to comprehend architectural and
structural details through interpretation of the contract drawings and

specifications is one of his greatest strengths.
Michael's background provides him with extensive coordination skills in all
areas of complex construction project management. He has an extensive

background in the construction of projects on active campuses and keeps safety at the forefront of his project
planning. Michael brings a great focus to Lemoine’s Core Value of “Attention to Detail” and is fecused on
achieving precision the first time. Combined with excellent communication, leadership, and motivational

skills, Michael ensures team and owner/ client satisfaction.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

e  Excellent Management & Communication Skills ~ ®  Strict Attention to Detail

*  Quality Assurance/ Quality Control *  Contract Drawings & Specifications
e  Submittal Process ®  Schedule Management

¢ (Cost Management = 9 Years Industry Experience

UL Student Housing, $68 million
Renavaticn & Additions to Campus Housing
Lafayette, Louisiana

UL Student Union Renovations & Additions, $40
million

Renovaticn & Additions to Approx. 200,000 SF
Campus Student Union Center

Lafayette, Louisiana

UL Lewis Street Parking Garage, $18 million
6-Levels; 1,161 Parking Spaces
Lafayette, Louisiana

Century Tower / IBM, $18.5 million
106,000 SF Office Building
Monrae, Louisiana

ULM.L. ‘Tigue' Maore Field Renovations, $12 million
CM at Risk Renovations to Existing Baseball Facility
Lafayette, Louisiana

The Vineyard Church

$2 millien

14,000 SF Addition to Existing Church
Lafayette, Louisiana

INDUSTRY EXPERIENCE
Years in Industry: 9
Years at Lemoine: 9

EXPERIENCE
Project Manager
The Lemoine Company, LLC

Lafayette, Louisiana
2013 - Present

Assistant Project Manager
The Lemoine Company, LLC
Lafayette, Louisiana
2012-2013

Office Engineer

The Lemoine Company, LLC
Baton Rouge, Louisiana
2010-2012

EDUCATION

BS, Construction Management
Louisiana State University
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

OSHA 30
Uncommon Leadership Academy, 2009
REFERENCES

Mr. Bill Crist

University of Louisiana at Lafayette
337.654.6884
wjc4092@louisiana.edu

Mr. Rowan Stewart

Niles Bolton Associates
404.365.7600x 114
rstewart@nilesbolton.com

Mr. John Barefoot

Ambling University Development Group
229.219.8145

|barefoot@audglic.com



As Project Superintendent, Lance provides leadership and overall
field management direction. He also serves as support to the Project
Management team in achieving all profit, time, quality and customer
P satisfaction objectives on projects. Lance's responsibilities include total
e B L job site execution including organization, work methods, scheduling, cost
manzagement, quality control, and conformance with contract drawings
and specifications.

Lance has 40+ years of overall construction experience, building his
resume from the position of Foreman, and is one of Lemoine's most capable
and experienced Superintendents. He has worked in various construction
markets including education, commercial and industrial, employing his
expertise across industry sectors. Lance’s teamwork and motivational skills are uniquely suited for working in
settings where the flow of project information is critical to all participants. Lance is a champion of Lemoine's
foundations of safety, quality and schedule ensuring well defined plan are developed and executed by all in
the field.

B R i ot e e s e
AREAS OF EXPERTISE

*  Excellent Management & Communication Skills Contract Drawings & Specifications

®  Quality Assurance/ Quality Control ®  Schedule Management
e CostManagement ® 40+ Years Industry Experience
®  Strict Attention to Detail ®  Promotes Teamwork

MOTABLE PROJECTS

SLCC Health & Science Building, $16 million
63,000+ SF 3-Story Educational Facility
Lafayette, Louisiana

South Beauregard Elementary, $10 million
78,000+ SF Elementary Campus
Longville, Louisiana

G.E. Oil and Gas , $17 million
Industrial Office & Manufacturing Complex
Broussard, Louisiana

Weatherford TRS, $14 million
Manufacturing and Testing Facility, Offices
Broussard, Louisiana

Homewood Suites, $10 million

4-Story Hotel

Lafayetie, Louisiana

Dupre Logistics, $5 million

Office Building, Mechanic Shop, Truck Terminal
Channelview, Texas

Schilling New Warehouse Addition, $5 million
Addition to Warehouse/ Distribution Center
Lafayette, Louisiana

Knight Manufacturing
$12 million

Machine Shop and Offices
Lafayette, Louisiana

Years in Industry: 27
Years at Lemoine: 10

EAPERIEN

Project Superintendent
The Lemoine Company, LLC
Lafayette, Louisiana

2009 - present

Superintendent/Project Manager
Rudick Company, Inc.

Lafayette, Louisiana

2003 - 2009

Sole Owner
Campbell Construction Co

Opelousas, Louisiana
1992 - 2003

A BT
EDUCATIOR

Attended USL 1990 - 1992

P ATICIE AT B«
CERIFILARTIUND

0SHA 10 Hour Certification
OSHA 30 Hour Certification
NCCER Certified Craft Instructor
AC| Certified: Flat-Work Tech

ACI Certified: Tilt-Wall Tech
Mr. Eric Crozier
Abell+Crozier+Davis Architects

337.235.8016
eric@acdarchitects.com

Mr. David Bell

E_P. Breaux Electrical
337.364.8183
david.bell@epbreaux.com

Mr. Jeffery Augustine

Architects Southwest
337.237.2211
jeftery@architectssouthwest.com



As Lead Scheduler, Jonathan provides overall review and maintenance
of the Project Schedule. His role requires close interaction and
communications with the Construction Manager, Project Manager, and
Superintendent. His responsibilities include the accurate preparation of the
weekly construction Schedule progress updates, ensuring that the latest
status of shop drawings, approvals, fabrication and delivery dates are up to
date and exact, general P6 database maintenance insuring that the dates
and float values shown in each report issue are accurate and dependable,
and he also provides expert assistance in the preparation of job site “what
if" scenarios as well as the process of correctly including the approved
scenarios into the current database for progress and reporting functions.

Jonathan always incorporates safety and proper work execution into each Lemoine Project Schedule. This
Lead Scheduling position ensures that projects are delivered safely, on schedule and to the satisfaction of our
customers throughout rigorous attention to every detail.

Jonathan has over ten years of experience in the construction industry. His ability to fully understand the
sequence of operations in construction as well as his excellent knowledge of P6 and the art of schedule
preparation are some of his greatest strengths. His strict attention to detail combined with excellent
communication skills, proven leadership skills combined with his unwavering honesty ensures that each of our

owners/ clients receive the highest level of satisfaction and quality possible.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

®  Excellent Management & Communication
Skills

& Commitment to Safety

*  Ability to read and understand Construction
Documents

* 8+ years of Primavera P6 scheduling
experience

®  Understanding of construction field progress
and the method(s) of quantifying the work
complete at any paint in the Project

® A working knowledge of Project Contral
methods

®  Strict attention to detail

Years in Industry: 13
Years at Lemoine: 6

EXPERIFN

Lead Project Scheduler
The Lemoine Company, LLC
New Orleans, Louisiana
2014 - Present

Project Scheduler / Quality Control
Broadmoor, LLC.

Lafayette, Lovisiana

2012-2013

Associate Project Scheduler
Lakeshaore Toltest Engineering
Detroit, Michigan/Dubai, UAE/
Basra,lQ

2011-2012

Project Scheduler
Novaces, L.L.C.

New Orleans, Louisiana
2010-2011

Project Controls Lead Planner
Kellogg Brown & Root

Masul USD—North, lrag
2007-2010

Studied Contemporary Business
Management, 2009
University of Phoenix Online

Studied Business Management, 2005

Louisiana State University

Mr. Justin Van Wie
Louis Berger
202.525.9725
vanwiejm@gmail.com

Mr. Juan Marroquin

Owens Corning
832.293.9999
juanmarroquinjr@gmail.com

Mr. Brad Gaspard

RR Company of America, L.L.C.
337.981.4060
bgaspard@rrcoa.com



As Lemoine's BIM Coordinator, Jared is responsible for the management
of our virtual construction process. Through Model Management and
administration, he ensures the health of the BIM database. Jared
coaches, mentors and supervises the process of virtually constructing
a building by production {modeling and documentation tasks). Jared
leads BIM Coordination Meetings between Lemoine's staff and all major
subcontractors to ensure the spatial coordination of disciplines.

Jared conducts clash-detection and conflict resolution while coaching
each sub contractor to proactively build and design in a smart fashion.
Jared maintains a high level of communication and fosters teamwork to
assemble a work environment to achieve optimum BIM performance.

Jared recently received his CM-BIM certification. The AGC Certificate of Management-Building Information
Modeling (CM-BIM) is an assessment-based certificate credential that denotes knowledge and understanding
of concepts related to BIM adoption, practice and process transformation outlined in the AGC BIM Education

Program.

e 4D Scheduling

= Virtual Mock Ups

= Model Verification

*  Virtual As-Builts & D&M
NOTABLE PROJECTS

Ochsner Outpatient Diagnostic Center
New Orleans, Lovisiana

Boomtown New Orleans New Hotel
New Orleans, Louisiana

West Jefferson Medical Center
Marrero, Louisiana

Stephens Garage
New Orleans, Louisiana

Ochsner Medical Complex - High Grove
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Children's Hospital New Orleans Renovation & Expansion
CMAR
New Orleans, Louisiana

Verandah Addition at Graywood Senior Living
Lake Charles, Louisiana

LSU Cedar Hall
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Building 6A at The Water Campus
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Construction Marketing using Augmented &
Virtual Reality
Architectural, Structural & MEPF Coordination

Thrive Academy Phase Il
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Ascension Parish Courthouse
Gonzales, Louisiana

Lafayette Airport New Terminal
Lafayette, Louisiana

Qur Savior's Church O-Town
Opelousas, Louisiana

Shell Geismar Wellness Center
Geismar, Louisiana

UL Housing Phase |l
Lafayette, Louisiana

Methodist North Tower Expansion

MEPF Coordination of the 4th floor of Methadist
North Expansion Tower

Houston Texas

Years in Industry: 6
Years at Lemoine: 2

BIM Coordinator

The Lemoine Company, LLC
Lafayette, Louisiana
2017—Present

BIM Coordinator/Estimator
Kent Design Build
Mandeville, Louisiana
2016-2017

BIM Coordinator

Hill & Wilkinson General Contractors
Richardson, Texas

2016-2016

BIM Coordinator
Harvey Builders
Houston, Texas
2015-2015

BIM Coordinator/Project Engineer
Vaughn Construction

Dallas, Texas

2014-2014

Intern

The Lemoine Company
Lafayette, Louisiana
2013-2013

Bachelor of Science, Construction
Management, Louisiana State University,
Minor in Business and Statistical Sales,
2013

Chris Young
S&P
281.793.0066

Gene Lambert
Comnerstone Construction
225.953.3950
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TAB 4

Experience on Similar Projects



A sampling of our portfolio with similar projects....

Barbara Greenbaum House at Tulane University

Campus Housing at McNeese State University

Campus Housing + Garage at University of Louisiana at Lafayette
Lewis Street Parking Garage at University of Louisiana at Lafayette
McKinley Street Parking Garage at University of Louisiana at Lafayette
Nicholson Gateway Development at LSU + Parking Garage
Zimple House at Tulane University

Ridgeview Apartments

Woman's Hospital Parking Garage Expansion

Louisiana State Capitol Park, Galvez Parking Garage

Millhouse Condominiums

State Parking Garage

River Ranch Parking Garage

Carriage House Cendominiums

Bel Sole Condominiums

Vista Bella Condominiums

Baton Rouge Mixed Use Development / IBM + Parking Garage
Baton Rouge Townhomes

Stephen's Garage

LSU Cedar Hall

LSU Spruce Hall

WWII Museumn Parking Garage

Thrive Dormitory Phase | & Il

Il City Plaza + Parking Garage

Children's Hospital of New Orleans Parking Garage
Lafayette General Medical Center Parking Garage

Opelousas General Parking Garage




Located in downtown Baton Rouge, this
is the first riverfront office and residential
development in over half a century. After
a deal struck in late March 2013, IBM
announced their selection of Baton Rouge
as the site for its’ next software development
center. The Baton Rouge Area foundation
aided in IBM's selection of the hometown
venue, including the key incentive of office
space. The 428,000 square foot complex,
developed by Commercial Properties Realty
Trust, the firm that develops and manages
real estate for the Baton Rouge Area
Foundation, includes a multitude of uses.

S T

b TN

o

Rising an the empty site where The Advocate
newspaper headquarters once stood, a nine-
story office tower was recently completed for
the 800 employees IBM will bring downtown.
Next to it, a 7-story residential tower that
includes 85 apartments will be constructed.
Bath towers will sit atop a four story parking
garage. A 24,000 square foot riverfront
rooftop terrace will connect the two buildings.
Adjacent to the parking garage, 9 luxury
multi-level townhomes will be constructed,
each with a private garage.

SIZE

VALUE

CONSTRUCTION
START

CONSTRUCTION
COMPLETION

OWNER

ARCHITECT

260,000 SF

$55,000,000

October 14, 2013

April 30, 2015

Commercial Properties Realty Trust
Mrs. Carolyn Martin
cmartin@cprt.com
225.924.7206

Antunovich Associates
Mr. Jeff Woll
jwoll@antunovich.com
312.573.6144



Located on the campus of the University of
Louisiana at Lafayette (UL), the Campus Housing
project was introduced amidst current conditions
and limited offerings of student housing to
potential and existing students. As the second
largest University in the state, UL lacked the
housing assets held by other Universities, able to
accommodate only 11% of its student papulation,
compared to 20% and above at peer institutions.
With student population continuing to rise, UL
embarked on a mission not only to alleviate the
impending space issues, but to create a solution
that would exceed expectations and raise the bar
of traditionally perceived campus housing with
the introduction of a “campus neighborhood”
concept.

The most strapping obstacle was ensuring the
available bed count, even with demolition of
existing facilities, stayed constant and only
improved during the course of construction. The
University needed to have 120,000 sf, 462-bed
Baker Hall available, along with an 854 space
parking garage which included 8,000 sf of tenant
space, in 8 months. This would allow students
living in the present dorms to vacate and move into
Baker Hall by August 1, 2011, thus allowing the
contractor to begin demolition and construction of
240,000 SF of dorms to be made available for the

following August of 2012. Formulating a detailed
scheduling plan, and driving the schedule through
its critical path, ensured that replacement and
renovation of existing facilities allowed students
to be moved comfortably and safely into their new
temporary homes while new construction was
underway,

While the new construction in the Student
Housing project posed a variety of scheduling and
planning challenges, the Renovations associated
with the project posed their own construction and
engineering challenges. In both Randolph Hall
and Buchanan Hall, the project team was tasked
with renovating two Historic buildings on campus.
This involved bringing both buildings up to cade,
completely gutting the existing interior walls,
installing elevator shafts, all while maintaining
the historical and architectural integrity of the
buildings.

Over a 30-month timeline, the project involved
demolition of & existing and construction of 4
new buildings, renovation of 3 buildings, 854
structured parking spaces and 8,000 sf of retail.
UL began the Fall 2012 semester with nearly
3,000 beds and approximately 460,000 sf of
freshly constructed new age campus living.

SIZE

VALUE

CONSTRUCTION
START

CONSTRUCTION
COMPLETION

OWNER

DEVELOPER

ARCHITECT

AWARDS

520,000 SF Housing & Renavatior
290,000 SF Parking Deck
7,500 SF Retail Space

$68,944 826

December 10, 2010

May 21, 2013

University of Louisiana at Lafayett
Mr. Bili Crist
wjc4029@louisiana.edu, 337.482.2(

RISE: A Real Estate Company

Mr. Greg Blais
ghlais@risere.com, 229.219.8139

Niles Bolton Associates Inc.

Mr. Dale McClain, AIA, LEED AP
dmcclain@nilesbolton.com
404.365.7600

Award of Excellence, 2013
Associated Builders and Contractc
Pelican Chapter



Located on the campus of Louisiana State
University, the Nicholson Gateway Development
project spreads approximately 24 acres along
Nicholson Drive to the North Gates of campus.
Rising on the former site of Alex Box baseball
stadium and mamiage and family housing,
this project began with the remaval of existing
foundations, paving and structures.

Project scope includes construction of 7 new
student housing buildings consisting of wood
frame construction, a pre-cast parking garage and
retail space for future tenants. The project also
inchudes approximately 24 acres of landscape,
paving and unit pavers as well as improvements
to Nicholson Drive.

The 822,231 SF of student housing apartments
range between 4 and 6 stories and house a
total of 1,525 beds across 768 units. A 5-story
802-space parking garage is also part of the
development.

In addition, 38,365 SF of retail space will be
created at the ground level making way for 6 retail
tenants, including Matheme's Market, a full on-
campus grocery store catering to residents and
game-day fans alike. An additional 9,937 SF of
recreational space is also encompassed in the
development.

SIZE

VALUE

CONSTRUCTION
START

CONSTRUCTION
COMPLETION

ARCHITECT

822,231 SF Student Housing
9,937 SF Recreation
264,682 SF Parking Garage
38,365 Retail

$188,249,501

October 3, 2016

June 25, 2018

Mr. Paul Morgan
RISE - A Real Estate Company

: pmnrgan@risere.com

229.219.8147

Niles Bolton Assaciates
Mr. Dale McClain
dmcclain@nilesbolton.com
404.365.7600

Remson | Haley [ Herpin

Mr. Jason Hargrave
jhargrave@rhharchitects.com
225.383.0002



This projectincludes anew parking garage forthe
Nationa! World War Il Museum in New Orleans.
The six-story garage is pre-cast cancrete with
CMU walls an a concrete foundation. The first
floor available for refail and office spaces
totaling 12,000 square feet. The remaining five
floors of the garage will accommodate 450 cars.

SIZE
VALUE

CONSTRUCTION
START

CONSTRUCTION
COMPLETION

OWNER

ARCHITECT

172,000 SF

$8,505,000

March 15, 2015

June 1, 2016

National WWIl Museum
Bob Farnsworth
bob.famsworth
@nationalww2museum.org

- Mathes Brierre Architects

Scott Evans
sevans@mathesbrierre.com
504.586.9303
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PRIVACY POLICY (/PRIVACY-POLICY)

Secured Transactions - Bonds -
Elections

ERIC LAFLEUR

Real Estate - Title Insurance

Eric LaFleur provides legal

representation to clients in
private, commercial and public
finance. The Mahtook &
LaFleur's transactional group
provides expertise in the
complexities of public finance.
In addition, the group is often
called upon to assist on issues
or policy disputes involving
Louisiana law of municipalities,
parishes, and special districts.
LaFleur's transactional group
handles local elections and
related ballot initiatives

regarding new or existing taxes
or the provisions of home rule
charters. In the last 25 years, LaFleur has represented governmental
entities. including public and private partnerships, airport
commissions, hospital districts. school boards, villages, towns, cities,
school boards, levee districts, fire districts, water districts and parish
governments in a variety of different financings and elections.

In addition, LaFleur assists clients with developing financing
structures to support the growth and expansion of their businesses
into new markets. LaFleur's work includes the representation of
business clients in writing and advancing policies and procedures to
prevent unnecessary litigation. When disputed matters result in
litigation, LaFleur brings his knowledge of the law and his gwn_
ousiness experience to provide a comprehensive and realistic
approach to the firm's entrepreneurial clients to resolve those
sometimes expensive disputed matters. LaFleur served as Senior

By using this website, you agree to our use of cookies. We use cookies to help our wabsite run eff

ERIC@MANDLOFFICE.COM
(MAILTO:ERIC@MANDLOFFICE.COM)

BORN
VILLE PLATTE. LOUISIANA

EDUCATION

TULANE LAW SCHOOL {JURIS
DOCTOR, 1991)

LOUISIANA STATE UNIVERSITY {(B.A.
1986}

BAR ADMISSIONS
LOUISIANA, 1991

COURT ADMISSIONS

SUPREME COURT OF LOUISIANA
EASTERN, WESTERN AND MIDDLE
DISTRICTS OF LOUISIANA

MEMBERSHIPS

LAFAYETTE PARISH BAR
ASSOCIATION

EVANGELINE PARISH BAR
ASSOCIATION

LOUISIANA STATE BAR ASSOCIATION
LOUISIANA ASSOCIATION OF
INDEPENDENT LAND TITLE AGENTS
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF BOND
LAWYERS

BOND BUYER'S MUNICIPAL
MARKETPLACE (THE "RED BOOK")
AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION

Disclosure Compliance

“By having auditors check, | think
there will be better compliance 2

dhaea,will less likely be actioX by



Felony Prosecutor with the Orleans Parish District Attorney's Office. SEC,"” said LaFleur, a partner at

He has earned valuable court room and jury trial experience with Mahtook & LaFleur.
over 60 jury trials. THE BOND BUYER
ﬁ LaFleur currently serves as the State Senator for the 28th District of IO Lawmaker Sees Compliance Defit 21’;-

_ouisiana, representing all or parts of Avoyelles, Acadia, St. Landry. =T B Ratings
Evangeline and Avoyelles. He is assigned to the Committees on the ==
Budget. Finance, Judiciary B. Insurance. and serves as Chairman of

the Senate Finance Committee. He has supported and sponsored

key legislation in improving Louisiana law regarding public finance,

elections and related accountability measures.
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Experience and Past Performance



LeCentre Evangeline Corporation
List of Projects

Acquisition/ Rehab — Chateau Royale Apartments, Orange, TX, 24 units, MWT Property Company
Acquired 1998, 2007 completed Rehab after Hurricane Rita and late 2008 rehab after Hurricane lke.

New Construction — Cane Pointe Apartments, Inc., 800 block of Bayard Street, New Iberia, LA, 12 -~ 3
bedrooms, 2 bath units, Completed 2010, Grant Consultant, and Administrator of Grant Funds. Funded
by Louisiana Housing Trust Fund (LHTF), HOME, FHLB-D, and Iberia Bank in which LeCentre procured all
sources of funds. Community Directions, Inc. was the sponsor of the application. Completed 2011 Total
Development budget $1,655,504.

New Construction — Cane Pointe Apartments, Phase |l, 2 — 2 bedroom and 2 - 1 bedroom units, funded
in part through Louisiana State Office of Community Development{OCD) and Iberia Bank, Disaster
Recovery unit. TDC $621,157. Completed 05/2013

Rehabilitation — James A Herod Apartments, 1500 block Israel Parker Drive, Abbeville, LA, 9 - 2
bedrcoms, 1 bath units, Grant Consultant, Administrator of Grant Funds. Funded by LHTF, HOME,
FHLB-D and Iberia Bank in which LeCentre procured all sources of funds. Herod Village and Assist
Agency were the sponsor of the application. Completed 2011. Total Development budget $1,984,638.

Rehabilitation — James A Herod Apartments, Phase li, 12 one bedroom units, funded by OCD, Iberia
Bank. Completed 5/2014. Sponsored by the Assist Agency and Herod Village, Inc. — Continuation of
James Herod Apts. into adjacent wing of old school building. TDC $2,262,563.

New Construction — Park Ridge Apartments, Inc., 1600 block of South Washington Street, Opelousas, LA,
12 - 3 bedrooms, 2 bath units, Completed 2010, Grant Consultant, Administrator of Grant Funds.
Funded by LHTF, HOME and First Bank in Deridder in which LeCentre procured all sources of funds.
Seventh District Pavilion, inc. was the sponsor. Completed 2011 Total development budget $
1,628,472.

New Construction — Park Ridge Apartments, Phase I, 4 = 2 bedroom units, funded by LHC/HOME and
Bank of Commerce, Completed 7/2014. TDC $592,000.

New Construction — Evangeline Pointe Apartments, Inc., Prosper Street, Ville Platte, LA, 12 - 2
bedrooms, 2 bath units, completed 2011 , Grant Consultant, Administrator of Grant Funds. Funded by
LHTF and Evangeline Bank in which LeCentre procured all sources of funds. Evangeline Home Health
was the sponsor of the application. Completed 2011 . Total development budget $1,355,000.

New Construction —~ Unity Village Homes, Inc. — Scattered sites, Eunice. LA, 9 -3 bedroom, 2 bath single
family homes. Development completed 2012. Total development budget $1,316,000.

New Construction - Daigle House Apartments, Inc. = Sponsored by Affiliated Blind Training Center, 32
units with 16 — 1 bedroom and 16 2 — bedroom apartments located on Willow Street in Lafayette, LA
adjacent to apartments owned by Sponsor. Total development budget $3,816,000. Completed 07/2013.



New Construction - Gardens of Baton Rouge Apartments — Sponsored by Gardens Senior Apartments,
LP. For 551 & 2 bedroom units for the elderly located in Baton Rouge, LA. with an approximate total
development budget of $6,000,000 plus/minus.

New Construction — Faith House Ill and part of the overall develop of Maison De La Paix — Sponsored by
Faith House, Inc. and Community Directions, Inc. for 6 = 2 bedroom units located in Lafayette, LA. Total
development budget approximately $750,000. Initial closing December 2011. Funding provided by LHFA
HOME funds and loan. Completed 5/2013

New Construction — Maison De La Paix- MDLP- Sponsored by Faith House, Inc., Seventh District Pavilion
and Community Directions, Inc. for 4 = 1 bedroom unit and 2 - 3 bedroom units located in Lafayette, LA.
Adjacent to Faith House Ill with a development budget of approximately $951,000. Funding provided by
City of Lafayette CDBG. Completed 10/2013

Acquisition/Rehabilitation ~ Ludbar Apartments - Sponsor Ashely Directions, Inc., Hamburg, AR 30 - 1
bedroom USDA 515 Elderly, HAC loan and FHLB. Completed mid 2015, TDC $1,005,646.

Acquisition/Rehabilitation — LIKTC - Rue Du Lac Apartments — Phase Il of the original Village Du Lac
complex. Sponsor Diocese of Lafayette, Lafayette, LA 140 units. Funded by LHC/HOME, LIHTC.
Completed 12/2012. TDC $15,466,754. Completed 12/2012

Acquisition/Rehabilitation — Village Du Lac Apartments, Phase | & Ill = Sponsor Diocese of Lafayette,
Lafayette, LA 60 units — funded by LHC ~-HOME, FHLB-D, HUD and Lancaster Pollard. TDC $8,019,000
approximately..

Rehabilitation — Village Du Chesne Apartments — Sponsor Diocese of Lafayette, Sunset, LA- 70 units.
Funded by LHC/HOME, FHLB-D, HUD 223 and Lancaster Pollard. Completed 6/2015. TDC $4,791,852
approximately.

Rehabilitation{minor) — Maison De Goodwill — Sponsor Goodwill Industries of Acadiana - Lafayette, LA -
41 units, elderly and frail elderly HUD 202, minor rehab. Funded by FHLB-D. Completed 10/2014. TDC
$287,000

Rehabilitation — Holy Family Apartments located on Louisiana Ave in Lafayette, LA — 140 units -, Funding
provided by HUD and Lancaster Pollard, LIHTC 4% bond. TDC approximately $20,000,000. Completed
2015

New Construction — Maison De La Paix- MDLP IV - Sponsored by Faith House, Inc., Seventh District
Pavilion and Community Directions, Inc. for 4 — 2 bedroom units located in Lafayette, LA. Funding
provided by City of Lafayette, Community Development Department, City HOME Funds. Completed
March 2016. TDC approximately $741,125.

New Construction — Park Ridge Apartments, Phase lll, 5 - 2 bedroom units, funded by LHC/HOME and
MidSouth Bank, Completed 10/2015. TDC $883,742.

New Construction — Maison De La Paix- MDLP V - Sponsored by Faith House, Inc., Seventh District
Pavilion and Community Directions, Inc. for 4 — 3 bedroom units located in Lafayette, LA. Funding
provided by City of Lafayette, Community Development Department, City HOME Funds. Awarded
March 2016, Final Approval September 2016, construction start October 2016, TDC approximately
$739,450.



Rehabilitation — Gabriel Villa — 64 unit rehab, Ville Platte, LA, Funded by LHC/Home/4%LIHTC and bank,
pre-closing, TDC $6,167,739.

New Construction — Park Ridge Apartments, Opelousas, LA, Phase IV, 5 — 2 bedroom, Funded by
LHC/HOME and Bank, Initial closing 10/2016, TDC $ 735,300.

New Construction — Park Ridge Apartments, Opelousas, LA, Phase V, 5 — 2 bedroom, Funded by
LHC/HOME and Bank, Initial closing 10/2016, TDC $ 745,550.

Rehabilitation — Beau Sejour Estates — 105 unit rehab, Carencro, LA, Funded by LHC/Home/4%LIHTC and
bank, pre-closing, TDC $7,394,058.

Rehabilitation - Ville Platte Scattered Sites — 4 unit single family homes, Ville Platte, LA, Funded by
LHC/Home/ and bank, pre-closing , TDC $ 492,000.

New Construction — Park Ridge Apartments, Opelousas, LA, Phase VI, 10 - 2 bedroom, Funded by
LHC/HOME and Bank, Initial closing 02/2017, TDC $1,609,125.
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GENERAL CONTRACTING | CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
DESIGN-BUILD | DESIGN-ASSIST | CMaR

Driven by our Purpose: To achieve excellence in construction while
enhancing the lives of all involved, The Lemoine Company performs
over $2 billion'in preconstruction exercises annually and has delivered
over 950 individual projects across the Gulf Central Region.

www.lemoinecompany.com




“lemoine has shown great care
and consideration to the project
and CPRT by providing capable and
professional " accounting, estimating,
and construction management teams
through the entire life of.the project.”
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Baton Rouge Mixed Use Development

428,000 Gross Square Feet

$55 Million

S-story Office Tower for 800 employees
7-story Residential Tower; 85 Apartments

4-Story Parking Garage First Riverfront Office and Residential
24,000 Square Faot Rooftop Terrace Development in Over Half a Century
Rooftop Pool Qverlooking the River

9 Luxury Townhouses with Private Garages

Construction Services



SUBMISSION PART B. REDEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

Preface:

Page 16 of the RFP specifies certain requirements that must be satisfied in order for this or any
Proposal 1o be considered for selection:

* Roles and Responsibilities of the Parties

Internal Development Team Roles and Responsibilities are clear. If this Proposal
meets with favor, Sponsor CDI will immediately establish “ADF Properties
Corporation” (ADF-PC). ADF-PC will in turn sign Contracts with other Team
Members: a Development Services Agreement with Le Centre Evangeline
Corporation; an Architectural Services Contract; a General Construction
Contract; and an MOU or Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with LCG.

LCG Role. This Proposal assumes that if selected, the Development Team will be
invited to commence to dialogue with LCG counterparts that will refine the
project scope and yield detailed drawings, after which the Development Team
will be able to commence its work with maximum LCG support and minimum
delay.

e Performance Criteria

Once LCG and the Development Team have arrived at a consensus with respect
to scope, the Development Team will employ Best Practices whose intent will be
to complete the Project on time and on budget. The Architectural Team including
Project Architect, ULL Architecture Professor Cory Saft and Architect of Record
Brodie Ardoin will provide drawings, plans and specs for preliminary approval by
ADF-PC (with input throughout from the General Contractor, in order to hasten
closing, construction start, and completion). Once tentatively approved, the
Development Team shall brief LCG leadership with their thoughts and to solicit
feedback.

e Issues such as limitations of assignability
If selected, Sponsor envisions no need to change its project Principals or reassign

roles, other than to incorporate ADF-PC and the LP and LLC entities likely to be
required for the proposed financial undertaking.

* Dedicated Parking Spaces for LCG use
The discussion concerning “Phase ['" of this Proposal contains specifics regarding
the dedication of Parking Spaces for LCG use in the manner required by the RFP,
and articulates a Plan to move at once to fulfill this LCG Priority.

o Dafford Mural



This Proposal articulates a Plan to preserve the Dafford Mural by relocating same.
Sponsors have set aside resources in its Phase I Parking Garage budget to do so, and
are willing to consider any reasonable alternatives LCG might propose, such as to
enhance visibility at another location.

LCG Consent for Changes to Key Personnel, Site Plan, Design Concept,
Development Schedule, and Changes to the financial offer proposed here as required
to maintain feasibility and viability.

In accordance with RFP requirements, Sponsors arec amenable to having LCG
Consent to any such Changes.

1. Redevelopment Approach

One Proposal: Five Components

This Redevelopment Project Proposal envisions five (5) major components:

(i) the Parking Garage;

(ii) Downtown Workforce Housing on Convent Sreet;
(iii) Downtown Workforce Housing on Jefferson Street;
(iv) Office Space; and

(v) Ground Floor Retail Space.

One Proposal: Three Phases

l.

Phase |: Parking Garage. ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number | by
completely rehabilitating the existing LCG 340 space Parking Facility in advance of
Phases Il and III. This allows for staging and crane access.

LCG would enter into a long-term lease agreement with ADF-PC for its reserved 265
parking spaces for an amount adequate to support operations and debt service on a
pro rata basis with the other 75 parking spaces. (Please see Phase [ Parking Facility
Financial Sources and Uses and Pro Forma.) The remaining 75 parking spaces will be
available to Phase II and Phase II1 tenants, employees, and customers, and the general
public and likewise contribute their pro rata share of required revenue.

Phase Il: Townhomes, and Affordable Downtown Workforce Housing. ADF-PC
proposes to address LCG Priority Number 2 by developing the land for Highest and
Best Use (to the extent permissible, given LCG’s expressed interest of providing
Affordable Workforce Housing downtown. Phase II will involve the open land
fronting Buchanan and Convent Streets and the construction of five (5) new 4
bedroom Townhomes plus fifty eight (58) Affordable Workforce Residences, whether
concurrently or not with other Phases).



LCG will enter into a long-term surface leasehold agreement with ADF-PC for the
Workforce housing, but following discussions with LCG it will be more practical for
the five (5) new 4 bedroom Townhomes to be structured differently, to facilitate their
sale to third parties when desirable.

3. Phase I1I: Retail Rental, Business Offices and 40 Downtown Workforce Apartments.
ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number 3 by developing the land for the
Highest and Best Use by utilizing the open land fronting on Jefferson Street to
develop Retail Rental Space on the Ground Floor, Office Space on the second floor,
and forty (40) Market Rate Apartments, utilizing the Plan described elsewhere for
Phase III (whether concurrent or not with other Phases). LCG will enter into a long-
term surface lease agreement with ADF-PC for this Phase.

Why Three Phases?

While ADF-PC envisions a unified and ratified concept design at the outset, some or all
Components and Phases might have to stand on independent legal and financial footings due to
the various Sources of Financing applicable in each Phase.

For example, whereas the Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments Component will be
funded in part with Federal resources such as HOME and CDBG funds and the equity proceeds
derived from the sale of Low Income Housing Tax Credits, those resources are unlikely to
contribute toward the construction of the proposed Office Space and ground floor Retail Space.

Likewise while New Markets Tax Credit equity coupled with other financing is likely the most
efficient means possible to finance a portion of the costs associated with restoring the Parking
Garage, this financing mechanism is unlikely to play a role in the other aspects of this ambitious
undertaking. (Such equity cannot be used, for example, to finance rental housing. Only the retail
storefronts, business offices and parking components of this development are eligible New
Markets Tax Credit activities.

Timing issues resulting from disparate closing and construction schedules are additional reasons
for such flexibility. For example, hopefully the apparently urgent need to replace the suddenly
eliminated downtown parking need not be slowed by lengthier timelines required by other
Components, such as Affordable Workforce Apartments, for which resources will not be
available for at least another year.

While ADF-PC intends to vigorously pursue each of the Components, it hopes to be able to
restore the downtown Parking Garage to service in shortest order as Phase 1.

Project Performance

Regardless of Component or Sources of Financing available that matches to each, ADF-PC and
its Development Team will employ every means and convention available to manage each
Component to meet or exceed performance expectation, on schedule, and within budget, and yet
be able to promptly respond to the inevitable challenges that will  arise during the process.



ADF-PC and its development team understand that whoever is chosen pursuant to this RFP will
be expected to carry out all phases of planning and/or construction necessary to successfully
implement and complete the Project conceived in its Proposal, including but not limited to:

o Preparing architect drafted, detailed scope and work specifications;

o Implementing the project or program activity as proposed in the application, using
reputable, locally experienced, and insured architects and contractors, and in the case of
the general contractor, one with adequate performance bonding capacity to guarantee the
construction completion;

o Ensuring compliance with reporting requirements of all funders;

C Managing fund disbursement and accounting, utilizing third parties to certify percentages
of completion, construction cost retainages;

o Ensuring that all Local, State and Federal requirements are met for the entire
affordability period applicable to the Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments
Component.

2. Redevelopment Design Concept

Development Proposal: TOTAL Parking: 358

Total Land area: 41 acres

Total Project: 126,445 sf conditioned Required LCG Parking: 265 daytime spots
163,601 sf total

Tenant/Use mix: Commercial/Office/Residential Provided: 265 LOG spots:+-93 additional spots

Project Total Units: Retail: 2,600 sf
Office: 7,2000 sf
Multi-Family: (67) 2-beds; (21) I-beds; (5) studios; (5) townhouses

Our proposal for the redevelopment of the Buchanan Parking Garage and

e L . . z : Market Rat
adjoining sites is a mixed-use, mixed-income concept broken into three phases. ot

Funding
Downtown will be more successful as it becomes more diverse in terms of

income ranges, amenities and services. Each phase corresponds to a
different primary funding mechanism and so can proceed simultaneously or
in sequence.

PHASE I: Existing Parking Garage rehabilitation

= o We will relocate the Dafford mural, remove the exterior panels of the
Ly, . :
A “] “.._ garage, completely refurbish the structural steel and cast-in-place
g .~ concrete building and re-clad the exterior with a more breathable
. N skinning alternative.
aae,,.‘.'};_ L \&cﬁo“ &
> K PHASE I1I: Convent Street Building (including lobby space)

Phase 11 will be an independent building at Convent and Buchanan
10




Streets with five townhouse at ground level and 53 affordable units above for a total project of
approximately 90,000 sf total.

PHASE III: Jefferson Street Building

P > Phase III will share the lobby of the Convent building but otherwise
Ty _ be an independent building on Jefferson Street with a first-class retail
| L . space at ground level, offices on the second level and 40 affordable
C‘o,,p . \\//‘ifso“sx units above for a total project of approximately 60,000 sf total.
i

Program Distribution

PHASE |

PHASE Il
PHASE I
- Market Rate Units

Affordable Units

.. Office
G Commercial
Townhomes il CO,‘;;" "",(' ‘\. : 5 =
Nt 5p e ﬁ*\é@(

SITE STRATEGY
Maximization of site connectivity during construction and

* A sequence of construction staging areas

after to facilitate assembly and post-completion access in and Eaps =
around the site | : - :
Our three- phase design strategy is built around an internal 4 55 - E
service road that allows for: bl

» Permanent internal access to the site to facilitate late-stage R
construction, post-construction service access and building =
safety SRS

* Ease of access and additional parking for residents

STRUCTURAL STRATEGY
Innovative assembly system to better negotiate the urban site

11
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Cross Laminated Timber advantages (as funding allows):
» Large, prefabricated ‘chunks’
-Quick, efficient installation
-Effective in tight site conditions
* Design Flexibility & ‘finished’ interior surfaces
» Superior Acoustic, Fire and Environmentally Performance
* Reduced Waste

3. Project Risks (and Mitigation Approaches)

Each Component and Phase of a Project of this nature comes accompanied by a number
of Risks.

Major Risks include the ability to:

(1) Finalize firm funding commitments of adequate (and eligible) funding for each
Phase;

(11) Complete the work;

(i)  Operate feasibly and viably once completed.

Funding. With respect to firm funding commitments, it is unlikely any Offeror will be
able to offer LCG truly firm financial commitments at this juncture, before the proposed
scopes of work are received with favor by LCG, plans are finalized, and Market Studies
and Appraisals confirm the financial assumptions contained in financial pro formas.
Hard financing commitments must conform to the capital financial needs and operating
revenues that can be reasonably anticipated to flow from the Redevelopment Project, and
those cannot be known until the scope of work is known and Market Studies are received.

Completion. Getting all the financing is one thing. Completing the project is another.
The bonded building contract will guarantee completion.

The ability of any Sponsor to complete work that is proposed and accepted by the LCG
starts with the Development Team itself.

Sponsors CDI and LCE believe they have assembled a fully capable Team that LCG is
familiar from long experience working with them. This Team includes Sponsors CDI
and LCE, Lemoine Companies, Ardoin Architecture LLC, acclaimed local ULL
Professor Cory Saft, Eric LaFleur with Mahtook & LaFleur bonding and title attorneys,
each of whom will contribute its long experience, individually and collectively, and
operate under the exacting standards called for by this ambitious undertaking.

12



Plans and specifications will be finalized. Construction estimates and plans and (only
then) binding Financial Commitments will conform to them, with or without
improvements suggested by CDI or LCG. The work will be adequately sourced, with
conservative occupancy and revenue estimates and committed funds set aside for
contingencies certain to arise. The contractor is insurable and bondable up to $150
Million, and will be insured and bonded. Once construction starts, monthly construction
draws will be submitted and paid on a percentage completion basis as certified by the
architect, less a suitable retainage (possibly 10%) that will be withheld until project
completion by Phase. Construction Audits will be performed as each Phase is completed.

Operations. With respect to long-term feasibility and viability, it is imperative that each
Phase of the undertaking be predicated upon realistic income and expense projections.
The ADF-PC Team endeavors to do so. Its residential pro formas will conservatively
underwrite to requirements actually adhered to by funders. These include, to name a few
examples, a 7% vacancy assumption; 2% revenue and 3% expense inflation adjusters; the
provision for some $375 per unit per month or more per residence operating expenses,
plus $25 per month Replacement Reserves set aside for future maintenance requirements
such as eventual HVAC system replacements.

CDI and LCE believe they have assembled the right team to manage Project Risks, and
further believes its Team’s selection by LCG will permit City-Parish leaders to mitigate
its own risk of error by working with the ADF-PC Team to accomplish its goals, if only
because its General Contractor and larger Team like LCG will live with the long-term
consequences of the decision and cannot escape from them.

It will ill serve current and future generations of Lafayette were the current generation’s
leadership to not select a local Development Team most likely to succeed judged nor by
its promises but by its actual long experience of performance, ties to the community, and
adherence to industry norms and practicality of approach.

LCG has stated its goals: re-establishing lost parking spaces in close proximity to its own
workforce and encouraging the production downtown of diverse residential, retail, and

commercial office space. Let the very experienced CDI Team partner with LCG to get
this job done.

Project Schedule

While efforts will be undertaken to simultaneously finalize the designs, bids and
financing on each proposed Phase, it is likely that some of the Phases might neither
start nor finish simultaneously. '

The Phase | Parking Garage is relatively straightforward, so it should be able to proceed
most quickly, especially if the funds required for that activity can remain separate from

13



the funding required for the apartments and commercial space envisioned for Phases II
and I11. ADF-PC hopes to be able to secure firm commitments for financing, finalized
design plans, and close on Phase I within 8 months of selection if permitted to
proceed at once with Phase [ upon selection pursuant to the RFP, and complete Phase |
work within 8 months of building contract award.

As detailed below, however, Phases Il and 111 will likely be more protracted, as they will
require complex and detailed coordination among various funding sources, and no less
than approximately 12 to 18 months to secure firm commitments for Tax  Credit
financing, much of it dependent on State and National funding availability and timelines
(e.g. affordable workforce apartments Grant and grant-equivalent Low Income Housing
Tax Credits), plus time to finalize plans, secure LCG permits, and close.

Phase | Parking Garage (See Proposed Project Schedule submitied as an Exhibit):

CDI Team Selected by LCG - October 1, 20197

ADF-PC Preliminary Scope and Plan Approved by LCG - November |
Plans Finalized — 5 Months After Team Selection

Committed Financing Secured based upon approved Scope and Plan
LCG Permits Secured

Closing and Construction Start

Completion and Occupancy — 5 Months After Construction Start

Phase Il and I1l: Downtown Workforce Apartments, Retail and Office Rentals:

CDI Team Selected by LCG - October 1, 20197

ADF-PC Preliminary Scope and Plan Approved by LCG

2020 LIHTC QAP Adopted by LHC June 2020

2020 LIHTC Application Submitted to LHC September 2020
LIHTC Allocation Committed to LCG Project December 2020
Plans Finalized - 5 Months After LIHTC Project Allocation

LCG Permits Secured

Closing and Construction Start — 9 Months After LIHTC Allocation
Completion and Occupancy — |5 Months After Construction Start

14
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Buchanan St Parking Garage RFP
821 S. Buchanan Street

Redevelopment Design Concept

Development Proposal: TOTAL Parking: 340

Total Land area: 41 acres B Required LCG Parking: 265 daytime spots

Total Project: 126,445 sf conditioned Provided: 265 LCG spots + 75 additional spots
163,601 sftotal

Tenant/Use mix: Commercial/Office/Residential Building Height: B80O’-0”

Project Total Units: Retail: 2,600 sf
Office: 7,200 sf
Multi-Family: (67) 2-beds; (21) 1-beds; (5) studios; (5) townhouses

Our proposal for the redevelopment of the Buchanan Parking Garage and
adjoining sites is a mixed-use, mixed-income concept broken into three phases.
Downtown will be more successful as it becomes more diverse in terms of
income ranges, amenities and services. Each phase corresponds to a
different primary funding mechanism and so can proceed simultaneously or
in sequence.

Market Rate
Funding

PHASE I: Existing Parking Garage rehabilitation

2 o = We will relocate the Dafford mural, remove the exterior panels of the
\ TR, ., Barage, completely refurbish the structural steel and cast-in-place
p® > <~ concrete building and re-clad the exterior with a more breathable
s T ) /('fﬁ;" i i
%’ﬁ;ﬁ . f*/“eﬁgo skinning alternative.

PHASE II: Convent Street Building (including lobby space)

Phase Il will be an independent building at Convent and Buchanan
Streets with five townhouse at ground level and 53 affordable units

: d . ~ % above for a total project of approximately 90,000 sf total.
g a,,“;"““;,—-"' “{\.
p;‘;,?.; e _;@i‘\eﬁc

PHASE L11: Jefferson Street Building

T Phase I1I will share the lobby of the Convent building but otherwise
B Ty b be an independent building on Jefferson Street with a first-class retail
" . space at ground level, offices on the second level and 40 market rate

o units above for a total project of approximately 60,000 sf total.



Buchanan St Parking Garage RFP

821 S. Buchanan Street

Program Distribution

PHASE 11
Affordable Units _
-

Townhome —

SITE STRATEGY

Maximization of site connectivity during construction and

after to facilitate assembly and post-completion access in and

around the site

Our three- phase design strategy is built around an internal

service road that allows for:

*» A sequence of construction staging areas

» Permanent internal access to the site to facilitate late-stage
construction, post-construction service access and building
safety

» Ease of access and additional parking for residents

STRUCTURAL STRATEGY
Innovative assembly system to better negotiate the urban site
Cross Laminated Timber advantages (s funding sllows):
* Large, prefabricated ‘chunks’
-Quick, efficient installation
-Effective in tight site conditions
» Design Flexibility & ‘finished’ interior surfaces
» Superior Acoustic, Fire and Environmentally Performance
* Reduced Waste

PHASE |
" Parking Garage

PHASE lil:
Market Rate Units

Office

Commercial

Convent St

O Jefferson St &

CAPLOOED & XOMOME TAIC - COLUMN SLAN &350 MBLY

|



S s S I

3 3
= i{‘ ".t i . o
b o RN T 11T - 2
« ) 8 B e ! '
= - - ; &
s | i
2 B Parcel B ; i =,
= |l I |

I o - |
2 r 4 -

3 g - .
S| B T T - g i o |
=4 1 25 2 = e

W Convent St

P N i B | ==
| NUMBERS Per Floor Sample 6 story project

Total floor area: 19,200 sf Commercial: 19,200 sf
(8) 1 bd @ 720 sf Residential: 96,000 sf
(8) 2 bd @ 960-1080 sf (40) 1 bd
(40} 2 bd
(1 _Level 1

1/64" = 1'-0"



H‘Pmdlman £

1834 000'}

00S 0S2

0

*

15 NOITIWEIA'M | -

m

£ 1S NIVIN M —

~TT H0AIE SITIVSHIA

A.q,

-

101151 Buluoz umojumoq D

S319143S1Q umojumoq

15 NOLONIHSVM S,

|

|

15 NHOT INIVS.




. 1.

a non-profit development ?orporation

LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB

T T
»
=] i
™ ™ o~ i “
=t = g |»
- = by 3
\\.1 i .l[.l‘.l!‘lf m_:_ m|
™ ]
: | 3

Spredafic
Lake
)
S
IA.TZ‘D d
=

-
E
A

\
L
8 f'&p. {
~/ -\‘4 N A
\
4

Data

35’

Elevation

Site Elevation

~

A
\\\«u P \ j
Nl -
£ ¢ J
:we ) 7
W \z\) N —A { ¥
A S /P . ,
\.w. AN P -
AR L,
ﬁ. .me - 15, P )
& S NI, X ,.w,,..wﬁé
SIS P 205
Alp S i 4
v /%v..-. .,.._,_..0 ~ " b i
~ . - ]
£ . ' t .r
% i {l
= i < K\ . i it h
| ) 2 MONROE ST, ﬂ.&. B L m_m.: i mw _m
| _MOMROE'S1 ; i u
§ PIERCE ST, BN Y \ f i i
\ a3 = 4 - - o
- s Nostavw A LBl A N o &L 4 il
T Y e s s o/ 5% R '
O w2 Vs
G| Doy = mm. 2 ko
] &5 NOLONIHSYM §| 4 ,\M 33 . .
T | S S TN T MW ..M....n "
_ & “wEEE SR 2 ] .
B S et~ A8G 55
o Jasamiosi is's P u.&w@.m-._,u
i Ik.nummnq...ﬁ.ql.mwm; R I
:F;li.l?.ml.._o.ﬁ.v\\ \ i
A AKX ;
87 \ e
VO ol “ \
A\.M.\iwwdxpvﬁ . ._ﬁ‘.(nf
o wh
ok 7@@\.\%&/ \ tﬂb N
S N s
—< WL YN ag é\—\mw
O ek % .
—nm\qu\ ,..&r.ﬁ\ \ \ AN !
Calr, \ A
B e ot
b . ¢ q -
. 7 S o AN
w. ﬁaaunm. \h‘d.._ v“n
- . Afp. ) \w.\m.* Ny
g W L)
=L b WA -




LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.
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LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

p I ann ] N g & Zonin g a non-profit development corporation

89-13 "D" Downtown

Purpase: the “D" district implements the Mixed-Use Center future land use category of Planl_afayette. This provides the hiphest
density and intensaty in the City and Parish, and preserves its unigue character and function.

— (f)(4) Gallery Standards

(f)(5) Awning Standards
(e){1) Building Interface General
()(2) Residential Frontage 89-89(s) Signs
—— (f){3) Commercial Frontage
~ r\\"‘m A
[ < —

oy  (d) Building Height

)

LT
e

-
™

- - . .
e

Q{Qh’ara g & Access
{d)(1) Froft Setback Area .
(d)(2} Frontage Buijdout ~
(c) "A," Street or "B," Street? \ i
8944 Street Design b (h) RGBlG Froptage 9
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LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

Planning & Zoning

Buildings are aligned parallel to the street,
built close to the sidewalk and configured to
minimize gaps between buildings in order
to physically shape the street as an outdoor

a non-profit development corporation

Location of all Build:ng facade height must be a min
off street parking, imum to create a sense of enclosure
both surface and and a maximum to avoid eliminating

structured, screened sunlight from the outdoor om

from street view.

foom A sufficient amount of
Main building entries openings facing the
Silwaibsareshadad with Shopfronts maximize face the slde.w.alk to street, such as windows
1 ; transparency with clear increase activity on and doors, create interest
awnings and galleries.
windows the street. and enhance security.
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; Thoroughfares designed Encourage outdoor Defined “Furnishing Zone™ Sidewalks  shaded
é for vehicle speeds below dining so long as an allowing placement of trees, with street Ltrees
] E 25 mph for a sense of adequate walkway | bicycle parking, parking me whera awnings and
t g ® comfort and safety width is maintained ters, street lights. and other galleries are not
I E streetscape elements. present

B
BE
. EE On-street parking serves as a buffer for people walking and dining. Walkways are wide enough to allow
3 helps reduce vehicle speeds, and provides convenient parking for atleast two people to walk side by

2 shoppers and guests side comfortably

Intent as adapted from the Downtoun Action Plan adopted June 10, 2014



LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

Planning & Zoning

a non-profit development corporation

Where two "B_" Streets meet on a corner lot, one
frontage shall adhere to "A " Street Frontage
standards.

b 3
7 7
@é' o f~, IfResidential
&/ g District
My % a‘_‘-fl ’745& -or- ™
N5, L N el Alley
~Jer & 9 'I Cor 7
(o)
"\fﬂr‘,e &/ & Ui
\\ e ¥ ‘:,f:
-, \ﬁ-"" &
8~ ¢
CPGG(

second side property line abuts &n alley or a
residential district in which cage it is considere
a Rear Lot Line.
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LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

Planning & Zoning

12

a non-profit development corporation

Minimum Side Setback:

0.0' where/a party wall is

. to bg built on the lot
Sap 4 line, otherwise a
L \minimum of 3.0

Si'ae-.getback Exceptions:
(1) MinTmum Side Setback where adjacent to
3 house in a*Residential District or that is
deemed historic 5§.0".

(2) Corner lots may hav&sgcond side
setbacks or a rear setback depepding on
whether the property line is consideged a
side or rear lot line.

Maximum Front
Setback: 10.0/

i
- o A

/'? S
?0.0::; /.;v

Corner lots shall maintain a minimum corner
triangle setback formed by the line joining two
points measured 20.0 feet along the edge of
pavement on each side to their intersecting

pqlnt.

A setback may be required to achieve the
minimum Walkway Width. “A " streets require
8.0' and "B," streets require 5.0' (See § (h){3)

Public Frontage)




LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

Planning & Zoning

a non-profit development corporation

Frontage Buildout Exceptions:
(1) Buildout on “A;” streets is 80% for lots
under 100.0" in width, otherwise it is 90%

(2)Rarking Garages on “B," streets shall have
have a frgntage buildout to minimum depth
of 12.0"

: S §
iy %
" Pedestrian Passages and Vehj¢ular Access
thrbugh buildings with habjfable space built
" above them tount towarg minimum Frontage
Buildout. /

/

|

i J

-— out their required

Parking Garages on
“B," Streets shall build

frontage to a minimum
depth of 12.0°

13



LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

p I ann | n g & ZO n ‘ n g a non-profit development corporation

-

;~&— Building Height: There are no building height

: restrictions, however buildings over 5 stories

; are subject to additional standards as set out in
H Section § (g) Parking & Access and Stepbacks
1

|

1

i

L

4

.
o

as required below.

B Stepback: Buildings over five (5) staries shall
have a minimum building stepback of 10.0 feet
starting at the sixth floor.

All Stories: Min. Height: 9.0
Residential Ground Story:

Min. Height: 10.0
Raised Min. 24.0” from Sidewalk grade.

Commerclal Ground Story:
Min. Height: 13.0° Y

-

L

} /\\
Building Facade Helght: ™

All buildings shall have a Area of Story Below
minimum 20.0 foot building
facade height as measured
from the Walkway.

Habitable roofs with an area no more than 50%
of the area of the story immediately below are
not considered a story.

14



LOUISIANA HOUSING LAB, Inc.

Planning & Zoning

a non-profit development corporation
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£ 2 z & 2 £ = z 3
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® = = 3 3 c (<] B k- =
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3 ] z £ o B
& - T T E g s b &
3 = * x £ E 2 1
E i § = E 3 3 £
3 £ ;‘ x z § ta o & 2 E
. W £ 2 F g = L 3 %
Use Category < g 2z g b = =
Residences:
Dwelling, single-family detached P P P C
Accessory apartment P P P P P P
Cottage Counts PP P
Dwelling, two-family (duplex) P P P
Multi-family P P P P P P B
Live/Work Dwelling P P P P P
Manufactured home -
Manufactured Housing Land Lease p e
Community e s 1T =t o
Apartment House P P P & P
Apartment Hotel P P P P P
Townhouse / Row house P P P P p
Group Living:
Boarding House p P P P
Community living p P P P P P
Community home P P P P P P P
Life care or continuing c-are P p p p P
Services
Lodging / Short-Term Rental
Bed and breakfast ( C
Hotel [small) P P ¢ P P p
Hotel / Motel P P p P P P
Recreational vehicle park C

Commercial / Mixed-Use

Minimum Unit Size

Tvpe Rathtooms

Efficiency 450 sq ft
N | 1 Bedroom 1 625 sy fi 90 sy fr
\ 2 Bedroom lorl5 250 sq ft LUK sq ft
3 Bedroom 2 1,200 sy ft 1,350 sy ft
N | 4 Bedroom 2 1,350 sq ft 1,450 sy fi
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Project Schedule



Buchanan Street Parking Garage
And Two Apartment Buildings

Proposed Project Schedule
(Post Award)

Design & Development Phase

Proposed Construction Time Frame:

Phase 1: Renovate Garage
Remove panels
Sandblast & paint
Install new railings and barriers
Deliver garage no lien certificate

TOTAL

Phase 2: Apartment Building
Clear & prepare site
Foundations placed
Erect structural framing and flooring
Roofing and waterproofing
Exterior and interior walls
A/C, electrical and plumbing
Flooring and finishes
Doors and cabinets

TOTAL

Phase 3: Apartments, Retail and Offices
Clear & prepare site
Foundations placed
Erect structural framing and flooring
Roofing and waterproofing
Exterior and interior walls
A/C, electrical and plumbing
Flooring and finishes
Doors and cabinets

TOTAL

Rev. 6/12/19

150 days
More or less

30 days
60 days
60 days
30 days

5 MONTHS

45 days
45 days
90 days
30 days
60 days
60 days
60 days
60 days

15 MONTHS

45 days
45 days
90 days
30 days
60 days
60 days
60 days
60 days

15 MONTHS



SUBMISSION PART C.

b

Financial Offer

Given the nature of the proposed undertaking and the urgency of the Phase [ proposed
Parking Garage, the financial aspects of ADF-PC’s Proposal should be viewed both
separately and as a whole with Phases II and III, which include Housing components
whose proposed rents are believed to fall squarely within a Downtown Market Study by
Zimmerman/Volk Associates dated October 2017 and submitted as an Exhibit to this
Proposal for LCG’s convenience.

Phase [ Parking Garage.

Financing Plan. ADF-PC proposes to lease the existing Parking Garage land and
improvements for a nominal amount in order to reduce annual operating expense and
debt service requirements. LCG will benefit in two respects, longer term on the
realization that the renovated Parking Facility will be its own following the maturity of
the lease, and shorter term through the realization that once restored the Parking Garage
will be a long-term Downtown Anchor for residential, commercial, and business office
purposes in addition to its own needs.

Offer 1:

There is a projected total redevelopment cost for the parking garage of $4,000,000. The construction bid
does not include the redesign of the outside walls and other costs. The offer includes all 340 parking spaces
or $11,765 per space. It was determined that to renovare the existing parking garage building rather than to
tear it down and build a new parking garage at a cost of $8,000,000 will be the most economical approach
for LCG.

Sponsor will apply for New Market Tax Credits which should yield $1,000.000 1o cover the cost to
renovate the 75 remaining parking spaces in the garage at no cost 10 the LCG, thus, prorating the leased 265
LCG parking spaces and remaining 75 parking spaces to be leased 1o occupants of the two apartment
buildings to be built and for commereial and business parking.

Pro Forma. See attached but highlights include $158 per month rent, a realistic operating
expenses, and loan pay off in 30 years, with possibilities of reduced rent and/or earlier
pay-off if LCG believes it could operate the Parking Garage for less expense.

The projected Phase I Parking Garage operating cost was determined to be $449.000 per year. This 1s to
maintain and operate the garage building based upon the following costs:

Elevator maintenance $ 10,000
Electrical power 20.000
Water and Sewerage 900
Dumpster 3,600
Repairs 17,000
Payroll-maintenance, security, ele. 249,000
Exterminating 120
Insurance 43,040

15



Ground expenses 5,200

Reserves for repair, replacement 13,725
Payroll Taxes 44915
Management Fee and accounting 25,400
Other costs __ 16,100

$449,000

On the Revenue side, the Pro Forma assumes $1,320 per parking space per year or $110 per month plus debt service
of $48 per parking space, and $3,000,000 financed at 5% for 30-year amortization ($5.37/1,000 borrowed payable
monthly into a sinking fund), including LCG’s share for 265 spaces @ $110 plus $48 debt service = $158 per month
per space times 265 spaces = 341,870 per month or $502,440 per year.

Offer 2:

ADF-PC proposes 1o lease the land and existing garage for $1,200 per year payable in advance. The LCG will
continue to own the land and parking garage subordinated to financing. At completion of the two apartment
buildings, the ADF-PC will pay LCG $250,000 for use of the other two lots.

Optional: ADF-PC and its Sponsor will also cooperate with the LCG to call for a millage
property tax election for the relevant downtown Census Tract to support the annual
operation of the garage and/or provide security for any revenue bond or other debt
services arising from the rehabilitation of the Garage. This will prevent any operating
budget impact on the present LCG budget.

Other Parking Garage Financing Options include Opportunity Zone funding, New Market
Tax Credit financing, and conventional mortgage financing, Tax Free Mortgage Revenue
Bonds (MRB's).

Phase 11: Offices, 4 Bedroom Townhomes, and Affordable Downtown Workforce Apartments:

Financing Plan. ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number 2 by developing the
land for Highest and Best Use (to the extent permissible, given LCG’s expressed interest
of providing Affordable Workforce Housing downtown. Phase II will involve the
construction of fifty eight (58) new Affordable Workforce Residences on the open
land fronting Buchanan and Convent Street and will include five (5) new 4
bedroom Townhomes, whether concurrently or not with the other Phases.

LCG will enter into a long-term surface leasehold agreement with ADF-PC for the
Workforce housing, but following discussions with LCG it will be more practical for the
five (5) new 4 bedroom Townhomes to be structured differently, to facilitate their sale to
third parties when desirable.

Pro Forma, see attached but highlights include the following proposed Rents:

Studio/Efficiency Units (5): $564
| Bedroom Units (6): $794

2 Bedroom Units (42): $865

4 Bedroom Units (5): $1,021

16



Phase IIl: Retail Rental, Business Offices and 40 Downtown Workforce Apartments. Phase IlI:
Retail Office Rental and Markel Rate Downtown Apartments:

Financing Plan: ADF-PC proposes to address LCG Priority Number 3 by developing the
land for the Highest and Best Use by utilizing the open land fronting on Jefferson Street
to develop Retail Rental Space on the Ground Floor, Office Space on the second floor,
and forty (40) Market Rate Apartments, utilizing the Plan described elsewhere for Phase
[T (whether concurrent or not with other Phases). LCG will enter into a long-term surface
lease agreement with ADF-PC for this Phase.

Pro Forma attached, but highlights include the following proposed Rents:

| Bedroom Units (6): $751

2 Bedroom Units (25): $865

Office Rental: 7,203 square feet at $14/sq. ft. per month

Commercial: 2,600 square feet at $12/sg.ft. per month

53 Parking Spaces (13 Surface, 40 in Phase I Parking Garage) @ $158/month

17



Submission Part C: Financial Offer

2. Completion Guarantee

ADF-PC will accept the liability and responsibility for the Redevelopment and
Operations of the properties being developed, whether as Phase I, Phase Il, or Phase III.

CDI notes that its Architect has Errors and Omissions Liability Coverage (evidence
available on request) and the Contractor will be fully insured and bonded, and LCG can
be listed as Additional Insureds should the proposed Project proceed. These
safeguards and others (e.g., monthly draws, construction retainages, and oversight by
other public and private funders) should be adequate to ensure completion. However,

Sponsor would be willing to discuss further should it be selected in response o this
RFP.

18
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o THE EVANGELINE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY
P. O. Box 346

ViLLE PraTTE, LA 70586-0346

WWW.THEREALBANK.COM

June 12,2019

David LaHaye

Chief Executive Officer
Community Directions, Inc.
130-A West South Street
Opelousas, LA 70570

Re: Conditional Loan Commitment for Buchanan Redevelopment Site Proposal, Lafayette,
Louisiana

Dear Mr. LaHaye:

This letter, when accepted by the undersigned on behalf of the Borrower described herein,
without modification or addition, constitutes the commitment of this Bank (hereafter “Bank”), or
at its sole discretion one of its subsidiaries, or assignees, to make a two phase (construction and
permanent) Loan (the “Loan™) on the following terms, subject to our underwriting standards:

l Borrower Name: Community Directions, Inc. (or acceptable Assignee such as ADF-
PC; see below)
Address: 130-A West South Street, Opelousas, LA
Loan Type: Parking Garage, Commercial and Non-owner occupied apartment

property In Rem First Mortgage Loan.
Loan Purposc: Interim Construction and possibly Permanent Financing

Loan Amount: Up to $12,000,000 revolving line of credit during construction at
6.25% to accommodate construction pending receipt of
reimbursable grants and grant equivalent Low Income Housing
Tax Credit and/or New Market Tax Credit equity. Permanent loan
of up to $12,000,000. It is understood there will be a 10%
Retainage.

Term: 5 year fixed term renewable, 30 year amortization schedule for
Parking Garage, 30 years for Apartment buildings.

Interest Ratc: 6.25% fixed, first 5 years, adjusted every 5 years thereafter.
Payments: Construction Loan Interest is to be reimbursed on periodic draws
o where appropriate on the basis of permanent funding source. In
such cases, principal and interest due monthly until maturity after
> 0, 315 PO, Box 496 (70527) PO. Box 348
§7&%‘£§°§‘9ﬂo& 3355 Masanic Or 3403 Highway 28 Enst 425 N. Avanue G (70526) 497 W. Main St.
Nasaneia, LA Alexondria, LA 71301 Pinaville, LA 71360 Crowday, LA Villa Platta, LA 70586
(31B) 443 3700 {318) 44540380 (318) 445-3336 [337) 7830412 [337) 363-5541

Fex (318) 4432139 Fax (318) 4484707 Fax {318] 4455116 Fex [337)788-3483 Fex (337) 3830678



Collateral:

Origination Fee:

Other Fees:

Conditions:

Prepayment:

conversion to permanent loan, with level payments thereafter to
continue in the event interest rates are adjusted with subsequent
time extensions.

First mortgage and assignment of leases and rents on all units.
$50,000.

Borrower must provide the following for this loan at INITIAL
Construction closing loan documents, title insurance, title closing
attorney, appraisal, credit report, environmental Phase I, survey,
properly and casualty insurance, filing, construction notice of
contract and bond, recordation, lega! fees and other closing costs.
Owner may use attorneys acceptable to this bank.

1. LIHTC Equity or subordinated Grant Commitment/s of no less
than $15,283,800 in connection with the 98 proposed Apartments.
2. New Market Tax Credit Equity or subordinated funds in the
amount of $792,858 concerning the Parking Garage

3. Appropriate Market Studies and Appraisals

4. Minimum 1.15 Debt Service Coverage with respect to
Apartments; 1.25 with respect to the Parking Garage and other
Commercial Propetties.

5. With respect to the Parking Garage, binding commitments by
LCG to lease a minimum of 265 Parking Spaces.

6. Annual business financial statements to be provided no later
than 120 day beyond year end 12/31/21, and thereafter.

7. Evidence of payment of Builders Risk plus Liability, Casualty
Insurance at initial closing and fully insured annually thereafter.

8. Confidential annual rent roll upon request after initial
occupancy.

9. Establishment and assignment of replacement reserve account.
10. In the event of foreclosure, the Bank reserves the right to
dispose of property and obtain a clear title.

11. The Bank reserves the right to claim C.R.A. Credits.

No prepayment penalty

It is understood that your organization proposes to act as Sponsor and/or Developer of the
Parking Garage Preservation Rehab, and proposed 98 renlal units, commercial and business
office spaces situated in closc proximity to each other on Buchanan, Convent, and Jefferson
Streets it intends to develop within the municipal corporate limits of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish.
It is further understood that your organization might wish, with Lafayette Consolidated
Government’s and other funders’ consent, to assign or convey the housing and other
improvements to one or more other organizations such as the Lafayette Consolidated
Government, possible cosponsor Acadiana Development Foundation (with whom we have also



previously done business), or to single asset owner (tentatively ADF-PC) for long-term
ownership, contingent upon this Bank’s further normal underwriting review, including our
satisfaction with the properties’ long-term management plans.

This letter supersedes and cancels all prior proposal letters, loan application, expressions of
intent, commitments, agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, with respect to the
proposed Loan, all of which prior matters are merged herein. The terms and conditions of this
Commitment may be amended, changed, or modified only by a written agreement signed by a
duly authorized officer or employee of Bank and accepted to both Bank and Borrower.

This letter is predicated upon the other financing noted above and a suitable commitment for
monthly reimbursable interim loan payments during development. The permanent loan shall be
closed after completion of construction and certificates of occupancy have been provided by the
City of Lafayette.

This letter shall not be enforceable against Bank unlcss accepted, without modification or
addition, by Borrower returning a fully executed original of this letter to this Bank at the address
specified above within three (3) weeks of its date. If Borrower fails to accept this letter in the
manner and by the date and time indicated above, this letter shall be of no further force or effect,
unless expressly extended in writing by Bank. Any such extension shall be deemed to include or
incorporate all of the terms and conditions hereof, unless such extension specifically indicates
that specified terms and conditions hereof are expressly waived, modified, or amended.

This loan commitment shall terminate automatically on December 1, 2019, unless closed or
otherwise extended in writing by this Bank and Borrower. After LCG selects your team in
connection with its Buchanan Redevelopment Site RFP issued March 13, 2019, please have your
closing attorney call me to coordinate with the required normal bank mortgage underwriting
documents and procedures upon which this commitment is predicated.

Very truly yours,
By: / L 2
Nick Veillon

Vice President
AGREED AND ACCEPTED ON THE __~ 2 ““ DAY OF 2019:

BORROWER: Community Directions, Inc.
Buchanan Redevelopment Site Proposal

By: %m’\ ? ZM—»

Name & Title: David LaHaye, CEO
Date: __ /i1 ]




TIMOTHY H. SUPPLE
315 South College Road
Suite 285
Lafayette, La. 70503

June 13, 2019

Phillip G. Bourgeois, President
Community Directions, Inc.
2115 North University Ave.
Lafayette, Louisiana 70522

Mark W. Tolson

Le Centre Evangeline Corporation
P.0. Box 937

Lafayette, Louisiana 70571

Subject: Request for Propasals 800 Block S. Buchanan Redevelopment Site and Opportunity Zone
Funding

Dear Messrs. Bourgeois and Tolson:

In connection with your Redevelopment Proposal concerning which | have spoken with Jack Tolson, this
communication confirms my possible interest in investing, directly or through Supple LLC a maximum of
$7,000,000 in exchange for a reasonable rate of turn and depreciation.

As | mentioned, this investment would most likely take the form of an eligible Opportunity Zone
investment utifizing a $7,000,000 Opportunity Zone Fund of which | am beneficiary, but subject to
further review by my counsel and CPA, that $7,000,000 investment could possibly take form via the
purchase, together or with others, of New Markets Tax Credits (for the Parking Garage and possibly
commercial space) or 9% or 4% Low Income Housing Tax Credits {for the downtown Workforce Housing
contemplated by your Proposal).

I would of course be happy to provide further information to your Team or Lafayette Consolidated
Government should the need ripen.

ez —

mothy H. Supple
Investor and Fund Director

Sincerely,
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nent Site -4 All 3 Phases - Garage, Workforce and Market Rate Housing, (
" A AL OPERATING EXPENSES

Farsh Lafayatie
Number ol units oa
Target population Other
Administrative Total Per Unit °,of Total % EGI
Accounting Services $15,000 $153 3.4°%
Administrative Renl Free Unit(s S0 0.0°%
Bad Debt S0 0.0%
Rent Concessions SO 0.0%
Adverising $1.000 $10 0.2%
LHC Compilance Monitoring Fees $2.000 520 05°%
Compliance Fees (Other) $1.027 $10 0.2%
Assel Management Fee S0 0.0°%
Legal Auditing S0 0.0%
Management Fee $15.000 $153 3.4% 116%
Manager(s) Salaries 518,000 S184 4.1°%
Office Salarncs $8.000 S82 1.8%5
Office Supples $8.000 882 1.8%
Telephone $0 0.0%
Training $1,500 $15 0.3%
Total Administrative 569,527 $709 15.8%
Operating/Maintenance
‘Elevator Ma ntenance Coniract $10.000 S102 2.3%
Exterminating Conirac! $5.520 556 1.3%
Grounds Expense $12,000 5122 2.7%
Janitonal Services $12.000 5122 2%
Repairs/Maintenance $12.000 $122 27%
Security Fayrcll/Contract $5.000 S61 14
Waste Collection $3,480 $36 0 B°%
Maintenance Payroll 518,000 S184 4.1%
Total Operating/Maintenance|  $79,000 SBO6 17.9%
Utilities
Electrnicity $24.000 5245 547,
Gas S0 00°%
Sewer $12.000 5122 27%
Waler $12.000 $122 2.7%
S0 00°%
Total Utilities 548,000 5490 10.9%

Taxes/Insurance

Propery Insurance 541,000 5418 9.3%
Other Insurance %0 S0 0.0%
Payroll Taxes $8.640 588 2.0%
Real Estate Taxes S0 S0 00%
Workmen's Compensation $7.671 578 1.7%
Offset 1o Achieve 890,000 - $449 000 Jack Panty $187.162 $1.910 42.4%
Total Taxes/insurance $244,473 $2,495 55.4%
Total Operating Expenses $441,000 $4,500 100.0%
Tenant Ulilities Responsible Party
Electr ity Tenant
- Gas N/A
let li eg’/
viho (“; "L:i;fsfgnzm e r:'t:f:a;::; Hee Wate: Qwner/Project
© pee semms B Sewer Owner/Project
Other

For which Parish was the LHC historical expense data utilized?

Buchanan Redevelopment All 3 Phases - Attordable Workforce Housing 8 11 2019 - 245 om Page i
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UPDATE
AN ANALYSIS OF RESIDENTIAL MARKET POTENTIAL

The Downtown Lafayette Study Area
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

October, 2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This updated analysis has found that, from the marker perspective, over a five-year timeframe, 935
to 1,135 new rental and for-sale market-rate housing units can be supported within the Downtown
Lafayette Study Arca. Based on market preferences, the housing mix would include 715 to 860
rental apartments, 90 to 110 for-sale lofts and condominiums, and 130 to 165

rowhouses/townhouses.

The 715 to 860 rental units include the following:

* Studios to three-bedroom apartments ranging in size between 400 and 1,400 square
feer with proposed base rents ranging between $750 and $2,000 per month ($1.43 to
$1.88 per square foot).

* The weighted average rent of the rental apartments is $1,245 for an average unir size
of 763 square feet, an average of $1.63 per square foot.

* Absorption is forecast at an average of 143 to 172 rental units per year over the next
five years.

The 90 to 110 for-sale loft and condominium units include the following:

*  One- w0 three-bedroom for-sale lofts ranging in size becween 850 and 1,650 square
feet, with proposed base prices ranging between $165,000 and $300,000 ($182 to
$194 per square foot).

* The weighted average base price of the for-sale lofts is $220,500, for an average unit
size of 1,178 square feer, an average of $187 per square foor.

* One- and two-bedroom condominiums in mansion buildings, ranging in size
berween 1,150 and 1,600 square feet, with proposed base prices ranging berween
$230,000 and $310,000 ($194 to $200 per square foor).

* The weighted average price of the mansion condominiums is $268,500, for an
average unit size of 1,368 square fect, an average of $196 per square foort.
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Absorption is forecast at an average of 18 to 22 foft and mansion condominium unics
per year over the next five years (12 to 14 per year for the lofts; six to eight per year
for the manston condominiums).

The 130 to 165 rowhouses and townhouses include the following:

Two- and three-bedroom rowhouses ranging in size berween 1,000 and 1,500 square
feet, with proposed base prices ranging between $200,000 and $285,000 ($190 to
$200 per square foor).

The weighted average price of the rowhouses is $247,250, for an average unit size of
1,275 square feet, an average of $194 per square foot.

Two- and three-bedroom townhouses ranging in size berween 1,300 and 2,200
square feet, with proposed base prices ranging berween $250,000 and $400,000
(3182 to $192 per square foor).

The weighted average price of the townhouses is $292,750, for an average unit size of
1,555 square feet, an average of $188 per square foot.

Absorption is forecast at an average 26 to 33 rowhouses and townhouses per year
over the next five years (14 to 18 per year for the rowhouses; 12 to 15 per year for the
townhouses).

Page 2
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INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this study is to re-examine the marker potential and oprimum marker position for
newly-introduced market-rate housing units—created both through adaptive re-use of existing non-
residential buildings as well as through new construction—thar could be developed within the
Downtown Lafayette Study Area over the next five years. The optimum market position has been
derived from: the housing preferences, financial capacities, and lifestyle characteristics of the target
households (Zimmerman/Volk Associates’ proprietary rarget market methodology); the study area’s
location, visibility and physical atributes (the company’s extensive experience with urban
development and redevelopment); and the rental and for-sale housing market context in the
Lafayette market area. The original Downtown study was published in May, 2006; an update to thar
study was published in March, 2011.

The boundaries of the Downtown Study Area are the same as those defined for the previous studies,
following the boundaries of the Lafayette Downtown District, which includes the commercial core
and the in-town neighborhoods of Mill’s Addition (Fightingville) and Freetown. The boundaries of
the study area encompass Simcoe Street to the north; Orange Street to the northeast; Louisiana
Avenue and Johnston Street to Garfield Strect, then Gordon Street to University Avenue in the
southcast; University Avenue and Brashear Strect to behind City Hall, then behind the Lafayerte
Middle School to West Congress Street in the southwest; West Congress Streer to the northwest;
and following the coulee north to West Simcoe Street. The commercial core (Core Downtown)
encompasses most of this area, except it is bounded to the west by Parkside, to the north by West

Congress and Second Streets, and to the northeast by South Chestnut Strect.

The extent and characteristics of the potential market for new housing unics to be developed within
the study area were updated using Zimmerman/Volk Associates’ proprietary target market
methodology. This methodology was developed in response to the challenges that are inherent in the
application of conventional supply/demand analysis to urban development and redevelopment.
Supply/demand analysis ignores the potential impact of newly-introduced housing supply on

settlement patterns, which can be substantial when housing choices in the marker are increased with

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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new housing types that match the housing preferences and economic capabilities of the draw area
households.

In contrast to conventional supply/demand analysis, which is typically limited by supply-side
dynamics and baseline demographic projection, target market analysis determines the depth and
breadth of the potential marker derived from the housing preferences and socio-economic
characteristics of houscholds in the defined draw areas. Because it considers not only basic
demographic characteristics, such as income qualification and age, bur also less frequently analyzed
attributes such as lifestage, mobility rates, lifestyle patterns and household comparibility issues, the
targer marker methodology is particularly effective in defining a realistic housing potential for urban

development and redevelopment where often no directly-comparable properties exist.

For this update, then, this study re-examined the following:

*  Where the potential renters and buyers for new and existing housing units in the
City of Lafayette and the Downtown Lafayerte Study Area currently live (the draw
areas);

* How many households have the potential to move to the Downtown Study Area
cach year over the next five years if appropriate housing units were to be made
available (depth and breadth of the market);

*  What their housing preferences are in aggregate (rencal or ownership, muldi-family or
single-family);

*  Who are they and what they are like (the targer markets);

*  Whart are their current housing alternarives (the Lafayette market area context);

*  What are the rents and prices of new units that could be developed within the
Downtown Lafayette Study Area that correspond to target household financial
capabilities (optimum market position); and

* How quickly they will rent or purchase the new units (market caprure/absorption

forecasts over the next five years).

The target market methodology is described in derail in a separate volume, METHODOLOGY AND

TARGET MARKET TABLES.

R B A ~— - = . e—y=e e s
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DEMOGRAPHICS OF THE CITY OF LAFAYETTE

The number of households in the City of Lafayette has risen significantdly since 2010, when 49,445
households lived in the city, to an estimated 54,255 houscholds in 2017, an increase of more than
9.7 percent. In addition to increasing in number, the composition of those households continues to
evolve, with significant increases in older and younger singles and couples, and declines in the

number of family households.

Currently, over 66 percent of all households that live in Lafayette conrtain just one or two persons
(up from 64 percent in 2010); 15.6 percent contain three persons (down from 16.7 percent in
2010), and the remaining 18.3 percent conrtain four or more persons (compared to 19.2 percent in
2010).

Just over 15.7 percent of the city's households could be characterized as traditional families, e.g.—
married couples with children under age 18 (compared to approximately 17 percent in 2010). Non-
traditional family households, headed by single persons with children under age 18, represent 12.9
percent of the city’s households, up slightly from 12.5 percent in 2010. The remaining 71.3 percent
of Lafayette houscholds do not have children under 18 and include married couples (21.9 percent,
down from 22.6 percent in 2010), non-traditional family households (7.4 percent, up slightly from
7.2 percent), and 41.9 percent non-family houscholds (primarily single-person households and two-
person households containing unrelated persons; up slightly from 41.3 percent in 2010).

Median household income in the ciry is currently estimated at $48,300, compared to the national
median of $57,500. Median home value is currently estimated to be $181,900, approximately eight

percent less than the national median home value of $198,000.

Since 2010, the number of housing units has increased substantially, from 53,355 housing units to
an estimated 58,260 in 2017, an increase of more than nine percent. The share of those units that
are single-family detached houses has dropped from over 63 percent in 2010 to 61.2 percent in
2017; 3.8 percent are single-family attached (rowhouses or townhouses, up from three percent); 2.4
percent are two-unit buildings, down from 2.8 percent; 18.5 percent are units located in buildings of
three to 19 units, up from 17.8 percent; and 10.6 percent are in buildings of 20 or more units (up

from 9.2 percent); the remaining 3.4 percent are mobile homes or trailers (down from 3.9 percent).

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC,
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Nearly 56 percenct of the city’s households own their units; over 44 percent rent their units, a slight

change from 57 percent ownership and 43 percent renral in 2010.

Automobile ownership has increased since the last study. Currently, just under eight percent of
Lafayette’s households do not own an automobile, a significant drop from 9.5 percent in 2010, and
nearly 42 percent own only one vehicle, up from 37 percent. Just under 39 percent own two

vehicles, a slight drop from just over 39 percent in 2010.

The city's population has become more educated: nearly 34 percent of all residents aged 25 or older

have a college or advanced degree, up one percentage point since 2010.

sourcks: Claricas, Inc.; U.S. Census Bureau;
Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc.
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CiTY-WIDE ANNUAL MARKET POTENTIAL

As noted above, the extent and characteristics of the potential market for new residential units within
the City of Lafayette and the Downtown Lafayette Study Area have been re-examined through
detailed analysis of houscholds living within the appropriate draw areas. These draw areas were
confirmed through an update of the migration and mobility analyses using the latest taxpayer data
for Lafayerte Parish provided by the Internal Revenue Service. To refine the draw area for the city,
the IRS migration data have been supplemented by population migration and mobility dara for the

City of Lafayette from the 2015 American Community Survey.

Where do the potential renters and buyers of new and existing housing uniss
in the City of Lafayeste currently live?
The most recent Lafayette Parish migration and mobility data—as derived from taxpayer records
compiled by the Internal Revenue Service from 2010 through 2014 and from the 2015 American
Community Survey for Lafayette Parish and for the City of Lafayerte—show that the draw areas are
delineated as follows (see also METHODOLOGY AND TARGET MARKET TABLES):
+ The primary draw area, covering households currencly living within the Lafayette city
limits.
+  The local draw arca, covering houscholds currently living elsewhere in Lafayette Parish.
+ The Acadiana draw area, covering households with the potential to move to the City of
Lafayette from St. Martin, St. Landry, Iberia, Vermilion, and Acadia Parishes.
*  The East Baton Rouge draw area, covering households with the potential to move to the
City of Lafayette from East Baton Rouge Parish.

* The national draw area, covering households with the potential to move to the City of

Lafayette from all other U.S. parishes and counties, more than half of which originate

from ourside Louisiana.

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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As derived from the updated migration, mobility and target marker analyses, then, the draw area
distribution of market potential (those households with the potential to move within or to the City

of Lafayette) is shown on the following rable:

Annual Market Potential by Draw Area
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

Cicy of Lafayerte (Primary Draw Area): 48.0%
Balance of Lafayetee Parish (Local Draw Area): 12.8%
Sc. Martin, St. Landry, Iberia, Vermilion,
and Acadia Parishes (Acadiana Draw Area): 15.7%
East Baton Rouge Parish (Easc Baton Rouge Draw Area): 1.7%
Balance of US (Nartienal Draw Area): _21.8%
Toral: 100.0%

SouRCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, [nc., 2017.

As determined by the target market methodology, which accounts for household mobility within the
City of Lafayette, as well as migration and mobility patterns for households currently living in all
other parishes and counties, an annual average of 10,710 houscholds represent the annual potential
market for new and existing housing units within the city each year over the next five years. Younger
singles and couples are likely to account for 50.6 percent of the market; another 34.2 percent are
likely to be traditional and non-traditional families; and the remaining 15.2 percent are likely to be

empty nesters and rerirees.

UPDATE OF THE ANNUAL MARKET POTENTIAL FOR THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA

Where do the potential renters and buyers of new housing units
in the Downtown Lafayette Study Area currently live?

The target market methodology identifies those households thar prefer living in downtowns, or
walkable mixed-use neighborhoods. After eliminating those segments of the potential market that
have preferences for new or existing housing in more suburban neighborhoods and focusing on those
with incomes above $40,000 per year (those households who can afford existing market-rate
dwelling units), the distribution of draw arca market potential for new housing units in the study

area is summarized as shown on the table following this page:

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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Annual Market Potential by Draw Area
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

City of Lafayette (Peimary Draw Area): 57.3%
Balance of Lafayerte Parish (Local Draw Area): 7.4%
St. Martin, St. Landry, Iberia, Vermilion,
and Acadia Parishes (Acadiana Draw Arca): 3.8%
East Baton Rouge Parish (East Baton Rouge Draw Area): 2.3%
Balance of US (Nacional Draw Area): 29.2%
Toral: 100.0%

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc., 2017.

How many households have the potential to move to
the Downtown Study Area each year over the next five years

if appropriate housing uniss were to be made available??
As updated by the target marker methodology, then, an annual average of 3,030 households of che
10,710 total houscholds that represent the annual market for new and existing housing units in the
City of Lafayette have annual incomes at or above $40,000 and are a market for new market-rate
housing units of every kind within the study area cach year over the next five years. There has been a
continued and significant increase in market potential between 2006 (when market-rate accounted
for 1,940 households); 2010, at 2,390 households; and 2017, at 3,030 households.

Younger singles and couples are likely to account for over 53 percent of the market; empty nesters
and retirees are likely to account for 28.4 percent; and the remaining 18.5 percent are likely to be

traditional and non-traditional families.

e ———— T
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What are their housing preferences in aggregate?

The combined tenure and housing type propensities of the target 3,030 draw area households are

outlined on the following table:

Tenure/Housing Type Propensities
Average Annual Market Potential for New Housing Units
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayeste Parish, Louisiana

NUMBER OF PERCENT
HOQUSING TYPE HOUSEHOLDS Or TOTAL
Multi-family for-rent 1,435 47.4%
(lofts/apartments, leascholder)
Multi-family for-sale 220 7.3%
{lofes/apartments, condo/co-op ownership)
Single-family atrached for-sale 325 10.7%
{townhouses/rowhouses, fee-simple/
condominium ownership)
Singfe-family detached for-sale 1.050 34.76%
{houses, fee-simple ownership)
Total 3,030 100.0%

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associazes, Inc., 2017.

As in the past studies, to ensure sufficient densities in the Downtown, it is recommended thac
residential development in the study area concentrate on the development of higher-density housing
types including:

* Rental lofts and apartments (multi-family for-rent);

«  For-sale lofts and apartments (multi-family for-sale); and

+ Townhouses, rowhouses, live-work or flex units (single-family attached for-sale).

Excluding households with preferences for single-family derached units, an annual average marker
potential of 1,980 households currently living in the defined draw areas represent the pool of
potential renters/buyers of new housing within the Downtown each year over the next five years (see

Table 1 following the text).

The housing crash of 2008 and the subsequent housing recession has created restrictive development

financing and stringent individual unit mortgage underwriting, particularly for condominiums,

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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considerably reducing the percentages of potential condominium and townhouse buyers. As a resul,

the realization of the for-sale (ownership) market potential continues to be challenging in 2017.

Based on the tenure and housing preferences of those 1,980 draw area households, the distribution
of rental and for-sale multi-family and for-sale single-family artached housing types would be as

shown on the following table:

Average Annual Market Potential For New Housing Units
Higher-Density Housing Units
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

......... HOUSEHOLDS ........
HOUSING TYPE NUMBER PERCENT
Muld-family for-renc 1,435 72.5%
(lofts/apartments, leaseholder)
Multi-family for-sale 220 11.1%
(lofis/apartments, condo/co-op ownership)
Single-family attached for-sale 325 16.4%
{townhouses/live-work, fee-simple/
condominium ownership)
Toral 1,980 100.0%

Source: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc., 2017.

Although there has been a small decrease in the size of the annual potential market for higher-densicy
market-rate dwelling units, from 2,190 households in 2010 to 1,980 households in 2017, there have
been significant changes in the type of housing that best matches target household preferences. As a
share of the marker, market-rate multi-family for-rent has risen from nearly 52 percent in 2010 to
72.5 percent in 2017; mulci-family for-sale (condominium) units now represent just over 11 percent
of the marker (down from 29.2 percent in 2010); and single-family attached for-sale (townhouses)

comprise 16.4 percent of the marker, down from 19.2 percent in 2010.

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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TARGET MARKET ANALYSIS

Who is the potential market for new housing in the ssudy area?

As noted in the previous update, American households have been changing dramatically over the
past several years, in ways that should enhance the market feasibility of new housing in the
Downtown Lafayerte Study Area. The significant transformation of American households
(particularly shrinking household size and the predominance of one- and two-person households)
over the past decade, combined with steadily increasing traffic congestion and fluctuating gasoline
prices, has resulted in important changes in neighborhood and housing preferences, with major shifts
from predominantly single-family detached houses in lower-density suburbs to higher-densiry
apartments, townhouses, and decached houses in walkable urban and mixed-use neighborhoods.

This fundamental transformacion of American households is likely to continue for at least the next

decade.

This transformation has been driven by the convergence of the preferences of the two largest
generations in the history of America: the Baby Boomers (currently estimated ar 73.8 million), born
between 1946 and 1964, and the estimared 88.7 million Millennials, who were born from 1977 to
1996 and, in 2010, surpassed the Boomers in population. The convergence of two generarions of
this size—simultaneously reaching a point when urban housing matches their lifestage—is

unprecedented.

In addition to their shared preference for urban living, the Boomers and Millennials are changing
housing markets in multiple ways. In contrast to the traditional family (married couples with
children) that comprised the typical post-war American household, Boomers and Millennials are
households of predominantly singles and couples. As a result, the 21" Century home-buying market
now contains more than 63 percent one- and two-person houscholds, and the 37 percent of
homebuyers that could be categorized as family households are equally likely to be non-traditional as
craditional families. A major consequence of cthis evolution is that urban mixed-use development,
particularly in close proximity to transit, is now the preference for many more households than when

families and suburban single-use preferences dominated the housing marker.

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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Another significant shift is the Millennials’ strong propensity for renting rather than owning. This is
due in part because of their relative youth—many do not have sufficient funds for a down payment
and many others are burdened by student debt—and in part because the collapse of the housing

market made many of them skeptical about the value of owning versus renting.

As determined by the target market analysis, and reflecting local and national trends, the annual
potential market—represented by lifestage—for new housing units in Downtown Lafayette is

characterized by general household type as shown on the following table (see also Table 2 following

the text):
Downtown Residential Mix By Household and Unirt Types
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana
PERCENT RENTAL FOR-SALE FOR-SALE
HOUSEHOLD TYPE OF TOTAL MuLTi-FaMm. MuLTI-FAM. SF ATTACHED
Empey-Nesters & Retirees  18% 15% 25% 29%
Traditional &

Non-Traditional Families 13% 10% 11% 22%
Younger Singles & Couples  69% _75% (4% 49%
Towal 100% 100% 100% 100%

Source: Zimmerman/Volk Associaces, Inc., 2017.

Ar 69 percent, younger singles and couples make up the largest share of the marker for new housing
in Downtown Lafayette. Addirional factors in the larger share of the marker held by younger
households are:
*  Their higher mobility rates—young people tend to move much more frequently than
older people;
*  Their strong preference for urban apartments, particularly lofts;

* The reduced mobility of older singles and couples because of their inability, or

reluctance, to sell their existing units; and

*  The fact that, ourtside of ciries like New York, Chicago, or San Francisco, downtown

dwelling units are rarely the choice of traditional families, in large part because of

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATLS, INC.
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concerns about school quality, and the lack of private outdoor space in which their

children can play unsupervised.

This younger market includes a variety of white-collar professionals and young entrepreneurs—New
Power Couples, The VIPs, and Fast-Track Professionals; artists, and “knowledge workers™—the New
Bohemians, Cosmopolitan Elite, and Suburban Achievers; as well as recent college graduates working in
Downtown; office workers and hospital and university affiliates—Small-City Singles and Hometown

Sweethearts.

Over 64 percent of the younger singles and couples that represent the market for new higher-density
housing units in the study area would be moving from elsewhere in the city; just under five percent
would be moving from elsewhere in Lafayerte Parish; another 2.5 percent each from the Acadiana
draw area and East Baton Rouge Parish; and approximately 26 percent would be moving from

elsewhere in the United Srates.

The next largest general marker segment, at 18 percent of the annual potential market for new
higher-density units in the study area, is comprised of older households (empty nesters and retirees).
Most of these households have adult children who no longer live in the family home; many are
enthusiastic participants in communiry lifc and most are still actively involved in well-paying careers
in the banking, legal and financial professions. These target groups range from the most affluent One
Percenters, Small-Town Patriarchs, and Affluent Empty Nesters, o the well-to-do Suburban
Establishment, Pillars of the Community, Urban Establishment, and Second-Ciry Establishment to the
comfortable RV Retirees, Mainstream Empty Nesters, Middle-American Retirees, Blue-Collar Retirees,
and Middle-Class Move-Downs, among others.

Over 44 percent of the empty nesters and retirees would be moving from elsewhere within the City
of Lafayette; approximately 12.2 percent would be moving from another location in Lafayette
Parish; over 7.6 percent are currently living in the Acadiana draw area; just one percent in East
Baton Rouge Parish; and the remaining 35 percent would be moving from elsewhere in the U.S,,

primarily Louisiana parishes and other southern and Texas counties.

ZIMMERMAN/VOLK ASSOCIATES, INC.
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Family-oriented households represent just 13 percent of the market for new dwelling units in the
Downtown Lafayette Study Area. Households with children are now increasingly diverse and in
many urban areas are largely non-traditional families. Heads of these households have banking
careers and upper-middle management jobs, or are professionals in the financial and legal sectors.
These houscholds include Nouveanu Money, e-Type Families, Button-Down Families, Unibox
Transferces, Fiber-Optic Families, Late-Nest Suburbanites, Uptown Families, and Multi-Ethnic

Families.

Just over 57 percent of the family households are already living in the City of Lafayerte, slightly over
seven percent are currently living elsewhere in Lafayette Parish, less than two percent would be
moving from the Acadiana draw area, approximately four percent from East Baton Rouge Parish,

and the remaining 30 percent would be moving from elsewhere in the U.S.

APPENDIX THREE, TARGET MARKET DESCRIPTIONS, contains detailed descriptions of each of these rarger
market groups and is provided in a separate document. The METHODOLOGY AND TARGET MARKET TABLES

document describes how the targec market groups for the study area are determined.

- e = & —
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THE CURRENT CONTEXT

What are the alternatives?

Summary supply-side information for the Downtown Lafayerte Study Area (covering multi-family
rental properties and for-sale condominiums and townhouse units) is provided in tabular form
following the text: Table 3, Summary of Selected Multi-Family Rental Properties, City of Lafayette;
Lafayerte Parish; and Table 4, Summary of Selected For-Sale Multd-Family and Single-Family
Attached Developments, City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, which includes both resale listings and

new construction.

Walk Score, a number berween 0 and 100 denoting the walkability of a specific address or
neighborhood, has grown in importance as a value criterion. Walk Scores above 90 indicate a
“Walker's Paradise,” where daily errands do not require a car. Walk Scores between 70 and 90 are
considered to be very walkable, where most errands can be accomplished on foot. Walk Scores below

50 indicate that most or almost all errands require an automobile.

The Walk Scores for the 20 rental properties included in the survey range berween 14 and 84, with
most of the properties located in auto-oriented areas of the city—11 have Walk Scores below 50.

The two Downtown properties have Walk Scores above 80, considered very walkable.

—Mulri-Family Rental Properties—

Table 3 provides derailed information on the 20 rental properties included in the survey and is

summarized below.

—Studsos (rwo properties)—
* Rents for studios range from $885 to $965 per month at the Crescent at River Ranch

on Camellia Boulevard. The only other property to include studios is MainStreet

Annex on Settlers Trace Boulevard, where a studio rents for $925 per month.
* Those studios range in size from 538 to 540 square feet.

e The studio rents per square foor range between $1.64 and $1.79.

e e e S = s
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—One-Bedroom Units (20 properties)—
* Rents for one-bedroom units start at $490 per month at the Studios at LWG, arrists
housing on Monroe Street in Downtown Lafayette, 1o $1,395 per month at

MainStreet Annex.

*  One-bedroom apartments range in size from 491 square feet at the Studios at LWG

to 1,138 square feet at MainStreet at River Ranch on Settlers Trace Boulevard.

* One-bedroom rents per square foor generally range from $0.75 at Greystone

Apartments on Reserve Drive to $1.70 at Bridgeway Apartments 11 on Dulles Drive.

—Two-Bedroom Units (20 properties)—

*  Two-bedroom units include two-bedroom flats with one bath (seven properties);
two-bedroom flats with two baths (18 properties); and two-bedroom townhouses
(one property). Rents for two-bedroom/one-bath units range from $600 per month
at the Studios ac LWG, to $1,355 per month atr Bridgeway Apartments I on
Bridgeway Drive. Rents for two-bedroom/ewo-bath flats range from $755 per month
at Retreat at Acadian Point to $1.828 per month at Highlands of Grand Pointe on
Kaliste Saloom Road. Rents for two-bedroom townhouses at Bridgeway Apartments
I start at $925 per month and go as high as $1,285 per month.

*  Two-bedroom/one-bath flats start at 828 square feer at the Grove ar Plantation on
Republic Avenue, with the largest at 977 square feet at Bridgeway Apartments [.
Two-bedroom/two-bath apartments start at 888 square feer, at the Retrear at
Acadian Point. The two-bedroom townhouses at Bridgeway Apartments II contain
approximately 1,500 square feer.

* Two-bedroom rents per square foot for flats generally fall becween $0.74 for a two-
bedroom/two-bath apartment at Grand Pointe on Kaliste Saloom Road and $1.56 at
MainScreer Annex. Rents per square foot for the two-bedroom townhouses at
Bridgeway Apartments II fall becween $0.62 and $0.86.
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—Three-Bedroom Units (15 properties)—

*  Three-bedroom units include three-bedroom flats with two baths (14 properties);
and three-bedroom townhouses (one property—Bridgeway Apartments II). Rents for
three-bedroom flats range between $885 per month at Uptown Lofts on South
Pierce Streer and $2,025 per month ar MainStreet at River Ranch; rents for the
three-bedroom townhouses range between $1,065 and §1,795 per month.

* Three-bedroom flats contain between 1,095 square feer at Uptown Lofts and more
than 2,000 square feer at Highlands of Grand Pointe; three-bedroom townhouses
contain approximately 1,500 square feet of living space.

*  Three-bedroom rents per square foot for flats fall bertween $0.68 at Grand Pointe and

$1.42 ar MainStreet Annex and for townhouses at Bridgeway Apartments II from
$0.71 to $1.20.

These rents are up significantly since December, 2010, with rent increases ranging from just $10 per
month to more than $300 per month; only a few models showed no increase or a slight drop in rent.
Three new properties have been included in the survey—Uptown Lofis which opened in 2013, the
Studios at LWG, artists housing which opened in 2014, and Robley Place Apartments on Robley
Drive, which opened in 2016.

Although most of the rental properties are ar functional full occupancy (less than five percent
vacancy rate), some would not provide the number of vacant units, and three—Bridgeway
Apartments | and Il and Plantation Crossing had occupancy rates below 90 percent. Most of the

properties provide free on-site open parking; however, a few charge a fee for garage parking,

—Multi-Family and Single Family Artached For-Sale Properties—

Financing challenges, from both the developer and consumer perspecrives, following the housing
collapse of the Grear Recession, continue to be the principle reason for the lack of for-sale activiry,
particularly condominiums. Table 4 provides detailed informartion on for-sale properties on the
market—both new and resale—in September 2017. At that time, 22 individual units in six separate
properties were listed by the Multiple Listing Service. Nine of these were resale condominiums in

MainStreet at River Ranch, with asking prices ranging from $134,000 for a 678-square-foor, one-

e
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bedroom/one-bath flat to $235,000 for a 1,274-square-foot, two-bedroom/two-bath unit (with
resale prices per square foot ranging between $177 and $198). Two condominiums are available at
Carriage House, another property in the Village of River Ranch, priced at $468,000 (cwo-
bedrooms/two-baths and 1,409 square feer) and $795,000 (three-bedrooms/two-and-a-half baths
with 2,475 square feet). The prices per square foor are considerably higher at $332 and $321,
respectively. The Walk Scores of these property are a comparatively high 66 and 59.

Resale townhouses are being marketed at four properties. A three-bedroom/two-and-a-half-bath
townhouse is priced at $207,350 for 1,754 square feer of living space at Riverview Estates ($118 per
square foot). Two rownhomes are on the market at Olde Towne at Millcreek—both conrain three
bedrooms, and the smaller, 1,773-square-foot model, is priced ar $255,000 and the larger, 2,000-
square-foor unir, is priced at $329,900 ($144 and $165 per square foot, respectively). Walk Scores of

these two properties are 26 and 17.

Five three-story Lester floorplans at the Warehouse District Lofts on South College Road are listed
on Multiple Listing Service. This model contains just over 2,000 square feet of living space, and the
units on the marker range in asking price from $263,000 to $285,000 ($131 to $142 per square
foor). Three townhouses are available at the Village of River Ranch, priced at $285,000, $399,000,
and $435,000. Square footage ranges from 1,662 to 2,050 square feet, and the asking prices per
square foot fall between $171 and $227. Walk Scores at these two properties are 44 and 57,

respectively.

Three properties are marketing new construction townhouses—the Enclave, which opened for sales
in 2015; Le Moderne at St. Germaine, which opened this year; and Queens Harbor, which opened
in 2016. The Enclave is planned for 90 two-story townhouses; the unit currently on the market

contains 1,220 square feet and is priced at $176,000 ($144 per square foot).

Five townhomes are on the market at Le Moderne at St. Germaine, with sizes of the planned 32
three-bedroom units ranging between 1,354 and 1,557 square feet. The asking prices fall between
$194,900 and $205,900 ($132 to $144 per square foor). The other attached new construction
includes two three-bedroom/two-bath townhouses in Queens Harbor priced ar $212,900 for 1,590
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square feet of living space ($134 per square foot). In addition to 20 townhomes, the property also
includes 54 single-family detached houses. All three properties have Walk Scores below 50.
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OPTIMUM MARKET POSITION

As noted above under UPDATE OF THE ANNUAL MARKET POTENTIAL FOR THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY
ARea, the marker-entry rents and price points for new housing units that could be developed within
the study area are derived from the income and financial capabilities of those draw area target

households with annual incomes at or above $40,000.

—Multi-Family For-Rent Distribution by Rent Range—

An annual average of 1,435 households with incomes at or above $40,000 per year represent the
target markets for newly-constructed rental housing units within the Downtown Lafayette Study
Area (as shown on Table 5 following the text). Supportable rent ranges have been established at 25
percent of the annual gross incomes of the 1,435 annual households, yielding the distribution shown

on the following table:

New Multi-Family For-Rent
Distribution by Rent Range
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

MONTHLY HOUSEHOLDS
RENT RANGE PER YEAR PERCENTAGE

§750-51,000 295 20.6%
$1,000-%1,250 357 24.8%
$1,250-81,500 344 24.0%
$1,500-$1,750 182 12.7%
$1,750-52,000 139 9.7%
$2,000 and up _ 118 8.2%
Taotal: 1,435 100.0%

SQURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc., 2017.

*  The largest group of target renters are younger singles and couples, at nearly three-quarters of
the market for new rental units within the Downtown Lafayette Study Area. Just under 16
percent have careers that provide them with the financial capacity to afford rents at or above
$1,750 per month, primarily New Power Couples, New Bobemians, and The Virs.
Approximacely 37.5 percent of younger singles and couples represent the market for unics
with rents between $1,250 and $1,750 per month—Cosmopolitan Elite, Fast-Track

Professionals and the more affluent of Hometown Sweethearss. A plurality, just under 47

e
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percent, would be able to support rents between $750 and $1,250 per month—primarily the
Suburban Achievers, Small-City Singles, and Twentysomethi ngs.

* Empty nesters and retirees represent just under 15 percent of the marker for new rental units
within the study area. Over 23 percent of the targeted empty nester and retiree market—the
One Percenters, Small-Town Patriarchs, Affluent Empty Nesters, Suburban Establishment, and
the wealthier households of Pillars of the Community and Urban Establishment—have the
income and assets that enable them to support rents significantly above $1,750 per month. A
third arc able to support rents between $1,250 and $1,750 per month—Second-City
Establishment, RV Retirees, and Mainstream Empty Nesters. The remaining 43.3 percent
represent the market for new units with rents between $750 and $1,250 per month,

predominantly Middle-American Retirees and Cosmopolitan Couples.

* Traditional and non-traditional families make up less than 11 percent of the market for new
rental units within the study arca. Just under a quarter of the family market can afford rents
above $1,750 per month (Nouveau Money and e-Type Families), and another 35.5 percent
can support rents between $1,250 and $1,750 per month (Buston-Down Families, Unibox
Transferees, and Fiber-Optic Families). The remaining 40 percent represent the market for
new units with rents between $750 and $1,250 per month, predominantly Late-Nest

Suburbanites, Multi-Ethnic Families, and Uptown Families.

—Multi-Family For-Sale Distribution by Price Range—

An annual average of 220 households with incomes above $40,000 per year represent the targer
markets for newly-constructed for-sale multi-family housing units within the Downtown Lafayette
Study Area (as shown on Table 6 following the text). Supportable price points have been derermined
by assuming a down payment of 10 percent, and a monthly mortgage payment, excluding taxes and
utilicies, that does not exceed 25 percent of annual gross income for each of the 220 houscholds thar
represent the annual potential for-sale multi-family marker, yielding the distribution on the table

following this page:
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New Muld-Family For-Sale
Distribution by Price Range
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayetre Parish, Louisiana

PRICE HOUSEHOLDS

RANGE PER YEAR PERCENTAGE
$150,000-3200,000 51 23.2%
$200,000-%250,000 54 24.4%
$250,000-3300,000 40 18.2%
$300,000-8350,000 34 15.5%
$350,000-$400,000 23 10.5%
$400,000 and up 18  8.2%
Toal: 220 100.0%

SouRrce: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc., 2017,

* Younger singles and couples are again the largest segment of the market for new multi-family
for-sale units (condominiums) within the Downtown Lafayette Study Area, ac nearly 64
percent of the marker. Just under 13 percent could afford new units priced over $350,000,
primarily New Power Couples. A third of the younger households would be in the marker for
new condominiums with base prices between $250,000 and $350,000, including Fasr-Track
Professionals, Cosmapolitan Elite, The Virs, and New Bohemians. The remaining 54 percent of
the younger singles and couples (primarily Suburban Achievers, Small-City Singles, and
Twentysomethings) would be in the marker for units priced berween $150,000 and $250,000.

* Empty nesters and retirees comprise a quarter of the market for new condominiums within
the study area. Approximarely 31 percent of the older households, primarily the wealthier
households of Affluent Empty Nesters and Suburban Establishment, would be in the marker for
new condominiums with base prices above $350,000. Another 34.5 percent of the older
houscholds would be in the market for new units priced between $250,000 and $350,000,
comprising the somewhat less affluent households of Urban Establishment and Second City
Establishment. The remaining 34.5 percent would be in the market for new unics priced
between $150,000 and $250,000 (Mainstream Empty Nesters, Middle-American Retirees,
Country Couples, and Cosmopolitan Couples).

* The remainder of the market, traditional and non-traditional families, comprises just over 11
percent of the market for new for-sale condominiums within the Downtown Lafayette Study

Area. Just under a quarter of the family households could afford new units priced over
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$350,000 (Unibox Transferees). Approximately 36 percent of the families would be in the
market for new condominiums with base prices between $250,000 and $350,000 (Laze-Nest
Suburbanites). The remaining 40 percent of the traditional and non-traditional families

would be in the market for units priced between $150,000 and $250,000 (Uptown Families).

—Single-Family Artached For-Sale Distribution by Price Range—

An annual average of 325 households with incomes above $40,000 per year represent the target
markets for newly-constructed single-family actached housing units (rowhouses/townhouses) within
the Downtown Lafayette Study Area (a5 shown on Table 7 following the text). As with the for-sale
condominiums, supportable price points for the rowhouses/townhouses have been determined by
assuming a down payment of 10 percent, and a monthly mortgage payment, excluding taxes and
utilicies, that does not exceed 25 percent of annual gross income for each of the 325 households that
represent the annual potential rowhouse/townhouse marker, yielding the distribution shown on the

following rable:

New Single-Family Actached For Sale
Distriburion by Price Range
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayetre, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

PRICE HOUSEHOLDS

RANGE PER YEAR PERCENTAGE
$200,000-5250,000 102 31.3%
$250,000-$300,000 100 30.8%
$300,000-$350,000 43 13.2%
$350,000-%£400,000 35 10.8%
$400,000-%$450,000 25 7.7%
$450,000 and up 20 6.2%
Total: 325 100.0%

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc., 2017.

* Again, the largest group of rarger buyers of rowhouses/townhouses are younger singles and
couples at just over 49 percent of the potential market for new for-sale single-family atrached
units within the Downtown Lafayette Study Area. Just 9.4 percent of the younger singles
and couples represent the potential market for rowhouses/townhouses with base prices above
$400,000, primarily New Power Couples. Slightly more than 18 percent are able to purchase
units priced berween $300,000 and $400,000—primarily New Bobemians, The Vips,
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Cosmapolitan Elite, and Fast-Track Professionals. The remaining 72.5 percent would only be
able to support base prices berween $200,000 and $300,000—Homerown Sweethearts,
Suburban Achievers, Small-City Singles, and Twenrysomethings.

* Empty nesters and retirees represent just over 29 percent of the marker for new
rowhouses/townhouses within the study area. Just under 19 percent of the empry nesters and
retirees—Small-Town Patriarchs and Suburban Establishment—have the income and assets
thar enable them to purchase new rowhouses/townhouses with base prices above $400,000.
Approximately one quarter arc able to purchase new units priced between $300,000 and
$400,000—"Pillars of the Community, Urban Establishment, and Second City Establishment.
The remaining 55.8 percent represent the market for new rowhouses/townhouses with base
prices between $200,000 and $300,000, including Mainstream Empty Nesters and Middle-

American Retirees, among others.

* Traditional and non-traditional familics make up the remaining 21.5 percent of the market
for new rowhouses/townhouses within the study area. Seventeen percent of the traditional
and non-traditional families market—MNowveau Money, Button-Down Families, and Unibox
Transferees—have the income and assets that enable them to purchase new
rowhouses/townhouses with base prices above $400,000. Just under 26 percent of the family
market can afford base prices of new rowhouses/townhouses between $300,000 and
$400,000 (Fiber-Opric Families and Late-Nest Suburbanites); and another 47.1 percent can
support base prices between $200,000 and $300,000 (Multi-Ethnic Families and Uptown

Families).

From the perspective of the housing consumer, the existing assets of the Downtown Lafayette Study
Area that make it an attractive place to live remain the same:
» Downtown continues to be a significant regional employment center, with strong
connections to the University of Louisiana and the Oil Center.
* Nearly all the cultural venues of the region are located in Downtown.
* Parc Internarional and Parc Sans Souci continue to be central gachering places for

city residents,
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* The core Downtown is very walkable, with a variery of amenities located within
short walking distances, including restaurants and bars, galleries and shops, schools
and churches.

* The historic buildings located in Downtown.

* Because of its location in the citywide and regional transportation and arterial
network, Downtown is a convenient and highly accessible neighborhood.

»  Fiber nerworks and broadband services are available.

What will they pay to live in the Downtown Lafayette Study Area?

Based on the housing preferences and the socio-economic and lifestyle characteristics of the targer
households over the next five years, and the relevant residential context in the Lafayerte marker area,
the general range of rents and prices for newly-developed market-rate residential units in the study

area thar could currently be sustained by the market is as follows (see also Table 8 following the text):

General Rent, Price and Size Range
Newly-Created Housing (Adaptive Re-Use and New Construction)
HE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA

City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

RENT/PRICE Size RENT/PRICE
HousING TYPE RANGE RANGE PER SQ. FT.

RENTAL— i
400-1,400 sf \&43—5 1.88 psf

Apartment Flars $750-5$2,000/month

FOR-SALE— ”
Lofts * $165,000-3300,000 850-1,650 sf $182-5194 psf
Mansion Condominiums $230,000-3310,000 1,150-1,600 sf $194-3200 psf
Rowhouses $200,000-$285,000 1,000-1,500 sf $190-5200 psf
Townhouses $250,000-$400,000 1,300-2,200 sf $182-5192 psf

* Unit interiors of lofts may or may not have high ceilings and are fully finished, with the interiors
partitioned into separate rooms.

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc.. 2017,

Based on the unit types, sizes, and rents/prices oudined in the optimum market position, the

weighted average rents and prices for each of the housing types are shown on the table following this

page:
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Weighted Average Base Rents, Prices and Size Ranges
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

WEIGHTED AVERAGF
HOUSING WEIGHTED AVERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE BASE RENT/PRICES
Tyre BASE RENT/PRICES UNIT S1ZE PER SQ. FT.
MuLTI-FAMILY FOR-RENT | 1 -
Apartment Flats $1,245 per month | EGB sf $1.63 psf
/ . S SN }
MULTI-FAMILY FOR-SALE = s
Lofts £220,500 1,178 sf $187 psf
Mansion Condominiums $268,500 1,368 sf $196 psf
SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED FOR-SALE
Rowhouses $247,250 1,275 sf $194 psf
Townhouses $292,750 1,555 sf $188 psf

SOURCF: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc., 2017,

The proposed rents and prices are in year 2017 dollars, are exclusive of consumer options and
upgrades, floor or location premiums, and cover the broad range of rents and prices that could, in

normal economic conditions, be sustained by the market in the Downtown Lafayette Study Area.

For the most part (and depending on location), these rents and prices cannot be achieved by the
development of one or two infill units, but require that projects be of sufficient size (at least 20
units) to achieve development efficiency and to support a high-profile marketing campaign. Location
will also have a significant impact on rents and prices; projects situated within a short walking
distance of urban amenities, such as restaurants, theaters, shops, or employment will likely command
rents and prices at the upper end of values. Those projects in less desirable locations or ac the edges

of the study area are likely to command rent and prices at the lower end of values.

From the perspective of draw area target market propensities and compatibility, a broad range of
new construction as well as repurposing of land use will be required to support and sustain
residencial diversity in the study area. An effective housing strategy to achieve thac goal should
include:
* Preservation of the built environmenct: the restoration, repositioning and/or adaprive
re-use of existing buildings when they contribute positively to the urban context,

particularly vacant upper floors of Downtown buildings;
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New residential construction: the introduction of housing types not currenty

available or under-represented in the study area;

* Support for a variety of housing types, both rental and for-sale, starting with higher-
value market-rate but over the long term including affordable and workforce housing
units;

* Mixed-use development: the inclusion of both residential and retail within mult-story

buildings, particularly along commercial corridors; and

*  The acquisition and repurposing of surface parking lots.

In addition to adaptive re-use of existing vacant buildings, the residential conversion of Class B office
buildings, particularly if the office market for Class B space is very soft, can have a salutary effect on
the Downtown Study Area. These buildings are likely to yield a greater number of dwelling unics
than two- and three-story conversions, increasing the downtown population at a more rapid pace. In
addition, the conversion of high-vacancy Class B buildings to residential takes them out of the
commercial marker, resulting in a decline in office vacancy rates, sometimes to the extent that

demand for new office construction is induced.

How fast will the units lease or sell?

Based on nearly 30 years’ experience employing the target marker methodology in urban locations at
every scale in 47 states, Zimmerman/Volk Associates has determined that new multi-family rental
development (including adaptive re-use of existing non-residential buildings as well as new
construction) within the study area should be able to achieve an annual caprure of 10 o 12 percent
of the annual potential rental renter houscholds each year over the next five years, assuming the

production of appropriately-positioned new or renovated housing,

Given current economic conditions, and the expectation of continued improvement for new for-sale
housing, Zimmerman/Volk Associates has determined thar a capture of between eight percent of the
annual potential market for new condominiums and rowhouses/townhouses could be achievable in
the study area. (Nationally, prior to the housing collapse in 2008, new dwelling units represented 15

percent of all units sold; over the past several years, new dwelling units have averaged approximately

eight percent of all units sold.)
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Annual Capture of Market Potential
THE DOWNTOWN LAFAYETTE STUDY AREA
City of Lafayette, Lafayetse Parish, Louisiana

HOUSING TYPE

Rental Muldi-Family
(lofis/apartments, leaseholder)

For-Sale Mulci-Family

{lofis/apartments, condo/co-op ownership)

For-Sale Single-Family Actcached
(townhouses/rowhouses, fee-simple ownership)

Toml

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc,, 2017.

NUMBER OF
HOUSEHOLDS

1,435

28]
o
(=]

Lot
[2%]
A,

1,980

CAPTURE NUMBER OF
RATE ¥ UNITS
10% - 12% m

8% - 10% 18-22

[
'

s

LS

8% - 10% 2

187 - 227

Note: Target market capure rates are a unique and highly-refined measure of feasibilicy.

Target marker capture rates are nor equivalent to—and should not be confused

with—penetration rates or traffic conversion rates.

The target market capture rate is derived by dividing the annual forecast

absorption—in aggregate and by housing type—by the number of

households that have the potential to purchase or rent new housing within a

specified area in a given year.

The penctration rate is derived by dividing the soral number of dwelling units

planned for a property by the rotal number of draw area households,

sometimes qualified by income.

The traffic conversion rate is derived by dividing the zora/ number of buyers

or renters by the fotal number of prospects that have visited a site.

Because the prospective market for a location is more precisely defined, target market

caprure rates are higher than the more grossly-derived penetration rates. However,

the resulting higher caprure rates are well within the range of prudent feasibilicy.

¥
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Table 1

Annual Market Potential
Annual Average Number Of Draw Area Households With The Potential
To Move To The Downtown Lafayette Study Area Each Year Over The Next Five Years
Households With Annual Incomes At Or Above 540,000

Downtown Lafayette
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

Lafayette City, Lafayette Parish, Acadiana Draw Area,
East Batonn Rouge Parish, and Balance of the United States
Draw Areas

Annual Target Market Households
With The Potential To Rent/Purchase In the
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana 10,710

Annual Target Market Households
With The Potential To Rent/Purchase In
Downtown Lafayette 1,980

Downtown Annual Market Potential
(Excluding Single-Family Detached)

Multi- Single-
...... Family...... ...Family...
.. Attached . .

For-Rent For-Sale  All Ranges Total

Total Households: 1,435 220 325 1,980
{Mix Distribution]: 72.5% 11.1% 16.4% 100.0%

NOTE: Reference Appendix One, Tables 1 Through 12.

SOQURCE: Claritas, Inc.;
Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 2

Annual Market Potential By Lifestage And Household Type
Annual Average Number Of Draw Area Households With The Potential
To Move To The Downtown Lafayette Study Area Each Year Over The Next Five Years
Households With Annual Incomes At Or Above $40,000
Downtown Lafayette
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

Multi- Single-
...... Family...... ... Family . ..
. Attached . .
Total For-Rent For-Sale All Ranges
Number of
Households: 1,980 1,435 220 325
Empty Nesters
& Retirees 18% 15% % 29%
Traditional &
Non-Traditional Families 137 10% 1% 22%
Younger
Singles & Couples 69% 75% 64% 49%
100% 100% 100% 100%

SOURCE: Claritas, Inc.;
Zimmerman/ Volk Assodiates, Inc.
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Table 3
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Summary Of Selected Multi-Family Rental Properties
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

September, 2017
Number Unit Reported Reported Rent per
Property (Date Opened) of Unils Type Base Rent Unil Size Sg. Ft. Additional Information
Address
The Studios at LWG 15 100% occupancy
(2014) 1br/1ba $490 to 491 to S$1.00 to Bike racks.
333 Monroe Streel $650 576 $1.13
Latter & Blum 2br/1ba $600 to 637 to $0.94 to
$775 729 $1.06
82 Walk score
*artists housing
The Retreat at Acadian Point 384 98% occupancy
(1989) 1br/1ba $617 to 652 $0.95 to Boat parking,
221 Verot School Road $1,053 $1.62 resort-style swimming
BH Management Services, LLC 2br/1ba $729 to 888 $0.82 to  pool, fitness center,
51,141 $1.28 car care area,
53 Walk score 2br/2ba $755 to 888 to 30.85 to laundry facility.
$1,189 960 51.24
Uptown Lofts 73 n/a
(2013) 1br/1ba $630 614 $1.03 Lounge, secure access
519 §. Pierce Street community plaza
Latter & Blum 2br/2ba $830 934 $0.89 en-site retail
SMARTMetering
84 Walk score 3br/2ba $885 1,095 $0.81  LEED ND/Enterprise Greer:
*mixed-income Community Certified
The Grove at Plantation 136 n/a
(1989) 1br/1ba $675 to 575 to $1.17 to Swimming pools,
211 Republic Avenue $775 626 $1.24 fitness center,
The Medve Group Inc. 2br/1ba $845 to 828 $1.02 to playground,
$895 $1.08 sports court,
39 Walk score 2br/2ba $875 to 940 5093 to business center,
$925 $0.98 cyber cafe, gazebo,
3br/2ba $1,095 1,103 $0.99 grilling stations.
Bridgeway Apartments II 169 e Apartments . . ... 87% occupancy
(2008) 1br/1ba $675 to 713 $0.95 to Swimming pool,
411 Dulles Drive $1,215 $1.70 fitness center,
A.C. Lewis Management 2br/2ba $790 to 1,070 $0.74 to business center,
$1,140 $1.07 laundry facility,
40 Walkscore L. Townhouses . . . .. picnic area,
2br/3ba $925 to 1,501 $0.62 to and pet park.
$1,285 $0.86
3br/3ba $1,065 1,501 $0.71 to
$1,795 $1.20

SOURCE: Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 3

Page 2 of 5

Summary Of Selected Multi-Family Rental Properties
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

September, 2017
Number Unit Reported Reported Rent per
Property (Date Opened) of Units Type  Basc Rent Unit Size Sq. FL. Additional Information
Address
Greystone Apartments 276 97% occupancy
(2010) 1br/1ba $690 to 648 to 80.75 Pool, cabana, clubhouse,
116 Reserve Drive $711 943 $1.06 to fitness and business center,
2br/2ba $850 908 $0.94 cyber café, tanning salon,
56 Walk score $1,115 1,240 $0.90 basketball and
3br/2ba $1,175 1,306 $0.90 volleyball courts,
$1,186 $0.91 courtyard, grill.
Bridgeway Apartments I 118 76% occupancy
(2009) 1br/1ba $725 to 775 $0.9¢ to Swimming pool,
200 Bridgeway Drive $1,000 $1.41 fitness center,
A.C. Lewis Management 2br/1ba $760 to 977 $0.78 to business center,
$1,355 $1.39 laundry facility,
55 Walk score sundeck.
The Landing Apts 346 97% occupancy
(1984) 1br/1ba $738 to 566 to $0.95 to Swimming pool,
2314 Kaliste Saloom Road $787 827 $1.30 fitness center,
Implicity Management Co. 2br/1ba $851 843 $1.01 clubhouse,
2br/2ba $933 946 $0.99 volleyball court,
48 Walk score laundry facility,.
Grand Pointe 266 97% occupancy
(2007) 1br/1ba $747 to 852 to $0.88 to Swinming pools,
3600 Kaliste Saloom Road $920 965 $0.95 private clubhouse,
DEI Communities 2br/2ba $886 to 1,146 to $0.74 to tennis court, playground,
$935 1,268 $0.77 fitness center, lake, trails,
14 Walk score 3br/2ba $968 1,415 $0.68 cybercenter,
picnic area with grills.
Audubon Lake Apts 208 97% occupancy
(2003) 1br/1ba $810 to 650 to 5125 to Swimming pool,
1019 Kaliste Saloom Road $953 710 $1.34 jacuzzi, filness center,
Element National Management 2br/1ba $928 843 $1.10 clubhouse, game room,
2br/2ba $1,003 to 1,053 to $0.95 to wvolleyball court, putting
40 Walk score $1,104 1,090 $1.01 green, fishing pond,
3br/2ba $1,267 1,206 $1.05 business center.

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 3 Page 3 of 5
Summary Of Selected Multi-Family Rental Properties
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana
September, 2017
Number Unit Reported Reported Rent per
Property (Date Opened) of Units Type Base Rent Unit Size Sq. Ft. Additional Information
Address
Ansley Walk 242 97% occupancy
(2009 L. Apartments . . ... Swimming pool,
1200 Robley Drive 1br/1ba $835 to 643 to $1.15 to cabana, fitness center,
Key. $1,085 943 $1.30 clubhouse, game room,
2br/2ba $1,040 to 1,071 to $0.97 to  business center, coffee
45 Walk score $1,080 1,183 $0.91 bar, lounge, fountains,
3br/2ba $1,345 to 1,287 to  $1.05 to barbecue area,
$1,390 1,396 $1.00 laundry facilities.
Plantation Crossing 216 87% occupancy
(2009) 1br/1ba $835 to 649 to 51.17 to Swimming pool,
215 Republic Avenue $875 749 $1.29 sauna, fitness center,
MLP Property & Asset Management ~ 2br/1ba $985 to 849 to $1.16 to lake, pond, trails,
$995 $1.17 sundeck, cyber lonnge
32 Walk score 2br/2ba $1,165 to 1,078 $1.08 to  grills, tanning salon
$1,205 $1.12 cyber cafe, gazebo,
3br/2ba $1,395 to 1,337 $1.04 to grilling stations,
$1,425 $1.07 and pet friendly.
Plantation at Lafayette 222 97% occupancy
(1996) 1br/1ba $845 to 763 to $1.10 to Swimming pools,
211 Liberty Avenue $975 883 $1.11 fitness center,
The Medve Group Inc. 2br/2ba $945 to 1,004 to $0.90 to playground,
$1,045 1,161 $0.94 sports court,
34 Walk score 3br/2ba $1,245 to 1,325 $0.94 to business cenler,
$1,295 $0.98 cyber cafe, gazebo,
grilling stations.
The Crescent at River Ranch 158 96% occupancy
(2002) Studio/ 1ba $885 to 538 $1.64 to  Swimming pool, spa,
1042 Camellia Boulevard $965 $1.79 sauna, fitness cenfer,
Park Management 1br/1ba 975 to 758 to 51.29 to playground, tennis
$1,185 840 $1.41 and basketball courts,
51 Walk score 2br/2ba $1,265 to 1,088 to $1.16 to sundeck and
$1,565 1222 $1.28 picnic area, lounge.

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc.
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Summary Of Selected Multi-Family Rental Properties
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

September, 2017
Number Unit Reported Reported Rent per
Property (Date Opened) of Unils Type Base Rent ~ Unit Size Sq. Ft. Additional Information
Address
Chateau des Lions 180 97% occupancy
(2002) 1br/1ba $925 to BOO to $l.16 Swimming pools,
6000 Johnston Street $966 821 $1.18 private clubhouse,
2br/2ba $1,135 BOO to $0.98 to tennis court, playground,
1,157 $1.42 fitness cenler, lake, trails,
31 Walk score 3br/2ba $1,340 1,286 to $0.97 to cybercenter,
1,386 $1.04 picnic area with grills.
Robley Place Apartments 248 n/a
(2016) 1br/1ba $925 to 767 to $1.18 Swimming pool,
1100 Robicy Drive $1,000 847 $1.21 clubhouse,
2br/2ba $1,180 to 1,098 to $1.03 to fitness center
$1,320 1,144 $1.07 community orchard
40 Walk score 3br/2ba $1425 to 1,348 $1.06 to business center
$1,525 $1.13 dog park
MainStreet Annex M3 Lofts ... .. 91% occupancy
(2010) Studio/1ba $925 to 540 $1.71 Swimming pool,
111 Settlers Trace Boulevard ... Apartments . . ... spa, snuna, cabana,
Park Management 1br/1ba $1,025 to 650 to $1.58 to  clubhouse, courtyard,
$1,395 1,079 $1.29 picnic area, grill,
66 Walk score 2br/2ba $1,480 to 1,090 to $1.36 to  playground, fennis
$1,700 1,238 $1.56 court, business center,
3br/2ba $1,865 1,316 $1.42 conference room, coffec
..... Live/Work ... .. bar, and pet play arca.
1br/1ba $1,060 to 650 to $1.63 to
$1,300 866 $1.50
1br/2ba $1,550 1,090 $1.42
2br/2ba $1,995 1,347 $1.48

SOURCE: Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc.
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Summary Of Selected Multi-Family Rental Properties

City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

September, 2017
Number Unit Reported Reported Rent per
Property (Date Opened) of Units Type  Basc Rent Unit Size Sa. Fl. Additional Information
Address
MainStreet at River Ranch 316  ..... Apartments . . . .. 97% occupancy
(2010) 1br/1ba $925 to 674 to $1.37 to Swimming pools,
201 Settlers Trace Boulevard $1,375 1,138 $1.21 fitness center,
Park Management 2br/2ba $1,350 to 1,074 to $1.26 to playground,
$1,650 1,347 $1.22 sports court,
66 Walk score 3br/2ba $1,785 to 1,375 to $1.30 to business center,
$2,025 1,482 $1.37 cyber cafe, gazebo,
..... Live/Work . . ... grilling stations,
1br/1ba $975 to 674 to $1.45 to
$1,195 881 $1.36
2br/2ba  $1400 to 1,130 to $1.24 to
$2,200 1,720 $1.28
Lafayette Gardens 266 97% occupancy
(2008) 1br/1ba $995 846 $1.18 Swimming pools,
110 East Martial Avenue 2br/2ba $1,025 to 1,052 $0.97 to clubliouse, cybercenter,
$1,275 $1.21 tennis conrl,
3br/2ba $1,255 to 1,275 $0.98 to playground, fitness center,
56 Walk score $1,525 $1.20 lake, trails,
picnic area, grills.
Highlands of Grand Pointe 116 100% occupancy
(2008) 1br/1ba 910 to Swimming pools,
3601 Kaliste Saloom Road 1,044 private clubhouse,
2br/2ba $1,303 to 1,373 to $0.95 to tennis court, playground,
$1,828 1,615 $1.13 fitness center, lake, trails,
17 Walk score 3br/2ba $1,308 to 1,649 to $0.79 to cybercenter,
$2,013 2,008 $1.00 picnic arca with grills.

SOURCE: Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.
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ﬁ Summary Of Selected For-Sale Multi-Family
- And Single-Family Attached Developments
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana
September, 2017

Base
Unit Base Price Unit Size Price Per Walk
Development (Date Opened) Type Range Range Sq. Ft. Score
Developer{Builder/Address
...Resale Listings...
MainStreet at River Ranch (2010) 66
Village of River Ranch ...Condominums. ..
201 Settlers Trace Blud 1br/1ba $134,000 678 $198
River Ranch Dev't 1br/1ba $145,000 788 $184
2br/2ba $190,000 1,074 $177
2br/1ba $196,500 1,075 $183
2br/1ba $202,000 1,120 $180
2br/2ba $205,000 1,074 %191
2br/2ba $205,000 1,121 $183
2br/2ba $234,900 1,257 $187
2br/2ba $235,000 1,274 $184
Riverview Estates (2006) 26
ﬁ Duncan Realty Professionals, LLC ... Townhouse...
Bandera Drive 3br/2.5ba $207,350 1,754 %118
Olde Towne at Millcreek (2008) 17
Lamb Development, LLC ... Townhouses...
Traditions Drive 3br/2.5ba $255,000 1,773 $144
Founders Street 3br/3ba $329,900 2,000 %165
Warehouse District Lofts (2009) 14
1201 South College Road ... Townhouses...
Dimitri Menutis 2br/2ba $263,000 2,006 $131
2br/2.5ba $269,750 2,006 5134
2br/2ba $275,000 2,006 $137
2br/2.5ba $279,999 2,006 $140
2br/2.5ba $285,000 2,006 $142
Village of River Ranch (2010) 57
Southern Lifestyle Realty ... Townhouses...
Camellia Boulevard 2br/2.5ba $285,000 1,662 $171
Richland Avenue 2br/2.5ba $399,000 1,760 $227
Richland Avenue 3br/2.5ba $435,000 2,050 $212

o SOURCE: Multiple Listing Service;
Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 4 Page 2 of 2

ﬁ Summary Of Selected For-Sale Multi-Family
U And Single-Family Attached Developments
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

September, 2017
Base
Unit Base Price Unit Size Price Per Walk
Development (Date Opened) Type Range Range Sq. Ft. Score
Developer/Builder/ Address
Carriage House (2007) 59
302 Richland Avenue ...Condominums...
Village of River Ranch 2br/2ba $468,000 1,409 $332
Southern Lifestyle Realty 3br/2.5ba $795,000 2,475 $321
...New Construction Listings...
Enclave (2015) +H
2903 West Pirthook Road
JL Real Estate ... Townhouse. ..
Hightand Oaks Lane 2br/2ba $176,000 1,220 $144
Le Moderne at St. Germaine (2017) 38
ﬁ Re/Max Acadiana ... Townhouses. ..

: Saint Germaine Circle 3br/2.5ba $194,900 1,354 $144
3br/2.5ba $199,900 1411 $142
3br/2.5ba $199,900 1,435 $139
3br/2.5ba $199,900 1,411 $142
3br/2.5ba $205,900 1,557 $132

Queens Harbor (2016) 34
Van Eaton & Romero, LLC ... Townhouses. ..

3br/2ba $212,900 1,590 $134

3br/2ba $212,900 1,590 $134

ﬁ

SOURCE: Multiple Listing Service;
Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 5

Target Groups For New Multi-Family For-Rent

Downtown Lafayette Study Area
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

Empty Nesters Number of
& Retirees” Households Percent
The One Percenters 5 0.3%
Small-Town Patriarchs 5 0.3%
Affluent Empty Nesters 5 0.3%
Suburban Establishment 15 1.0%
Pillars of the Community 10 0.7%
Urban Establishment 20 14%
Second City Establishment 5 0.3%
RV Retirees 5 0.3%
Mainstream Empty Nesters 45 31%
Middle-American Retirees 30 21%
Country Couples 20 1.4%
Multi-Ethnic Empty Nesters 5 0.3%
Cosmopolitan Couples 25 1.7%
Middle-Class Move-Downs 5 0.3%
Blue-Collar Retirees 10 0.7%
Subtotal: 210 14.6%
Traditional &
Non-Traditional Familiest
Nouveau Money 5 0.3%
e-Type Families 5 0.3%
Button-Down Families 10 0.7%
Unibox Transferees 20 1.4%
Fiber-Optic Families 5 0.3%
Late-Nest Suburbanites 35 24%
Multi-Ethnic Families 15 1.0%
Uptown Families 60 4.2%
Subtotal: 155 10.8%
Younger
Singles & Couples®
New Power Couples 5 0.3%
New Bohemians 85 5.9%
The VIPs 290 20.2%
Cosmopolitan Elite 10 0.7%
Fast-Track Professionals 305 21.3%
Hometown Sweethearts 25 1.7%
Suburban Achievers 40 2.8%
Small-City Singles 65 4.5%
Twentysomethings 245 17.1%
Subtotal: 1,070 74.6,
Total Households: 1,435 100.07%

* Primarily one- and two-person households
+ Primarily three- and four-person households.

SOURCE: Claritas, Inc.;
Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 6

ﬁ Target Groups For New Multi-Family For-Sale

Downtown Lafayette Study Area
City of Lafayctie, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

Empty Nesters Number of Share of
& Retirees” Houscholds Houscholds
Affluent Empty Nesters 5 2.3%
Suburban Establishment 5 2.3%
Urban Establishment 5 2.3%
Second City Establishment 10 4.5%
Mainstream Empty Nesters 10 4.5%
Middle-American Retirees 10 4.5%
Country Couples 5 2.3%
Cosmopolitan Couples b 2.3%
Subtotal: 55 25.0%
Traditional &
Non-Traditional Familiest
Unibox Transferees 5 2.3%
Late-Nest Suburbanites 10 4.5%
Uptown Families 10 4.5%
h Subtotal: 25 11.4%
Younger
Singles & Couples*
New Power Couples 5 2.3%
New Bohemians 10 4.5%
The VIPs 65 29.5%
Cosmopelitan Elite 5 2.3%
Fast-Track Professionals 30 13.6%
Suburban Achievers 5 2.3%
Small-City Singles 5 2.3%
Twentysomethings 15 6.8%
Subtotal: ' 140 63.6%
Total Househaolds: 220 100.0%

* Primarily one- and two-person households
t Primarily three- and four-person houscholds.

M SOURCE: Claritas, Inc.;
Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



Table 7

Target Groups For New Single-Family Attached For-Sale

Downtown Lafayette Study Area
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

Empty Nesters Number of Share of
& Retirees* Households Households
Small-Town Patriarchs 5 1.5%
Suburban Establishment 10 31%
Pillars of the Community 5 1.5%
Urban Establishment 5 1.5%
Second City Establishment 5 1.5%
Mainstream Empty Nesters 25 7.7%
Middle-American Retirees 15 4.6%
Country Couples 10 3.1%
Multi-Ethnic Empty Nesters 5 1.5%
Cosmopolitan Couples 5 1.5%
Blue-Collar Retirees 5 1.5%
Subtotal: 95 29.2%
Traditional &
Non-Traditional Familiest
Nouveau Money 5 1.5%
Button-Down Families 5 1.5%
Unibox Transferees 10 3.1%
Fiber-Optic Families 5 1.5%
Late-Nest Suburbanites 15 4.6%
Multi-Ethnic Families 5 1.5%
Uptown Families 25 7.7%
Subtotalk 70 21.5%
Younger
Singles & Couples®
New Power Couples 5 1.5%
New Bohemians 5 1.5%
The VIPs 70 21.5%
Cosmopolitan Elite 5 1.5%
Fast-Track Professionals 20 6.2%
Hometown Sweethearts ] 1.5%
Suburban Achievers 15 4.6%
Small-City Singles 20 6.2%
Twentysomethings 15 4.6%
Subtotal: 160 49.27%
Total Households: 325 100.0%

* Primarily one- and two-person households
+ Primarily three- and four-person households.

SOURCE: Claritas, Inc.;
Zimmerman/ Volk Assodates, Inc.



Table 8 Page 1 of2

m Optimum Market Position—935 to 1,135 New Dwelling Units

The Downtown Lafayette Study Area
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana

October, 2017
Base Base Annual
Percent of Unit Unit  Rent/Price  Unit Size  Rent/Price Forecast
Households Housing Type  Configuration  Mix Range Range Per 5q. Ft.  Absorption
Number
72.5% Multi-Family For-Rent
1,435 Apartment Flats  Studio/1ba 30% $750 400 $1.88 143 to 172
1br/1ba 25% $1,150 650 $1.77
1br/1ba/office  15% $1,350 800 $1.69
2br/2ba 20% $1,650 1,100 $1.50
3br/2ba 109 $2,000 1,400 $1.43
Weighted Average: $1,245 763 $1.63
__11.1% Multi-Family For-Sale 18 to 22
! ) 220 Lofts 1br/1ba 454 $165,000 850 $194 12t0 14
2br/2ba 25% $225,000 1,200 $188
3br/2ba 30% $300,000 1,650 $182
Weighted Average: $220,500 1,178 %187
Mansion lbr/1.5ba/study  35% $230,000 1,150 $200 6to8
Condominiums 2br/2.5ba 30% $265,000 1,350 $196
(4-6 unit 2br/2.5ba/study 35% $310,000 1,600 $194
buildings)
Weighted Average: $268,500 1,368 5196

NOTE: Base rents/prices are in year 2017 dollars, do not include premiums, options or upgrades.

P

- SOURCE: Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.



100.0%

1,980 Households

Table 8 Page 2 of 2
Optimum Market Position—-935 to 1,135 New Dwelling Units
The Downtown Lafayette Study Area
City of Lafayette, Lafayette Parish, Louisiana
October, 2017
Base Base Annual
Percent of Unit Unit  Rent{Price  Unit Size  Rent/Price Forecast
Households Housing Type  Configuration  Mix Range Range  Per 5q. Ft.  Absorplion
Number
16.4% Single-Family Attached For-Sale 26 to 33
e ————— oo

325 Rowhouses 2br/1.5ba 35% $200,000 1,000 $200 14to 18

2br/2ba/den  20% $245,000 1,250 $196

3br/2ba 45% $285,000 1,500 $190

Weighted Average: $247,250 1,275 $194
Townhouses 2br/2.5ba 40% $250,000 1,300 $192 12t0 15

2br/2.5ba/den  30% $275,000 1,450 $190

3br/2.5ba 15% $335,000 1,800 $186

3br/3.5ba/study 15% $400,000 2,200 5182

Weighted Average: $292,750 1,555 $188

187 to 227
annual units

5-Year Total
935 to 1,135

NOTE: Base rents/ prices are in year 2017 dollars, do not include premiums, options or upgrades.

SOURCE: Zimmerman/ Volk Associates, Inc.
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ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS—

Every effort has been made to insure the accuracy of the data contained within this analysis.
Demographic and economic estimates and projections have been obtained from government
agencies at the national, state, and county levels. Marker information has been obrained from
sources presumed to be reliable, including developers, owners, and/or sales agents. However, this
information cannot be warranted by Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc. While the proprietary
residential target marker methodology employed in chis analysis allows for a margin of error in
base data, it is assumed that the marker dara and government estimates and projections are

substantially accurate.

Absorption scenarios are based upon the assumption that a normal economic environment will
prevail in a relatively steady state during developmenc of the subject property. Absorption paces
are likely to be slower during recessionary periods and faster during periods of recovery and high
growth. Absorption scenarios are also predicated on the assumption that the product
recommendations will be implemented generally as outlined in this reporc and that the developer
will apply high-caliber design, construction, marketing, and management techniques to the

development of the property.

Recommendations are subject to compliance with all applicable regulations. Relevant

accounting, tax, and legal matters should be substantiated by appropriate counsel.
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RIGHTS AND STUDY QWNERSHIP—

Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc. retains all rights, title and interest in the ZVA residential
target market methodology and target market descriptions contained within this study. The
specific findings of the analysis are the property of the client and can be distributed ac the client’s

discretion.

@ Zimmerman/Volk Associares, Inc., 2017




built tolast™

June 7, 2019

Le Centre Evangeline Corporation
130 W. South Street

Opelousas, LA 70570

Attn: Mr. Jack Tolson

Re: Buchanan Garage Redevelopment
RFP Pricing

Dear Mr. Tolson:

On behalf of The Lemoine Company, we are pleased to present you our Proposal for the
Buchanan Garage Redevelopment. The basis of our pricing is based on Schematic Plans by
SaftArchitecture received on 05.29.19. These documents along with our historical pricing
database form the basis of this pricing. The following is the breakdown of our estimate:

Base Bid:

Parking Garage Remediation AllOWaNCE .....vvviiiiiiiiiisiireiieisionrnnsisissssssaes $2,500,000
Jefferson St. Building (57,997 SF Conditioned Area) ......cocvvviviveiennninnns $11,687,275
Convent St. Building (68,448 SF Conditioned Area) ......ccocovvvvvniiiinnnnnnns $14,156,200
Total Base Bid ..uveiiiiiiiiieeiiciiniiiireniiiesritssiirenerresersresrsstrsssssrssssnsnsssenes $28,343,475
Alternates:

Alternate No. 1 - Change Structure from Steel to CLT Wood ....cvvvvvvvneiannns $654,404

We are excited about this project and look forward to working with you to enhance

downtown Lafayette. We thank you for the opportunity to be a part of this team and look

forward to continued collaboration in order to bring this project to fruition.

Slncerely,

Barrett Landry
THE LEMOINE COMPANY, L.L.C.

BL/br
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June 3, 2019

Lafayette Consolidated Government
Development & Planning

Attn: Danielle Breaux

PO Box 4017-C

Lafayette, Louisiana 70502

Re: Request for Proposals for Buchanan Redevelopment Site, Downtown Lafayette

We consider The Lemoine Company, LLC to be a valued client of McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. and
Federal Insurance Company for over twenty years. We have the highest regard for their professionalism,
integrity and commitment to customer service.

In our opinion, The Lemoine Company, LLC remains properly financed, well equipped, and capably
managed. They have consistently handled each of their projects in a professional manner and all projects have
been satisfactorily completed. The Lemoine Company, LLC enjoys an excellent relationship with their
surety, Federal Insurance Company.

Federal Insurance Company is authorized and licensed to do business in all 50 states with an A.M. Best Rating
of A++ (Superior) and Financial Size Category of XV. Federal Insurance Company has a Federal Treasury
Listing of $393,705,000.

Federal Insurance Company have established a surety program for The Lemoine Company, LLC of
$150,000,000 with an aggregate bonding capacity of $350,000,000. These figures should not be construed as
maximum amounts Federal Insurance Company would consider.

We would certainly entertain any bond requests subject to review of the contract and normal underwriting
information satisfactory to The Lemoine Company, LLC and their surety. Our consideration and issuance of
final bonds is a matter between The Lemoine Company, LLC and ourselves and we assume no liability to
third parties or to you, if due to any unforeseen circumstances, we do not execute such bonds.

We are pleased to highly recommend The Lemoine Company, LLC to you. Please feel free to contact us
should additional information be required.

Very truly yours,
(/P e

Maria D. Zuniga
Assistant Vice President



SUBMISSION PART D. FINANCING CAPACITY AND
CAPABILITY DOCUMENTATION

I. Offeror’s Real Estate Portfolio

See Exhibits listing CDI projects (excluding St. Landry Homes, described below),
including CDI Audit and Team Bios.

2. Recent History

Co-Sponsors CDI and LCE (especially LCE) and Contractor Lemoine Companies have
experience with projects exceeding $5,000,000, including in Lafayette. Details follow.

CDI - Sponsor

Sponsor CDI has a more than ten year history developing and redeveloping infill sites and other
properties, including in Lafayette.

In Lafayeite, it has produced with other nonprofit organizations in a senies of 7 Phases multifamily
housing developments of comparable size known collectively as Maison de la Paix situated on Hogan
Drive, not far from Madeline Avenue and the intersection of University and West Willow Avenues. It is
believe that in toto the Total Development Cost of all Phases approaches $5,000,000.

In Opelousas, CDI is the nonprofit General Partner of a 32 unit LIHTC project with Total Development
Costs of some $3,200,000.

Elsewhere it has developed or co-developed, or is in the course of developing or co-developing more than
25 single family housing units in diverse areas with Total Development Costs approaching $5,000,000. )

Le Centre Evangeline Corporation — Co-Sponsor

Co-Sponsor LCE also has a more than ten year history developing and redeveloping infill sites and other
properties, including in Lafayette. The focus below 1s on some of the multifamily workforce housing and
senior projects it played a role in developing in Lafayetie and throughout Acadiana exceeding $5,000,000
in Total Development Costs and using funds like those contemplated for Phases II and I11:

*Village du Lac/Rue Du Lac, 200 Unit Preservation Rehab, Lafayette, $5,091,154, Completion 2016
* Holy Family Apartments, 160 Unit Preservation Rehab, Lafayette, $20,141,249. Completion 2016
*Village Duchesne, 78 Unit Preservation Rehab, Sunset, $4,584,199, Completion 2015

*Cypress Gardens, 100 unit Preservation Rehab, St. Martinville, $9,458,188, Current (Awaiting Closing)
*Beau Sejour Estates, 105 Unit Preservation Rehab, Carencro, $7,929.074, Completion 2018

*Gabriel Villa, 64 Unit Preservation Rehab, Ville Plate, $7.315.998. Completion 2017

Lemoine Companies
PARKING GARAGES
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Lewis Street Garage at ULL, Lafayette, $17,858.613, Completion 2014
WW Il Museum Parking Garage, New Orleans, $8.669.259, Completion 2016
NGD Garage, Baton Rouge, $3,135,206, Completion 2018

COMMERCIAL/OFFICE SPACE

The Advocate Office Building, Baton Rouge, $11,730.071, Completion 2015
Partners Property Office Building, Lafayette, $3,979,705, Completion 2017
Century Tower, Monroe, $18.566,558, Completion 2017

MULTIFAMILY/TOWNHOMES
Baton Rouge Townhomes, Baton Rouge, $4,101,580, Completion 2017

3. Bank References

Evangeline Bank & Trust Company

497 West Main Street

Ville Platte, Louisiana 70586

Nick Veillon, Vice President and Loan Officer
337-363-5541

MidSouth Bank

930 South Union Street
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570
Ashley Burleigh
337-942-1980

Washinglon State Bank
1810 South Union Street
Opelousas, Louisiana 70570

Latasha Aggison, Branch Manager
337-948-4544

4. Statements

See accompanying.
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Statements



4. Required Statements

The Buchanan Redevelopment Site RFP does not itself provide a Statement form that could be executed
by Sponsors.

Accordingly, this Statement is supplied in hopes that it comports with the spirit the RFP.

In our capacities as representative for the Sponsors, it is our and our Development Team's understanding
that neither Sponsor nor any member of its Development Team is known to be debarred or suspended
from applying for any of the resources required for the work proposed by this Buchanan Redevelopment
Site Proposal, to have filed for bankrupicy or been in default on any on real estate development projects
and/or government contracts;

It is further Co-Sponsors’ understanding that the Sources and Uses of Funds contained in the Proposal are
a fair approximation of the expected equity and capital requirements given the limited time available
between the Release of the Buchanan Redevelopment Site RFP and the deadline for the Proposal, and the
absence of certainty as to what LCG will ultimately deem to be in its best interest;

Let us know if you need further information.

Meanwhile, with respect 1o Sponsors’ projects underway, below are described the name and status of each
project currently underway, together with the status (% complete to date), size and scope, cost, offeror
equity, financial guarantees, and role of Offeror or financial equity partner for each:

CDI

Name: Maison de la Paix, Phase V, Lafayette

Status, including % complete to date: New Construction, 50% Complete
Size and scope: New

Cost: $471,000 TDC

Offeror equity: N/A

Financial guarantee: N/A

Role: Sponsor and Co-Developer

Name: Ville Platte Scattered Site

Status, including % complete to date: 4 single family home rehab, 95% complete
Size and scope: Rehab

Cost: $500,000 TDC

Offeror equity: N/A

Financial guarantee: N/A

Role: Sponsor and Developer

Name: Ville Platte Scattered Site (Sylvester/David Streets)

Status, including % complete to date: 0% complete (awaiting HUD Environmental Clearance (AUGF) to
Proceed)

Size and scope: 7 Rehab and | New Single Family Home

Cost: $1,173,000 TDC

Offeror equity: N/A



™

Financial guarantee: N/A

Role: Co-Developer with Community Outreach of North Evangeline, another nonprofit

Name: Ville Platte Dossman Street Phase [ & I1 Scattered Site

Status, including % complete to date: 0% complete (awaiting HUD Environmental Clearance (AUGF) to
Proceed)

Size and scope: 10 New Single Family Homes

Cost: $1,738,000 TDC

Offeror equity: N/A

Financial guarantee: N/A

Role: Sponsor and Developer

Le Centre Evangeline Corporation

Mame: Maison de la Paix, Phase V, Lafayette (See above)
Financial guarantee: N/A
Role: Development Consultant

Name: Cypress Gardens Apartments Preservation Rehab

Status, including % complete to date: 0% complete (just awarded 9% Tax Credils; awaiting closing)
Size and scope: 100 Unit Preservation Rehab

Cost: $1,400,000 TDC

Offeror equity: N/A (Regions Bank)

Financial guarantee: Completion Co-Guarantor

Role: Co-Developer

Name: Ville Platte Scattered Site (See above)
Financial guarantee: N/A
Role: Development Consultant

Name: Ville Platte Scattered Site (Sylvester/David Streets) (See above)
Financial guarantee: N/A
Role: Development Consultant

Name: Ville Platte Dossman Street Phase 1 & Il Scattered Site

Status, including % complete to date: 0% complete (awaiting HUD Environmental Clearance (AUGF) to
Proceed)

Financial guarantee: N/A

Role: Development Consultant

Respectfully submitted by,

Community Directions, Inc. Le Centre Evangeline Corporation
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By David LaHaye, CE By Mark W. Tolson, CEO
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